vl

Leicestershire
County Council

Meeting: Highways and Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
Date/Time: Thursday, 4 November 2021 at 2.00 pm
Location: Sparkenhoe Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield

Contact: Mr. E. Walters (0116 3052583)

—
~ 8
3

Email: Euan.Walters@leics.gov.uk

Membership

Mr. T. Gillard CC (Chairman)

Mr. R. G. Allen CC Mr. B. Lovegrove CC
Mr. D. C. Bill MBE CC Mr. K. Merrie MBE CC
Mr. Max Hunt CC Mr. L. Phillimore CC

AGENDA

Minutes of the meeting held on 2 September
2021.

Question Time.

Questions asked by members under Standing
Order 7(3) and 7(5).

To advise of any other items which the
Chairman has decided to take as urgent
elsewhere on the agenda.

Declarations of interest in respect of items on
the agenda.

Declarations of the Party Whip in accordance
with Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule
16.

Presentation of Petitions under Standing Order
35.

Report by

(Pages 3 - 8)

Democratic Services ° Chief Executive’s Department ° Leicestershire County Council - County Hall
Glenfield - Leicestershire ° LE3 8RA ° Tel: 0116 232 3232 - Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk

g www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy n www.facebook.com/leicsdemocracy www.leics.gov.uk/local democracy



mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.facebook.com/LeicsDemocracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Engagement on the Council's Strategic Plan.

National Bus Strategy.

A511 Growth Corridor Proposals.

Highways and Transport Annual Performance
Update.

Fuel Position Update

Chief Executive

Director of
Environment and
Transport

Director of
Environment and
Transport

Director of
Environment and
Transport and
Chief Executive

The Director of Environment and Transport will provide an oral

update.

Date of next meeting.

The next meeting of the Committee is scheduled for 20 January

2022 at 2.00pm.

Any other items which the Chairman has
decided to take as urgent.

(Pages 9 - 60)

(Pages 61 - 204)

(Pages 205 -
218)

(Pages 219 -
236)



3 Agenda ltem 1

H Leicestershire
County Council

Minutes of a meeting of the Highways and Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
held at County Hall, Glenfield on Thursday, 2 September 2021.

PRESENT
Mr. R. G. Allen CC Mr. Max Hunt CC
Mr. T. Barkley CC Mr. K. Merrie MBE CC
Mr. D. C. Bill MBE CC Mr. C. A. Smith CC

Mr. T. Gillard CC

In attendance
Mr. O. O’Shea CC — Cabinet Lead Member for Highways and Transportation
Mrs. M.A. Wright CC — Cabinet Support Member for Highways and Transportation

Appointment of Chairman.

RESOLVED:

That Mr. T. Gillard CC be appointed Chairman of the Highways and Transport Overview
and Scrutiny Committee for the period ending with the date of the Annual Meeting of the
County Council in 2022.

Mr. T. Gillard CC — in the Chair

Election of Deputy Chairman.

RESOLVED:

That Mr. K. Merrie CC be appointed Deputy Chairman of the Highways and Transport
Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the period ending with the date of the Annual
Meeting of the County Council in 2022.

Question Time.

The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order
35.

Questions asked by members.

The Chief Executive reported that the following questions had been received from Mr.
M.J. Hunt CC:

The budget for bus stops, shelters and passenger information

1. What has been the budget for bus stops, shelters and passenger information over
each of the last five years?

Reply from Chairman



Year Budget — covering:

Bus shelter cleaning and maintenance contract.
Bus service area guides and timetables.

Bus stop infrastructure (flag, poles and shelters).

Public Transport Technician equipment.

2017/18 £70,000
2018/19 £70,000
2019/20 £67,500
2020/21 £67,500
2021/22 £50,500

N.B the above table does not include real time information costs.

2. How many new bus shelter requests have been received and how many agreed in
that time?”

Reply from Chairman:

Since 2018 we have received 7 new shelter requests that have not been agreed and 4
replacement shelter requests which have all been agreed.

“The Passenger Transport Strategy
3. The Passenger Transport Strategy, agreed by Cabinet states:

11.1 Leicestershire County Council will continue to provide and maintain
infrastructure that facilitates passenger transport use, in cooperation with
operators where appropriate. This includes bus stop poles/flags and shelters,
information display cases at stops, and interchange facilities.

Selection of locations for any new bus stops and shelters will follow good practice
and will particularly consider accessibility for people with impaired mobility.

What is “good practice” when selecting the location of bus shelters and where can it
be accessed?

Reply from Chairman

Experienced County Council officers make the assessment by using their knowledge of
the network and by carefully considering each request based on frequency, usage and
locality as well as reviewing daily passenger usage. As there is no specifically defined
scoring criteria covering other factors to determine shelter requests, it is recognised that
this approach requires a review. The intention going forward is to work towards
developing a clear policy for bus shelter requests which will include a scoring framework
for a range of factors.



4.  When considering “accessibility for people with impaired mobility” is this likely to
include members of the public with learning difficulties and unable to use a private
car?

Reply from Chairman:

The strategy and paragraph referenced covers physical impaired mobility and
consideration is given to accessibility in terms of raised kerbs where appropriate and low
floor vehicles. Through the siting of bus stops (i.e. flag and pole) access to public
transport is available on a universal basis to everyone in Leicestershire regardless of
disability or learning difficulties. It is therefore anticipated that those with learning
difficulties and unable to use a private car would have access, as above, or to other
County Council transport provision i.e. Special Educational Needs (SEN) transport/Adult
Social Care transport where eligible.

Supplementary Question from Mr. M. J. Hunt CC:

Mr. Hunt CC requested clarification on whether the Strategy covered impaired mobility or
just physical impaired mobility and what in fact the difference between the two was and
whether access to public transport was intended to be on a universal basis. The
Chairman offered to provide Mr. Hunt with a written answer after the meeting.

5. How many bus shelters do not meet your criteria or have low patronage and for how
long do we continue to maintain them?

Reply from Chairman:

Once a shelter is installed, usage is not monitored, and we would only look to remove a
shelter in extenuating circumstances. The reason for this is that the cost to remove a
shelter is far greater than the on-going cleaning and maintenance costs. In addition, the
bus network is subject to change and where operators reinstate services, a bus stop may
once again come back into use. The shelters that are the responsibility of the County
Council are maintained through an external contractor.

6. Until several years ago several local highways functions, including bus shelters,
were delegated to district councils covering unparished areas. Can you confirm
these so called “Highways Agencies” have now ceased and the responsibility for
bus shelters now resides exclusively in accord with the County’s Passenger
Transport Strategy?

Reply from Chairman:

There are over 800 shelters throughout the county and the County Council are
responsible for 217 of these. The remaining shelters are the responsibility of parish or
district council both in terms of ownership and on-going maintenance. The District
Council previously supplied bus shelters under the local Agency agreement with the
County Council however they no longer provide these.



Supplementary Question from Mr. M. J. Hunt CC:

Mr. Hunt CC requested clarification on the part of the answer which stated “The District
Council previously supplied bus shelters under the local Agency agreement with the
County Council however they no longer provide these.” Mr. Hunt CC asked for
confirmation that this meant District Councils no longer provided bus shelters at all and
whether Parish Councils provided them. The Chairman offered to provide Mr. Hunt with a
written answer after the meeting.

7. With the growth of ‘on demand’ services will some bus shelters become redundant?
Reply from Chairman:

No. Fixed bus stops and shelters will continue to be used for demand led services with
the addition of some virtual stops where appropriate.

8.  What proportion of passengers now use ‘on demand’ services as opposed to a
‘traditional’ bus?

Reply from Chairman:

Currently in Leicestershire there is only one ‘on demand’ service which is in the New
Lubbesthorpe area. This therefore represents a very small number of passengers using
this type of service. The County Council has been successful in receiving the recent
Rural Mobility Fund and it is anticipated that a further new ‘on demand’ service will start
early next year. Usage for the New Lubbesthorpe service is growing steadily and is still a
relatively new service which started in April 2019.

Please note ‘on demand’ has been defined as a service which can be booked via an app
on the day of travel within a defined zoned. There are also approximately 47 demand
responsive transport (DRT) services in the county. These services need to be pre-
booked the day before travel and operate on a fixed time and destination basis.

To advise of any other items which the Chairman has decided to take as urgent
elsewhere on the agenda.

There were no urgent items for consideration.

Declarations of interest.

The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of
items on the agenda for the meeting.

No declarations were made.

Declarations of the Party Whip.

There were no declarations of the party whip in accordance with Overview and Scrutiny
Procedure Rule 16.



Presentation of Petitions.

The Chief Executive reported that no petitions had been received under Standing Order

35.

Highways and Transport Performance Report to June 2021.

The Committee considered a joint report of the Chief Executive and Director of
Environment and Transport which provided the latest performance update on the key
performance indicators that the Council was responsible for within its Strategic Plan
covering Highways & Transport Services. A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 9’,
is filed with these minutes.

Arising from discussions the following points were noted:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

A member raised concerns regarding the amount of warehousing in Leicestershire
that was only accessible via minor unclassified roads and the consequent impact on
those roads from HGVSs. In response it was explained that the statutory duty of the
local authority was to facilitate the movement of vehicles through the network
however the local authority did have the power to impose weight limits on roads for
safety reasons and the County Council had exercised this power throughout
Leicestershire where it was appropriate. HGVs were exempt from the weight
restrictions if they were accessing a property that was only accessible via a minor
road.

The performance indicators which related to ‘where maintenance should be
considered’ did not indicate whether that maintenance work had actually been
carried out and a member questioned whether there should be a separate
performance indicator relating to maintenance work actually carried out. In response
it was explained that these performance indicators related to maintenance work that
was still required after the planned maintenance programme had already been
carried out. The maintenance was carried out both proactively and reactively and
there was often extra maintenance work that was required to be carried out in
addition to the planned maintenance work. The planned maintenance programme
was published on the County Council’s website annually.

During the Covid-19 pandemic both service provision and patronage of bus services
had significantly dropped. Service provision had now increased to approximately
90% of pre-pandemic levels however patronage was currently 60-80% of pre-
pandemic levels. Bus operators were aiming for patronage to return to 90% of pre-
pandemic levels by 2022.

During the pandemic Government had provided the Covid-19 Bus Service Support
Grant (CBSSG) to support bus services but this funding ceased on 31 August 2021.
To replace the CBSSG a recovery grant of £226.5 million would be available
nationally from 1 September 2021 to 31 March 2022. Should patronage not return to
close to pre-pandemic levels by the end of March 2022 then there would be a
challenge to maintain bus services without additional Government funding.

Public satisfaction with the Rights of Way Network had increased and it was
believed this was because of more people using footpaths during the Covid-19
pandemic as exhibited by the increase in enquiries from the public received by the
Rights of Way Team. Satisfaction with cycle routes and facilities had decreased and



10.

in response to a question as to whether this was due to reduced funding it was
explained that it was likely to be due to a variety of factors. Local Authorities were
required to bid for funding for cycle routes; there was no funding provided by central
government for cycling as a matter of course.

(vi) It was questioned why the ‘% of businesses saying that a reduction in traffic
congestion would significantly affect their business’ was at 53% when there had
been much less traffic congestion due to the Covid-19 pandemic. It was noted that
the data for this performance indicator came from a survey conducted by the Local
Enterprise Partnership and the question was a small part of a much larger survey.
Whilst these surveys did not always provide the whole picture with regards to public
satisfaction, they could be used to monitor trends over time and decide when and
where action needed to be taken.

(vii) The NHT survey in relation to the number of people satisfied with the condition of
the condition of pavements and footpaths was sent to Parish Councils and County
Councillors as well as to the public for feedback. The survey needed to be
completed by as broad a section of residents of Leicestershire as possible to ensure
an accurate picture was received and that any anomalies did not affect the overall
results. Suggestions from members for how the surveys could be disseminated
wider were welcomed.

(viii) A member requested that future performance reports provide the sample size when
referring to key performance indicators.

RESOLVED:

That the update on the key performance indicators that the Council is responsible for
within its Strategic Plan covering Highways & Transport Services be noted.

Dates of future meetings.

RESOLVED:
That future meetings of the Committee take place on the following dates at 2.00pm:

Thursday 4 November 2021;
Thursday 20 January 2022;
Thursday 3 March 2022;
Thursday 9 June 2022,
Thursday 1 September 2022;
Thursday 3 November 2022.

2.00 - 2.55 pm CHAIRMAN
02 September 2021



9 Agenda Iltem 8

M Leicestershire
County Council

HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE: 4 NOVEMBER 2021

ENGAGEMENT ON THE COUNCIL’S STRATEGIC PLAN

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Purpose of the Report

1. The purpose of this report is to seek the views of the Highways and Transport
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the draft Strategic Plan (2022-26), a copy of
which is appended to this report. A 12-week public consultation is set to commence
on 1 November 2021, subject to approval being given by the Cabinet at its meeting
on 26 October 2021.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions

2. The Strategic Plan is complemented by the Medium Term Financial Strategy
(MTFES) which sets out a financial plan supporting the priorities in the Strategic Plan,
as well as by the Strategic Change Portfolio which outlines how the Council will
transform local services in response to national and local drivers for change whilst
seeking to maintain or improve outcomes. The Plan is also underpinned by
Departmental Business Plans and strategies which provide further detail on how the
Council will deliver the aims and actions in the Plan.

3. On 6 December 2017, the County Council approved the current Strategic Plan
(2018-22). This Plan was based on five aspirational outcomes which described the
County Council’s vision for Leicestershire. On 15th May 2019, the County Council
declared a climate emergency. On 8 July 2020, the County Council approved a
revised version of the Plan (still to expire in 2022) to reflect the Council’s declaration
of a climate emergency, with recognition that it would need to be revisited as a
result of the coronavirus pandemic.

Background

4. The Strategic Plan sets out the Council’s ambitions and priorities for the next four
years. It outlines what it aims to achieve and how it intends to do it.

5. The current Plan is due to expire in 2022. Work has been undertaken to review and
refresh the Plan and to re-assess the Council’s strategic priorities, particularly in
light of the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.



10

Plan Structure and Contents

The draft Plan (2022-26) is based on five strategic outcomes which describe the
Council’'s vision for Leicestershire. Each outcome includes four or five sub-
outcomes which will need to be achieved to deliver the outcome.

The outcomes are broad and aspirational, reflecting the County Council’s significant
and wide-ranging responsibilities and capacity to influence. Therefore, to ensure
that the Plan provides a clear strategic direction for the Council, it also includes
specific aims and actions to deliver each outcome over the next four years.

The Plan also includes a section on ‘enabling services’ which is intended to
highlight the contributions of the County Council’s corporate functions (e.g. Finance,
Legal, HR) to outcome delivery as well as sustaining good governance. This is
followed by a section on the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) which
highlights the Council’s aims and actions to maintain a balanced budget whilst
protecting frontline services and weathering the coronavirus crisis. Finally, there is a
section on the Strategic Change Portfolio, summarising the aims and actions of the
four key pillars of this internal transformation programme.

Strategic Outcomes

9.

The outcomes, which are detailed below, are intended to broadly reflect the remits
of departments and the portfolios of lead members. However, successful delivery of
the Plan will rely upon departments sharing ownership of the outcomes in addition
to the outcomes being reflected in all relevant Council plans and strategies.

e ‘Clean, Green Future’ Outcome: Reflects the need to protect and enhance
the environment and tackle climate change, biodiversity loss and
unsustainable resource usage.

Sub-outcomes:
o People act now to tackle climate change;

o Nature and the local environment are valued, protected and
enhanced,;

o Resources are used in an environmentally sustainable way;

o The economy and infrastructure are low carbon and environmentally-
friendly.

e ‘Great Communities’ Outcome: Aims to ensure Leicestershire has thriving,
inclusive communities in which people support each other and take
responsibility for their local area.

Sub-outcomes:

o Diversity is celebrated and people feel welcome and included,;
People participate in service design and delivery;
Communities are prepared for and resilient to emergencies;
Cultural and historical heritage are enjoyed and conserved;
People support each other through volunteering.

o O O O



11

e ‘Improving Opportunities’ Outcome: Aims for all children to get the best start
for life and to have access to a good quality education. Also aims for
everyone to have the opportunities they need to fulfil their potential.

Sub-outcomes:
o Every child gets the best start for life;
o Every child has access to good quality education;
o Families are self-sufficient and enabled to be resilient;
o Everyone is able to aim high and reach their full potential.

e ‘Strong Economy, Transport and Infrastructure’ Outcome: Aims to ensure
that we build a productive, inclusive and sustainable economy at the cutting
edge of science, technology and engineering. Also reflects the need for our
infrastructure to meet the demands of a growing population and economy.

Sub-outcomes:

o There is close alignment between skills supply and employer demand;
Leicestershire has the infrastructure for sustainable growth;
Leicestershire is an attractive place where businesses can flourish;
Economic growth delivers increased prosperity for all;

Leicestershire has the right homes in the right places to meet needs.

o O O O

e ‘Keeping People Safe and Well’ Outcome: Aims to ensure the people of
Leicestershire have the opportunities and support they need to take control
of their health and wellbeing. Also reflects the need to ensure people are
safe and protected from harm.

Sub-outcomes:
o People are safe in their daily lives;
o People enjoy long lives in good health;
o People at the most risk are protected from harm;
(©)

Carers and people with care needs are supported to live active,
independent, and fulfilling lives.

Governance

10.

11.

The Council’s current Strategic Plan (2018-22) is also based on five strategic
outcomes. Its implementation has been led by Outcome Advisory Boards (OABS)
responsible for supporting alignment of Departmental Business Plans with the
outcomes. A review of this approach identified that the OABs have not influenced
Business Plans and seem to have lacked clarity on their specific roles and priorities.
This has led to the increased focus in the revised Strategic Plan on defining specific
aims for each outcome, as well as the development of a new governance model.

The revised model is based on Outcome Boards, which will no longer aim to advise
Departments on the contents of their Business Plans. These Outcome Boards will
instead focus primarily on monitoring the Council’s progress in delivering the aims
of their respective outcomes, providing six-monthly reports to Corporate



12

Management Team to highlight key achievements, challenges and priorities. The
Council’'s Overview and Scrutiny Committees will continue to receive quarterly
updates on performance for the areas they cover. The Outcome Boards will also
have the capacity to review and inform Council strategies whilst they are being
developed, to help ensure that they reflect the aims of their respective outcomes.

Highways and Transport

12.

13.

14.

Highways and Transport services are recognised in the Strategic Plan as a key
enabler of economic growth, net-zero carbon emissions, improved public health and
community resilience. The outcome in the Plan with the most direct links with the
Council’'s Highways and Transport services is the ‘Strong Economy, Transport and
Infrastructure’ outcome. However, the aims and actions of Highways and Transport
services are also embedded throughout the Plan.

For example, the ‘Clean, Green Future’ outcome includes, for sub-outcome 5.1
‘People act now to tackle climate change and protect the environment’ an action for
the Council to work with partners to expand zero and ultra-low emissions vehicles
and charging and promote sustainable modes of transport including walking and
cycling. Similarly, sub-outcome 5.4 ‘The economy and infrastructure are low carbon
and environmentally friendly’ includes actions to encourage and support active and
sustainable travel options, where appropriate, by learning from best practice and
encouraging the uptake and use of electric vehicles and micro-mobility as
appropriate, including through provision of infrastructure. Further, the ‘Great
Communities’ outcome includes, for sub-outcome 6.3 ‘Communities are prepared
for and resilient to emergencies’ a commitment for the Council to maintain its
Resilient Highways Network, targeting works to ensure that traffic is kept moving
despite disruptive events (e.g. severe weather).

The ‘Strong Economy, Transport and Infrastructure’ outcome includes the following
aims and actions of relevance to Highways and Transport services.

Sub-outcome 8.2 ‘Leicestershire has the infrastructure for sustainable growth’

Aim: Infrastructure capacity and capability supports growth and net zero carbon emissions.

Actions include:

We will continue to provide safe, suitably maintained highways that support and
encourage new housing development and economic growth and employ a flexible
approach to reviewing, amending, and developing the network to reflect changing
travel demand and traffic patterns.

We will maximise opportunities from technological innovations; utilising evidence
gathered on the Major Road Network and from key radial routes to support end to end
journey planning and better traffic management.

We will continue to press Government for long-term funding streams to help us
maintain our highway assets and support passenger transport services.

We will work in partnership with local bus operators to promote and champion the
provision of affordable, frequent, and high-quality passenger transport services and
support with the recovery of the passenger transport market following the Covid-19
pandemic by identifying opportunities to provide access to essential services in the
most cost effective and efficient way



13

+ We will engage with the freight and logistics sector, to better understand the needs of
the sector and ensure that schemes are developed which support the efficient
movement of freight into, around, and out of Leicestershire

*  We will work with partners through Midlands Connect to invest in strategic road and rail
improvements to reduce congestion, improve journey times and support housing
growth (e.g. Midlands Rail Hub proposal - rail infrastructure improvements to provide
better rail links across the Midlands).

* We will continue engaging with HS2 Ltd to ensure that Leicester and Leicestershire’s
interests are protected and/or advanced throughout construction.

* We will encourage and support active and sustainable travel options, where
appropriate, by learning from best practice and encouraging the uptake and use of
electric vehicles and micro-mobility as appropriate, including through provision of
infrastructure.

15. The ‘Strong Economy, Transport and Infrastructure’ outcome also includes aims
and actions to maintain confidence and momentum in the development of strategic
sites and the Freeport. It includes recognition that focusing development in major
strategic locations will enable the Council to plan for new housing and employment
along with new and improved roads and public transport. Sub-outcome 8.5
‘Leicestershire has the right homes in the right places to meet needs’ also includes
an action for the Council to explore ways to secure financial contributions through
development to support essential infrastructure such as highway capacity.

Consultation and Timetable for Decisions

16. Development of the Plan has so far included engagement with lead officers for
supporting strategies and the current (2018-22) outcomes, Department Management
Teams, Corporate Management Team and Mrs. P. Posnett CC, Cabinet Lead
Member for Community and Staff Relations.

17. Subject to Cabinet approval at its meeting on 26 October 2021, a 12-week public
consultation on the Plan will begin on 1 November 2021 and run until 21 January
2022. As part of the consultation all of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny
Committees and the Scrutiny Commission (from 1-17 November), key partnership
boards such as the Children and Families Partnership and Health and Wellbeing
Board (17 and 25 November respectively) will be provided with an opportunity to
comment on the draft Plan.

18. Residents, community groups and partner organisations will also be invited to
provide feedback on the draft Plan through a variety of methods including a public
survey and meetings in which the Plan will be presented and reviewed.

19. Findings from the consultation will be used to inform development of the final Plan
and it is intended that, in March 2022, a report will be presented to the Scrutiny
Commission for consideration and then to the Cabinet presenting the outcome of the
consultation and seeking agreement for the revised draft Plan to be submitted to the
County Council for approval on 18 May 2022.



14

Resource Implications

20. All actions within the Plan are from existing service/business plans and strategies. As

21.

22.

23.

such, there should not be any additional resource investment required to deliver the
Plan beyond that which has already been approved.

However, as referenced in Section 11 of the Plan (‘Monitoring Outcome Delivery’),
officer resources will be required to monitor delivery of the Plan and ensure that the
strategic outcomes are reflected in and supported by all relevant underpinning
Council plans and strategies. These tasks will be carried out by Outcome Boards,
consisting of representatives from departments and corporate services. As delivery of
the Plan will require continued collaboration with partner services, representatives
from the Outcome Boards will interact with relevant partnership boards to monitor
outcome delivery and promote integration of strategies.

The number of Outcome Boards has been reduced following a review of outcome
delivery arrangements. Therefore, fewer officer resources will be required than have
been utilised to monitor and support delivery of the current (2018-22) Plan.

The Director of Corporate Resources and Director of Law and Governance have
been consulted on the Plan and will have a further opportunity to comment following
the public consultation (prior to the March 2022 Cabinet meeting).

Conclusions

24,

It is recommended that the Committee provides its views on the draft Strategic Plan
(2022-26) as set out in the Appendix, including the content highlighted in this report.

Background papers

Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan (2018-2022) (Previous Plan)

Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure

25.

None

Equality and Human Rights Implications

26.

27.

A screening assessment of the Strategic Plan concluded that a full impact
assessment is not required. The Strategic Plan is a high-level document which
reflects the content of existing Council plans and strategies in order to set out a clear
summary of the Council’s overall ambitions and delivery approach; it does not include
new actions which could have Equality and Human Rights Implications.

The Plan will, however, have a positive impact as it promotes Equality and Human
Rights, primarily by including, within the section on the ‘Great Communities’ outcome
(see sub-section 6.1), specific aims and actions to deliver the sub-outcome: ‘diversity
is celebrated, and people feel welcome and included’. This sub-outcome highlights
issues around community cohesion and hate crime along with specific actions which


https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-plans/the-strategic-plan

15

the Council will deliver over the next four years to address these issues. Equality and
Human Rights are also embedded throughout the Plan.

Other Relevant Impact Assessments

Crime and Disorder Implications

28.

There are no direct crime and disorder implications arising from this report. The Plan
promotes community safety by including, within the section on the ‘Keeping People
Safe and Well’ outcome (see sub-sections 9.1 and 9.2 of the appendix), specific aims
and actions to deliver the sub-outcomes ‘people are safe in their daily lives’ and
‘people at the most risk are protected from harm’.

Environmental Implications

29.

The Plan raises the profile of environmental issues by including, within the section on
the ‘Clean, Green Future’ outcome, aims and actions to tackle climate change and
biodiversity loss and promote sustainable resource usage. Aims to ensure
infrastructure supports the transition to net zero carbon emissions are also reflected
in the section on the ‘Strong Economy, Transport and Infrastructure’ outcome (see
sub-section 8.2 of the appendix).

Appendices

Appendix: Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan (2022-26) (Revised Plan)

Officer to Contact

Ashley Epps, Senior Policy Officer

0116 3050527

Ashley.Epps@]leics.gov.uk



mailto:Ashley.Epps@leics.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



17

APPENDIX

Leicestershire

County Council

Strategic Plan

2022-26

Published October 2021


EWalters
Text Box
APPENDIX


18

Table of Contents

1L GIOSSAMNY it 2
2. FOTBWOIG ... e 3
3 VISION e 4
4, SHATEGIC QUICOMES . ..vii ittt 5
B, ClEaN, GIrEEN FUIUIE ... 6
6. Great COMMUNTTIES .......veeei et 11
7. 1IMProving OPPOMUNITIES. .. ..cciiiiie et 16
8. Strong Economy, Transport and INfrastructure..........c..cooooovviiiiiiiice 22
9. Keeping People Safe and Well.........coeiiiiiiiiiiciic e 29
10. EN@BING SEIVICES ....veeiiie e 36
11. Monitoring OULCOME DEIIVEIY........ceiiiiiiie et 37
12. Medium Term Financial STrategy.......cuvveieiiiiiiiiiiiec et 38
13. Strategic Change Portfolio ... ..vvevieeeieii e 39

1. Glossary

LLEP Leicester and Leicestershire Enterprise Partnership
VCSE Sector Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise Sector
SEND Special Educational Needs and Disability

EHCP Education, Health and Care Plan

EHE Elective Home Education

NEET Not in Education, Employment or Training

GVA Gross Value Added

STEM Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics
R&D Research and Development

SMEs Small and Medium-Sized Enterprises

GDHI Gross Disposable Household Income

PM2.5 Fine Particulate Matter

CO2e Carbon Dioxide Equivalent

2 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



19

2. Foreword

Clir Nick Rushton
Leader of Leicestershire County Council

This Strategic Plan sets out our ambitions and priorities for the next four years (2022-26). It outlines what
we want to achieve and how we intend to do it.

It is based on five strategic outcomes which are aspirational; they outline the end results that we want to
see for Leicestershire. For each outcome, we have identified specific aims which we will focus on achieving
over the next four years, with corresponding actions. Further detail can be found through the relevant
strategies in our Strategy Library.

Whilst the outcomes have been set out in separate sections, it is recognised that there are significant
interdependencies between them. For example, reducing our carbon footprint supports not only our aim

to tackle climate change but also to ensure positive health outcomes for current and future generations.
Further, improving the educational attainment of disadvantaged children ensures they are able to access
opportunities to fulfil their potential and supports economic growth in the county. Links between outcomes
have been highlighted throughout the Plan and some actions support multiple outcomes.

We will deliver it by building upon our previous achievements, such as being recognised by Impower as
the most productive Council in England and Wales, whilst being the lowest funded County Council in the
UK. However, the Council alone cannot deliver all the change that will be needed. Through continued
collaboration with our partners to coordinate and integrate our plans we hope to make the maximum
impact on the most pressing issues that we face and celebrate and build on the success of this great
county.

Nionelaro Naaion

3 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



3. Vision

The vision below summarises our ambitions for Leicestershire and puts us on the right
path to secure the best possible future for local residents.

An inclusive county in which active
communities, great connections and

20

greener living enable everyone to

prosper, be happy and healthy.

We want Leicestershire to have welcoming and inclusive communities in which people
take responsibility for their local areas and support each other. People are safe and
well, living active, independent, and fulfilling lives. The local economy is flourishing
with resilient, clean growth delivering increased prosperity for all. Everyone, regardless
of their background or personal characteristics, has access to the opportunities they
need to aim high and achieve their aspirations. People act now with urgency to protect
and enhance the environment and meet the challenges of climate change.

4 |eicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26

bl |



21

4, Strategic Outcomes

4 I
Clean, Green Future
* People act now to tackle climate
change

* Nature and the local environment are
valued, protected and enhanced

* Resources are used in an
environmentally sustainable way

* The economy and infrastructure are
low carbon and environmentally-
friendly

\
\
\

-

\ ®
i

Great Communities

* Diversity is celebrated and people feel
welcome and included

* People participate in service design and
delivery

* Communities are prepared for and
resilient to emergencies

¢ Cultural and historical heritage are
enjoyed and conserved

* People support each other through
volunteering

-

Keeping People
Safe and Well

People are safe in their daily lives
People enjoy long lives in good health

People at the most risk are protected
from harm

Carers and people with care
needs are supported to live active,
independent, and fulfilling lives

N

Improving Opportunities

Every child gets the best start in life

Every child has access to good quality
education

Families are self-sufficient and enabled to
be resilient

Everyone is able to aim high and reach their

full potential
J

5 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26

Strong Economy, Transport

and Infrastructure

* There is close alignment between skill
supply and demand

¢ Leicestershire has the infrastructure
for sustainable growth

* Leicestershire is an attractive place
where businesses flourish

* Economic growth delivers increased
prosperity for all

* Leicestershire has the right homes in
the right places to meet needs




22

5. Clean, Green Future

This outcome reflects the need to protect and enhance the environment and meet the challenges and
opportunities of responding to climate change. Global warming is leading to an increase in the frequency
and intensity of storms, flooding and heatwaves and changes in pests and diseases. It will affect social and
environmental determinants of health including clean air, safe drinking water, supply of sufficient food and
access to secure shelter. It will also damage local infrastructure and services, reduce productivity, increase
the likelihood of conflict and climate migration and increase the loss of biodiversity.

There is increasing recognition of, and commitment to, the need to protect, promote and improve the
environment at a local, national, and global level. The Paris Agreement of 2015 requires countries to

limit global temperature rise to below 1.5 to 2°C. The interconnection between economic development,
social equity and inclusion and environmental impacts has also been recognised internationally via the
2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development. The UK Government has prioritised action on climate change
through the Climate Change Act 2008 (2050 Target Amendment) Order 2019, requiring the government
to reduce the UK’s net emissions of greenhouse gases to zero by 2050. This will require transformational
action.

On 15th May 2019, Leicestershire County Council declared a climate emergency, making a commitment to
achieving net zero carbon emissions from its own operations by 2030 and to work with others and to lobby
government to achieve net zero carbon emissions for Leicestershire by 2045.

The Council has different levels of control and influence in protecting the environment and addressing
climate change. It is responsible for complying with legislation relating to the environmental impacts from
its activities, such as heating and powering our offices, using vehicles and generating waste; managing
the environmental impacts from the activities of Leicestershire residents and businesses, such as air
pollution from local transport and the reduction, recycling and disposal of household waste; and enforcing
environmental legislation on businesses, such as in relation to product packaging, banned substances and
energy certificates. It also has capacity to influence wider environmental action by lobbying government
and working with partners within Leicestershire.

The Council commits to minimising the environmental impact of its activities and helping to protect the
environment of Leicestershire. We will tackle climate change and embed environmental sustainability
into everything we do. We will work with partners to deliver sustainable development by recognising and
fostering the links between the environment, people, and the economy.

The priorities and commitments to deliver this outcome focus on how the Council will help to protect the
environment and tackle climate change through its service delivery and interactions with residents and
partners. Further detail on how the Council will reduce carbon emissions from its own operations can be
found in the section on the Council’s Carbon Reduction Programme.

5.1 People act now to tackle climate change and protect the environment

To achieve net zero carbon emissions in Leicestershire we need communities to be aware of the need for
action on climate change and to act now to reduce environmental impacts. There is significant potential for
individual action and community-led initiatives to support environmental sustainability (e.g. energy usage,
sustainable transport, recycling). Our Community Survey highlights that 97% of residents feel protecting
the environment is important. However, only 45% feel informed about what the Council is doing to protect
the environment and tackle climate change, and 67% think the Council should be doing more.

6 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26


file:///C:\Users\AEpps\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\20ND95GW\Appendix 1 - Draft Strategic Plan 2022-26.docx#_Carbon_Reduction_Programme

[
w

23

Leicestershire has a higher rate of average waste produced per household than comparator counties, which
may suggest that there is scope to reduce the amount of waste produced locally. We also have lower rates
of electrical vehicle ownership than comparators and fewer electrical vehicle charging points.

There has been a 33% reduction in the rate of domestic CO2 emissions in Leicestershire since 2010.
Leicestershire also ranks in the best performing 25% of comparators for the percentage of new-build
houses with an Energy Performance Certificate rating of C+. However, the county ranks in the worst 25%
comparators for the percentage of existing homes with this level of energy efficiency.

7

What will success look like?

Residents actively involved in tackling climate change and protecting the environment

Reduction in the rate of CO2 emissions per capita (average per resident)

Our Commitments

We will use our interactions with communities to raise awareness of environmental impacts and harness
community capacity to address them

We will provide support and opportunities for learning to local communities, schools, and businesses
to promote positive environmental action and collaborative working, leading to constructive behavioural
change

We will support residents to be more resource efficient in their energy and water use, such as through
our Warm Homes service which provides free advice and information on managing heating costs and
staying warm at home well as grants to deliver first-time gas central heating systems

We will work with partners to expand zero and ultra-low emissions vehicles and charging, including
Heavy Goods Vehicle refuelling, and promote sustainable modes of transport including walking and
cycling

1

Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



24

5.2 Nature and the local environment are valued, protected and enhanced

Biodiversity describes the enormous variety of life on Earth. Biodiversity and the eco-system cleanse our
atmosphere, provide us with the oxygen we breath, the clean water we drink and the food we eat as well
as many of the medicines which help to keep us well. The natural capital assets (geology, soil, air, water
and all living things) of Leicestershire have an annual value of £388.45 million, with agricultural habitats
generating £180.91 million annually.

Intensively managed farmland is poor for wildlife whilst land which is less intensively managed with little or
no applications of chemical fertiliser, pesticides and herbicides is much richer in wildlife. In Leicestershire
and Rutland where more than 80% of the land is farmed, good habitats for wildlife are now few and far
between and much of our wildlife is being squeezed out and continues to decline. Leicestershire and
Rutland are amongst the poorest counties for sites of recognised nature conservation value. The best sites
(Sites of Special Scientific Interest) represent only about 1%% of the land area in Leicestershire.

Natural green space includes a wide variety of land from scrub and wetland to woodland and meadow.
Access to natural green space supports our health and well-being. There is a risk that future development
may not sufficiently consider the value of natural capital and green space.

I What will success look like?

* Increase in the percentage of county land which promotes diversity of habitat and species

I Our Commitments

* We will support awareness raising and education on biodiversity and the value of natural capital to
society and the economy

* We will create, protect, enhance, and manage sustainable green infrastructure and biodiversity on
Council managed land and assets

* We will seek to improve the biodiversity value and condition of natural capital features on Council
managed land and assets

* We will seek to demonstrate and support environmentally sustainable farming practices that support the
maintenance and enhancement of biodiversity and the condition of natural capital features

» We will work with partners through the LLEP to develop a Natural Capital Investment Plan, and deliver
the roadmap the recent Natural Capital Review Report set out for Leicestershire, minimising the loss of
habitats and the impacts of development and encouraging innovative land use

5.3 Resources are used in an environmentally sustainable way

A further environmental crisis we are facing, in addition to climate change and biodiversity loss, is
unsustainable resource usage. We are using the planet’s resources at a faster rate than they are being
replenished and in a way which does not allow most of these resources to be reused within our economic
systems. In order to address this crisis, we need to move to a circular economy model. This is a more
resource efficient alternative to a traditional linear economy (make, use, dispose) where resources are used
for as long as possible, then products and materials are recovered, regenerated, or recycled.

Leicestershire County Council is responsible for the reuse, treatment, recycling, or disposal of the collected
wastes. In addition, it has the duty to provide places for the deposit of household waste from residents
(Recycling & Household Waste Sites). Compared to other county areas, Leicestershire has a lower rate of
household waste which is recycled and has a significantly higher percentage of waste which is landfilled.

8 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



25

I What will success look like?

* |ncrease in the percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting and reduction in
the percentage landfilled

I Our Commitments

* |ncrease in the percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting and reduction in
the percentage landfilled

» We will reduce the tonnage of household waste produced in Leicestershire and minimise its
environmental impact by applying the waste hierarchy in the priority order of prevention, preparation for
reuse, recycling, other recovery, and disposal

* We will continue to encourage appropriate use of the Recycling & Household Waste Sites service

» We will provide a trade waste recycling, treatment and disposal service for businesses in Leicestershire,
where practicable and cost-effective to do so

* We will work closely with other Waste Disposal Authorities to share ideas and opportunities for joint
working / collaboration and innovation

5.4 The economy and infrastructure are low carbon and environmentally friendly

Decarbonising the economy and infrastructure is the key solution to addressing the climate emergency.
Nearly 70% of Leicestershire’s emissions come from commercial, industrial and transport sources, with
the remaining 30% coming from domestic sources (how we heat and use energy in our homes). Total
commercial CO2 emissions in Leicestershire have reduced by xx% since 2005 and industrial CO2
emissions have reduced by xx%. However, transport emissions have only fallen by x%. The move to a low
carbon, environmentally-friendly economy will require policy, technological and behavioural changes.

The Leicester and Leicestershire Enterprise Partnership (LLEP)'s survey of local businesses from March-
June 2021 found that 35% of businesses had taken action to reduce carbon impact in the past 2 months
and 50% planned to take action over the following 6 months.

I What will success look like?

* Increase in the percentage of businesses taking action to reduce their carbon impact

¢ Reduction in CO2 emissions under the Council’s influence in the local area

I Our Commitments

* We will ensure that our Corporate Asset Investment Fund owns efficient assets which enhance the
environment and biodiversity in the county

* We will reduce the impact of the Council’s procurement and delivery of goods and services on the
environment, including through the reduced use of raw materials and fossil fuels, increased use of
renewable energy and deployment of smarter and more efficient processes

» We will work with businesses to raise awareness of the need to act on climate change and to support
carbon reduction and circular economy practices

* We will identify and promote business opportunities arising from the move towards a circular economy

9 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



26

We will work with partners to identify the investment requirements for zero carbon development and
develop associated training and skills routes

We will work with partners to create new, low-carbon business units and managed workspaces for start-
ups and small companies

We will work with partners and developers to ensure developments are low or zero carbon, climate
resilient and enhance biodiversity

We will ensure effective restoration of public transport services following the pandemic and identify
opportunities to make transport more efficient

We will encourage and support active and sustainable travel options, where appropriate, by learning
from best practice and encouraging the uptake and use of electric vehicles and micro-mobility as
appropriate, including through provision of infrastructure

We will reduce pollution and contamination in Leicestershire through our Trading Standards service and
other areas of control and influence

We will continue to investigate and pursue opportunities to increase carbon sequestration through nature
based solutions, such as tree planting

avan I I
1 L]
T . .
Ranghan, gt E ‘n- " " & - -
P socnmn Too B LR
l-. [ - -'r. | ]
1 L] & - - 1age . g ow
- & 5 £ " L} #
fas » HLEOT i T | L]
[
'l - .
] e i -
afn W, o =¥ e H
[l L] B " 4
& : '||l
| - Ly . 2 rr
-
L |
1ite atetite: ner sotll
- - | | .y
"y gu® L |
"apgnnl Hla “vo,. T
- 'l'l
s "_§
L L]
¥ L]
aa®

10 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



27

6. Great Communities

The Great Communities outcome aims to ensure that Leicestershire has thriving, integrated and inclusive
communities in which people support each other and take responsibility for their local area. We want
communities to frequently tell us what is important to them and how well services are working and to work
with us to improve services. Communities also need to be resilient and adaptable during emergencies to
ensure a seamless return to normal life.

The communities we live in and the relationships we have are the primary source of our physical and
mental health — which in turn affects the kind of life we are able to live and the part we play in society. Our
communities are key assets and by investing in them we can cultivate the conditions for people to flourish.

Whilst the pandemic has presented significant challenges for communities, it has also offered many
examples of positive community spirit and highlighted the willingness of people to volunteer to help others,
particularly the most vulnerable. Leicestershire’s thriving and diverse Voluntary, Community and Social
Enterprise (VCSE) sector, comprising over 3,000 organisations, has continued to provide essential services.
Over 1,000 Covid-19 volunteers have been recruited to support vulnerable people through activities such
as providing food and medication, transport to and from appointments, information about support available
and check-in/befriending contact. A further 1,250 county volunteers were recruited to support the Covid-19
vaccination programme.

We aim to encourage more people to become active citizens, taking responsibility for their local areas. We
will ‘help communities to help themselves’ by supporting them to take advantage of and build on the assets
within their local area (e.g. buildings, people, skills, and networks) to help solve local challenges. We will
build upon the successful partnerships and initiatives which have developed during the pandemic to further
strengthen and empower communities. We will also provide VCSE organisations with tailored information,
advice, and support to build community capacity and strengthen universal services.

The council has a strong record of engaging with communities on services and strategies. This reflects our
commitment to openness and transparency and supports informed decision-making on council services.
We also encourage and support communities to direct development in their local areas. We aim to increase
the involvement of residents in service design, such as by using a wider range of engagement methods and
reaching marginalised communities.

Culture is our past, present and future. It's what we have inherited, what we are experiencing now and
what we would like to see remembered. It's myths and legends, faiths and religion, buildings, villages,
cities and landscapes, art, dance, music, and food, treasured and meaningful objects and possessions,
values, beliefs and memories. We will preserve and make accessible our local cultural and historic heritage
to enhance the wellbeing of local residents.

Resilient communities are capable of bouncing back from adverse situations. They do this by actively
influencing and preparing for economic, social, and environmental change. We will work with partners to
support society to avoid, prepare for, respond to, and recover from emergencies.

Our specific priorities and commitments to deliver this outcome are set out in the following pages. To
deliver them, we will work closely with residents, VCSE organisations and partner services.

11 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



28

6.1 Diversity is celebrated and people feel welcome and included

Our Community Insight Survey finds that as of Quarter 1 2021/22 the vast majority of residents (92%)
agree that their local area is a place where people from different backgrounds get on well together.
However, this percentage represents a decrease from 96% in Quarter 2 2020/21. The rate of hate crime
has also increased since the EU referendum and during the pandemic.

What will success look like?

Increased community cohesion
Better reporting and reduction in hate crime

Council services are accessible and inclusive for all

Our Commitments

Our Equalities strategy will focus on providing accessible services, promoting community cohesion and
ensuring equity in employment opportunities

We will sign up to the Race at Work Charter, The Disability Confident Scheme and the Stonewall
Workforce Equalities Index

We will provide guidance, training and support for all staff to address equalities issues
We will organise and promote civic events throughout the county to celebrate our diverse communities

We will support the Inter Faith Forum to promote greater understanding and awareness of religion, faith,
and belief

We will support the Leicestershire Equality Challenge Group to provide an independent challenge to our
work to ensure service accessibility

We will work with partners through the Leicestershire Safer Communities Strategy Board to tackle all
forms of hate crime

6.2 People participate in service design and delivery

Our Community Survey suggests that 94% of residents are satisfied with their local area as a place to live.
The majority of residents (57%) feel well informed about the Council and 67% state that they trust the
Council. However, only 33% feel that they can influence Council decisions.

Neighbourhood Plans enable residents to develop a shared vision for local neighbourhoods and to shape
the development and growth of local areas. There are now 125 active Neighbourhood Planning groups and
there has been an increase in the number of Plans adopted, from 34 in 2019/20 to 38 in 2020/21. There
are also 35 communities managing their local library, with many of these being community hubs which
support the needs of local people.

What will success look like?

Increase in the proportion of residents willing to work together and who feel that they can influence
Council decisions

Increase in the number of Neighbourhood Plans adopted

12 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



29

Our Commitments

We will engage residents, service users and partners in the planning of services, through a variety of
means

We will sign the Consultation Institute’s Charter and follow the best practice principles for consultation
and engagement

We will actively encourage community participation through the planning process, for instance through
consultation on planning applications

We will support Neighbourhood Plan development and provide timely and co-ordinated consultation
responses from the Council

We will continue to support Parish and Town Councils in their role as community leaders and providers
of community managed services

We will continue to support communities to plan and deliver devolved services, such as community-
managed libraries and heritage sites

6.3 Communities are prepared for and resilient to emergencies

Leicestershire County Council aims to ensure that communities are ready for emergencies and prepared
to respond. This can be supported through the development of Community Response Plans, which help
communities to identify the skills, knowledge and resources that can be mustered to help those within
the community who have been affected. There are currently 53 Community Response Plans across
Leicestershire.

What will success look like?

Increase in the number of active Community Response Plans

Our Commitments

We will work with the Leicester, Leicestershire, and Rutland Resilience Partnership to prepare for,
respond to and recover from emergencies

We will support communities to develop Community Response Plans, so they are in a position to help
themselves in exceptional circumstances

We will provide advice and assistance to businesses and voluntary organisations to ensure effective
business continuity management

We will take action to support the resilience of the County to the existing and predicted changes in
climate

We will undertake the Lead Local Flood Authority statutory duties including reviewing Leicestershire’s
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy

We will maintain our Resilient Highways Network, targeting works to ensure that traffic is kept moving
despite disruptive events (e.g. severe weather)

We will work with partners through the Signposting and Community Support Service to provide
emergency short-term food and fuel support

13 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



30

6.4 Cultural and historical heritage are enjoyed and conserved

There was an 8% reduction in visits to heritage sites between 2018/19 and 2019/20. The pandemic

has also had a significant impact on the county’s museum and heritage sites and library services, with
premises having closed during the restrictions. However, services have adapted through digital delivery
including virtual museum tours, whilst libraries have seen an 89% increase in the number of e-loans from
2019/20-2020/21.

I What will success look like?

* Increase in the number of Leicestershire residents and visitors engaging in cultural and heritage activities

I Our Commitments

* QOur libraries, heritage, country parks and adult learning programmes will promote wellbeing by providing
free and accessible community facilities, exhibitions and parks and outdoor activities and offering a
range of learning opportunities

* QOur Audience Development Team will ensure that new audiences obtain the wellbeing benefits
associated with cultural participation and support communities through the Cultural Communities
Network to develop their own bespoke programmes of cultural events and activities

* Qur Creative Learning Services will support schools with a wide range of resources, pupil sessions and
professional help to stimulate reading for pleasure and creative learning across the curriculum

* QOur Record Office will preserve and provide access to resources which can be used to research
Leicestershire’s history and culture

e Our Museums’, Curatorial and Collections teams will maintain the County’s natural history, artefacts,
specimens, information and objects as well as the stories of the people who have made Leicestershire
their home for thousands of years

* Through GoLearn! (Leicestershire Adult Learning Service), we will offer a wide range of online adult
learning courses in venues across Leicestershire

6.5 People support each other through volunteering

As highlighted previously, there has been a surge in prospective and mobilised volunteers during the
pandemic, which is reflected nationwide; 750,000 people registered to volunteer for the NHS Volunteer
Responders scheme within four days of its launch in April 2020 and over 4,000 mutual aid groups
formed. Locally, 1,077 volunteers were recruited to support vulnerable people at the beginning of the
pandemic and a further 1,250 recruited to support vaccination. However, pre-pandemic there was a long-
term downward trend in volunteer numbers and our latest Community Survey finds that 39% of resident
respondents had given unpaid help in the last 12 months, suggesting that there may be scope to increase
the rate of volunteering.

VCSE organisations have taken a leading role in ensuring the provision of support for vulnerable people
throughout the pandemic, however they have faced significant financial pressures due to reduced income,
the costs of making facilities Covid-19 secure and increases in demand.

I What will success look like?

* There is a sustained increase in volunteering post-pandemic

14 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



31

VCSE organisations remain financially viable and maintain service delivery

Our Commitments

We will continue to provide communities with up-to-date information and advice to support and promote
volunteering

We will develop and maintain a volunteering offer across services such as libraries, museums and
heritage, social care and environment and waste

We will encourage Council employees to volunteer to develop their skills and experience, build links with
communities and support local initiatives

We will support volunteers to maintain their health and wellbeing

We will support the growth and development of VCSE organisations by providing targeted grants and
funding

We will commission an ongoing programme of support for VCSE groups in areas such as governance,
income generation, commissioning support, representation, and establishment

15 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



32

/. Improving Opportunities

This outcome aims to ensure that all children get the best start for life and have the opportunities they
need to reach their potential, regardless of where they grow up, or the family circumstances they are born
into. This reflects evidence that the first 1001 critical days of life (from pregnancy to age two years) have

a significant influence on neurological brain development and lifelong outcomes for the child. We believe
children are best supported to grow within their own families and as such the outcome also reflects the
need to ensure families are resilient and self-sufficient. Further, it aims to ensure that disadvantaged adults,
such as those with learning disabilities, autism and/or mental health conditions, are able to aim high and
achieve their aspirations.

The impact of family and community disadvantage is felt before a child enters school and is likely to have
a significant impact on their future educational attainment and life chances. Whilst the term ‘disadvantage’
is usually linked to a family’s income, a wider definition incorporating the child’s vulnerability in the context
of their family or community is more useful. For example, children living in a home where there is domestic
abuse, a parent has poor mental health and/or problematic usage of drugs or alcohol, are at greater risk of
experiencing mental illness and engaging in harmful behaviours. We also know that children with special
educational needs and/or disabilities may be disadvantaged.

A report from the Association for Young People’s Health suggests that many of the risk factors for poorer
outcomes amongst children and young people have been exacerbated by the pandemic, including financial
hardship, poor emotional health and wellbeing and academic pressures. Young people already facing
challenges in their lives (such as living in poverty, with a disability and/or in challenging family situations)
seem to have been hardest hit.

Early education has the potential to drive social mobility and improve outcomes for the next generation.
It is therefore essential that children arrive at school ready to learn. High quality care in the early years

of a child’s life supports better readiness for school, stronger cognitive skills and speech and language
development. Investing in children’s development in the early years leads to large payoffs for children,
communities and the wider economy. It is estimated that individuals with five or more good GCSEs have
average lifetime productivity gains of £100,000, compared to those with qualifications below this level.

Our services will be flexible and responsive to the needs of children and families, providing the right level
of support at the right time. Wherever possible children’s and families’ needs will be met by universal
services, however we will also invest in effective, targeted services that identify and support vulnerable
families at an early stage. Supporting families requires effective collaboration between partner services.
We will therefore work closely with partners, including through Leicestershire’s Children and Families
Partnership - a sub-group of Leicestershire’s Health and Wellbeing Board which brings together local
authorities, police, health, schools, probation and the voluntary sector - to help ensure children and young
people reach their full potential.

7.1 Every child gets the best start in life

The 1,001 days from pregnancy to the age of two set the foundations for an individual’s cognitive,
emotional and physical development. These 1,001 days are a critical time for development, and we are
committed to improving how we support families during the 1,001 critical days.

Leicestershire generally performs well in child and maternal health, with a lower rate of under-18
conceptions, smoking at the time of delivery and low birth weight babies than England. It also currently has
a slightly higher percentage of children achieving a good level of development at age 5 than the national
average, although performance on this measure has historically tended to be below comparators.

16 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



33

However, Leicestershire ranks in the worst 25% of county areas for the percentage of children achieving
the expected level of development at age 2-2.5yrs. It also performs poorly in terms of the percentage

of eligible 2 year olds taking up free early education in Leicestershire (an initiative focused on the most
socio-economically deprived households) and the percentage of children eligible for free school meals
who achieve a good level of development at age 5. There is also further work to do around maintaining
breastfeeding rates after initiation across the County.

There are 2 tiers of support for children with special educational needs (SEND): ‘SEN Support’ and
‘Education, Health and Care Plan’ (EHCP). EHCPs are the higher level of support. In Leicestershire, the
percentage of children with SEND who have an EHCP and achieve a good level of development by age 5 is
significantly higher than national average. However, for children on SEN Support, performance is below the
national average.

For the past 10 years in Leicestershire there has been a year-on-year increase in the rate of children who
are looked after in our care. Locally, as of 2019, Looked After Children were working below age related
expectations when they start school - 72% were below age related expectations for Personal, Social and
Emotional Development and 78% were below in Communication, Language and Literacy.

I What will success look like?

* Services working in more integrated and collaborative ways to support pre-school children and their
families

* Increase in the proportion of young children achieving a good level of development at foundation stage

I Our Commitments

Services working in more integrated and collaborative ways to support pre-school children and their
families

» We will focus on strengthening collaboration between partners to improve early education, health and
wellbeing outcomes for pre-school children

* We will work with partners across education, health and care to promote breastfeeding initiation and
continuation

* We will develop an integrated Early Years Pathway to ensure that vulnerable children are identified and
supported early

* We will develop an integrated communication strategy to promote the 1001 Critical Days Children’s
Manifesto

* We will join up how services for pre-school children and their families report on performance to support
a coherent understanding of our progress and where we need to improve

* We will help to ensure staff across health, care and education are informed about the needs of children
with SEND and available support

Increase in the proportion of children achieving a good level of development at foundation stage

* We will focus on narrowing the development gaps that affect children and families who are at the
greatest disadvantage (e.g. those who live in poverty or have a poor home environment, have special
educational needs and/or are in our care)

* We will support parents and families to build on their understanding of children’s needs so that they are
able to get their children off to a good start

17 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



34

* We will help families access free childcare and provide high-quality childcare and early education that is
fully inclusive and accessible

» We will support all childcare providers to offer sufficient high-quality early education places

» We will protect and where possible strengthen the service provided by our Children and Family
Wellbeing Centres

* We will provide greater clarity on what success looks like when children are ready for school and on how
we can support schools to be ready

7.2 Every child has access to good quality education

As of 2018/19, Leicestershire had a higher proportion of primary and secondary schools rated either good
or outstanding than the national average. The vast majority of children and families are offered their first
preference of school placement. Leicestershire also has better overall educational attainment rates than
the national average from key stages 1-4, although outcomes at A-Level are consistently below comparator
levels.

Although children in our care have significantly poorer educational outcomes than their peers,
Leicestershire performs well compared to other counties in this area. Additionally, educational attainment
for children with SEND who have an EHCP is better in Leicestershire than the national average at all key
stages except key stage 2. However, for children on SEN Support, educational attainment is consistently
below comparator levels. Further, for children in receipt of free school meals, educational attainment rates
at key stages 2 and 4 are consistently lower locally than the national average.

One of the key challenges in Leicestershire is a growing need for school places. Demand for EHCPs
to support children with SEND has also increased significantly locally, at a rate higher than regionally
or nationally. We recognise that the majority of children with SEND can and should have those needs
supported in a mainstream setting at the SEN Support stage, without the need for an EHCP.

I What will success look like?

* Sufficient, high quality mainstream school places and specialist SEND provision to meet growing
demand

* |Improved educational attainment amongst disadvantaged pupils (e.g. those in receipt of free school
meals, with SEN and/or a disability)

I Our Commitments

Sufficient, high quality mainstream school places and specialist SEND provision to meet growing
demand

* We will work with partners to ensure that admissions arrangements promote diversity and choice and
meet the needs of vulnerable groups

* We will ensure a sufficient supply of high-quality school places by monitoring capacity and extending or
building new schools where required

* We will implement an ambitious sufficiency programme to develop SEND provision across the local
area, including development of resources in pre-school settings and mainstream schools to promote
inclusion and expansion of existing special schools

18 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



35

» We will maintain strong arrangements for the management of our assets, and strengthen our
relationship with Academies, to ensure all school buildings (irrespective of their designation and funding
arrangements) are fit for purpose

Improved educational attainment amongst disadvantaged pupils

» We will aim to help school pupils catch up with learning missed during the pandemic and continue to
improve educational attainment

» We will focus on ensuring all children in our care access appropriate, stable education placements and
positive educational experiences. Our Virtual School will ensure children in care and care leavers receive
the best education possible and develop skills and knowledge for a successful future.

* We will work with partners through the SEND and Inclusion Board to ensure the culture of all
mainstream schools and providers is inclusive and staff are well-equipped and supported to meet the
learning needs of the vast majority of children, including those with SEND.

* We will work with further education colleges to develop opportunities for a more individualised learning
experience for young people with SEND.

* We will focus on improving the quality of EHCPs and developing the EHCP process and Annual Reviews
both within the local authority and between the local authority, clinical commissioning group and
provider services

* We will ensure that when a child or young person needs move to a different educational provision or
service, this is done in a timely manner with the appropriate information being made available so that
needs are well understood

7.3 Families are self-sufficient and enabled to be resilient

Many families have emerging or complex needs which require support to enable their children to achieve
good outcomes in life. To provide an effective response, we need to identify issues early, ensure joined-up
working between services and work directly with families.

In 2019/20, Leicestershire County Council achieved its target for the number of families achieving
significant and sustained progress through the Troubled Families programme, which aims to improve the
lives and outcomes for England’s most complex and ‘troubled’ families.

Disruption in family lives can lead to children missing education, with the impacts felt by children
themselves, families and society. Leicestershire has low rates of children missing education. The number
of elective home-educated (EHE) children has increased from approximately 150 six years ago to over 790
children which highlights the need to ensure families are well-equipped and supported to provide a suitable
education.

Leicestershire has a high rate of children with SEND who have an EHCP and this has increased in recent
years. As the majority of children with SEND can and should have those needs supported in a mainstream
setting at the SEN Support stage without the need for an EHCP, this may suggest a need to develop the
confidence and capacity of families to manage the needs of children with SEND.

I What will success look like?

* Families are able to identify their own support networks and feel more able to deal with issues as they
arise

* The Council continues to achieve its target for the number of families achieving significant and sustained
progress

19 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



36

I Our Commitments

» We will develop the Leicestershire Information and Support Directory and Local Offer to help families
access information, guidance, and support

» We will support the delivery of Citizens Advice services and crisis and hardship support for people in
need

* We will we work positively with parents and carers opting for EHE, offering a range of support to ensure
that statutory duties are met

* We will work across the early help partnership to ensure all agencies are able to identify families who
may require additional support at the earliest possible opportunity, and will work with partners to make
sure families receive the best response to their needs

* We will continue to prioritise investment in preventative services to help to avoid the need for children to
become looked after. We will ensure children who are at risk of family breakdown receive timely and, if
necessary, intensive support to help them to remain living with their families

» We will develop our support to young people who encounter emotional difficulties or require other
targeted early help support

7.4 Everyone is able to aim high and reach their full potential

Only 2% of children aged 16-17 in Leicestershire are not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET),
below the national average (2.7%). The sub-groups we know are most likely to be NEET are care leavers,
young carers, young offenders, young parents, and young people with learning and/or other disabilities. For
example, the proportion of children with SEND who have an EHCP and are NEET at ages 16-17 is 9.4%;
above the national average (8.9%).

The percentage of young people aged 19 with at least a level 2 qualification is consistently higher locally
than the national average, however for those from poorer backgrounds who claimed free school meals
during school, performance is consistently lower locally than the national average.

Leicestershire is in the best performing 25% comparators for the percentage of care leavers who are in
education, employment, or training as well as for the percentage of care leavers who are living in suitable
accommodation.

It is also in the best performing 25% comparators for the proportion of people aged 18-64 with a learning
disability who are in paid employment and the proportion who are living in their own home or with their
family. However, it is in the worst 25% of comparators for the proportion of those in contact with secondary
mental health services who are in paid employment, and below the average amongst comparators for the
proportion who are living independently.

I What will success look like?

* Below national average rate of vulnerable young people (e.g. unaccompanied asylum-seeking children,
those with SEN and/or disability, those who are from poorer backgrounds and/or care leavers) who are
NEET

* Above national average rates of disadvantaged adults (e.g. those with learning disabilities, autism and/or
mental health conditions) who are in paid employment and living independently

20 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



37

I Our Commitments

Below national average rate of vulnerable young people who are NEET

* We will challenge schools in relation to statutory individualised careers guidance for vulnerable groups

* We will monitor the progress of learners beyond age 16 to ensure good progress and identify those
at risk of becoming NEET in order to target them for additional support to participate in education or
training and make positive and well-informed choices

* We will identify the interests and skills of children in our care and provide them with information and
advice about educational and career options

* We will raise employers’ awareness of the issues affecting care leavers to help ensure they offer the right
support to care leaver employees

* Through our Teenagers with Babies Action Group, we will deliver actions to reduce NEET amongst
Teenage parents, such as ensuring seamless support pathways and improving access to educational
opportunities

* Qur Youth Offending Team will provide young offenders with dedicated Education Worker and Careers
Advisors to ensure they are actively engaged in education, training or employment and will advocate for
them with schools, colleges, alternative providers, and employers

* We will expand the range of alternative providers for young offenders and others for whom formal
educational placements are not suitable

Above national average rates of disadvantaged adults who are in paid employment and living
independently

* We will maintain a person-centred process to support navigation through transition, from child to
adulthood

» We will continue to offer engaging ‘first steps’ learning opportunities through our Adult Learning Service
as a way of increasing participation for disadvantaged learners, and to prepare them for a more formal
programme of learning

» We will work with all partners to promote and extend opportunities for supported employment for
disadvantaged people

* We will support people to live in the least restrictive environments possible, by developing more
supported accommodation, including ‘step down’ temporary accommodation, and exploring the benefits
of single accommodation units with on-site shared support for adults with mental ill-health

21 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



38

8. Strong Economy, Transport and
Infrastructure

This outcome aims to ensure that, using our local capabilities, innovations, and skills — we build a
productive, inclusive and sustainable economy at the cutting edge of science, technology and engineering.
It also reflects the need for our infrastructure to meet the demands of a growing population and economy,
by providing great connections and sufficient employment space and housing of a range of types and
tenure.

Our economy is primed for success. We have unrivalled assets such as a world-class university with
one of the UK'’s largest science parks, a central location with the largest distribution park in Europe and
the UK’s 2nd largest freight airport. Our strong and growing manufacturing sector forms the backbone
of our economy. Recently, the East Midlands Airport and Gateway Industrial Cluster sites in North West
Leicestershire were selected for Freeport Status. This could provide a significant boost to manufacturing
and logistics industries and create up to 60,000 additional jobs.

However, our economy faces significant challenges including lower productivity than the UK. This may be
in part due to a lack of training, investment and innovation. Productivity helps businesses to grow more
profitable and is a key determinant of the pay and living standards of residents.

The pandemic has also had a significant impact; leading to many jobs being classified as ‘vulnerable’
(particularly in hospitality, tourism, retail and manufacturing) and a contraction in job vacancies and hiring.
This has impacted workers in low pay and/or insecure jobs the most and increased the risk of lower-
skilled workers facing unemployment and job insecurity. Young people have been particularly affected by
a reduction in entry level positions and apprenticeships. The capacity and capability of many businesses
has also been significantly stretched in terms of their resilience and financial health, and rural areas

have experienced disruptions to harvesting and demand for agricultural produce, as well as supply chain
disruptions in the food and drink sector.

Pre-Covid, the Leicester and Leicestershire economy generated £24.5 billion in GVA, with 42,000
businesses and 538,000 jobs. Testament to its resilience and growth potential, we expect this to increase,
despite the impacts of the pandemic, to £30.2 billion and 568,000 jobs by 2030.

The specific priorities and commitments for this outcome, outlined in the following pages, will enable the
economy to recover from the Covid-19 pandemic and support long-term growth. To deliver them, we will
continue to work in close partnership with public sector partners, businesses, and universities. We will
focus on ensuring that people have the skills they need to access employment, as this will support a good
quality of life and help businesses to grow. We will ensure that infrastructure provides excellent connectivity,
enabling access to opportunities and opening up sites for development. As highlighted in the Clean, Green
Outcome, we also need to ensure that economic growth and infrastructure development supports the
transition to net zero carbon emissions.

8.1 There is close alighment between skill supply and demand

Manufacturing and logistics are the key employment sectors in Leicester and Leicestershire, and we aim
to accelerate growth in these areas. However, we also want to increase employment in business and
financial services, tourism and hospitality and creative design, as well as facilitate growth in life sciences,
environmental/low carbon technologies and space and aerospace. Local skills needs will also be driven
by the shortfall in overseas workers, caused by Covid-19 and the fall in EU workers. This is likely to have
a significant impact on the social care sector, which has already been facing recruitment and retention

22 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26


file:///C:\Users\AEpps\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\20ND95GW\Appendix 1 - Draft Strategic Plan 2022-26.docx#_The_economy_and_1
file:///C:\Users\AEpps\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\20ND95GW\Appendix 1 - Draft Strategic Plan 2022-26.docx#_The_economy_and_1

39

difficulties for many years. There will be a need to encourage life-long learning, and to improve skills
attainment across all of these priority sectors.

Leicestershire performs well in terms of the percentage of working-age population qualified to Levels 2+
and 3+, and the percentage of residents qualified to NVQ Level 4+ is similar to the national average. It also
has a good supply of graduates to the local labour market and a strong and improving further education
sector which provides a wide range of vocational training to meet local employer needs. However, there are
insufficient numbers of local young people choosing to pursue careers in Science, Technology, Engineering
& Mathematics (STEM), which is critical for our growth sectors.

Leicestershire has lower levels of in-work training than comparators and employers are reporting a lack of
skilled workers in key sectors which is impacting business performance. The Leicester and Leicestershire
Enterprise Partnership (LLEP)'s survey of local businesses in 2021 found that 21% of businesses had
recruitment difficulties, 60% required improvement in basic work-based skills and over a third in digital
skills.

Leicestershire has a lower unemployment rate than the national average. However, the rate has increased
locally during the pandemic; the rate of Job Seekers Allowance and Universal Credit claimants increased
from 1.6% in March 2020 to 3.3% in June 2021. Young people are likely to be disadvantaged due to
missing education, reduction in apprenticeship opportunities, a more competitive labour market and lack of
workplace digital skills.

I What will success look like?

* |Improvement in population skills and reduction in the proportion of employers reporting skills shortages
or gaps

* Increased opportunities in the labour market for young people and reduced unemployment and job
insecurity

I Our Commitments

Improvement in population skills and reduction in the proportion of employers reporting skills
shortages

* We will work with partners through the LLEP to:

* Capture and analyse labour market information to identify skills shortages and growth businesses

* Support the Further Education sector to expand and improve their facilities, especially where there is a
strong link to growth sectors

* Develop Skills Plans for priority sectors to promote relevant job opportunities and help businesses
meet their recruitment and skills needs

* Create a Leicester and Leicestershire Digital Skills Partnership to address digital skills deficiencies in
the workplace and wider society

* Focus on embedding employability skills so that individuals are well-prepared for employment and
attractive to employers

* Provide flexible leadership and management skills development programmes

* Promote enterprise skills programmes to help people think about self-employment and support start-
ups and existing businesses

23 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



40

Increased opportunities in the labour market for young people and reduced unemployment and job
insecurity

* We will provide information, advice, and guidance on the labour market to parents, teachers and young
people and promote STEM careers

* We will work with partners to identify pathways into employment and support youth engagement in
emerging, productive, and buoyant sectors

* We will work with partners to continue provision of youth, employment, and career services such as
Careers Hub and Youth Employment Hub

» We will work with partners to support the graduate careers and retention initiatives of local universities
and to incorporate graduate skills into enterprise support, innovation, and growth initiatives

* We will work with partners to produce an Apprenticeship Action Plan to address the decline in
apprenticeships due to Covid-19

* Qur Kickstart scheme will provide employment placements for young people aged 16-24 at risk of
becoming long-term unemployed

» We will work with local authorities, businesses, and education providers to support Leicestershire people
back into employment following the Covid-19 crisis through re-training/job matching and stimulating
entrepreneurialism

* Our Work + scheme will provide free one-to-one support, advice and information to people looking for
secure paid employment or training

8.2 Leicestershire has the infrastructure for sustainable growth

We need our infrastructure to support continuous economic growth, whilst helping to tackle the climate
emergency. There is a need to develop and promote sustainable forms of transport and decarbonise road
transport.

Leicestershire’s population is projected to rise to 860,618 by 2043 — an increase of 23% from 2018.
Leicester and Leicestershire’s Strategic Growth Plan identifies the need for 96,580 more homes by 2031
and a further 90,500 dwellings from 2031-50. Just under 200,000 new homes are therefore set to be
built by 2050. These will need to be supported by new roads, schools, transport, and other infrastructure —
estimated to cost £600m over the next 25 years.

The Strategic Growth Plan also identifies the need for an additional 367-423 hectares of land for
employment use by 2031. Since 2010, there has been a transformation of the provision of world class
business locations and premises in Leicester and Leicestershire; brand new Grade A office, technology
and manufacturing premises accommodate 5,000 high-technology jobs. There is a need to continuously
explore how existing employment areas can be supported and where new growth should be directed.

Road networks in Leicestershire are in fair condition with a relatively low percentage of roads requiring
consideration of structural maintenance, although the percentage is higher for unclassified roads. However,
unreliable journey times and congestion on local roads in county towns and on parts of the strategic road
network (M1 Junctions) are a frequent complaint. Further, the predominantly rural nature of the county
presents viability challenges for medium and long-distance public transport, which in turn means that

it can be difficult to identify opportunities to travel by sustainable modes. Where mid or long-distance

bus and rail opportunities exist, they may be infrequent, with long journey times, and stops located at
potentially inconvenient locations.

In terms of digital infrastructure, the pandemic has accelerated the pace of digital transformation of
businesses and public services, with employers expecting digital skills to become increasingly important.

24 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



41

Whilst this has created opportunities for enhanced business efficiency, productivity and resilience, it has
also exposed the ‘digital divide’ in society with residents unable to afford and/or use digital devices, rural
areas lacking access to high speed broadband or 4G or 5G services and independent retailers in our Towns
and Rural areas struggling to sell on-line or advertise themselves by social media.

I What will success look like?

* |nfrastructure capacity and capability supports growth, whilst supporting net zero carbon emissions

* Sufficient employment sites and premises for growth

I Our Commitments

Infrastructure capacity and capability supports growth, whilst supporting net zero carbon emissions

* Through our Corporate Asset Investment Fund, we own and manage a diverse portfolio of property and
other investment assets. We will use this to support growth in the county and ensure there is a diverse
range of properties and land assets available to meet the aims of economic development

» We will continue to provide safe, suitably maintained highways that support and encourage new housing
development and economic growth and employ a flexible approach to reviewing, amending, and
developing the network to reflect changing travel demand and traffic patterns

* We will maximise opportunities from technological innovations; utilising evidence gathered on the Major
Road Network and from key radial routes to support end to end journey planning and better traffic
management

» We will continue to press Government for long-term funding streams to help us maintain our highway
assets and support passenger transport services

* We will work in partnership with local bus operators to promote and champion the provision of
affordable, frequent, and high-quality passenger transport services and support with the recovery of
the passenger transport market following the Covid-19 pandemic by identifying opportunities to provide
access to essential services in the most cost effective and efficient way

* We will engage with the freight and logistics sector, to better understand the needs of the sector and
ensure that schemes are developed which support the efficient movement of freight into, around, and
out of Leicestershire

* We will work with partners through Midlands Connect to invest in strategic road and rail improvements
to reduce congestion, improve journey times and support housing growth (e.g. Midlands Rail Hub
proposal - rail infrastructure improvements to provide better rail links across the Midlands)

* We will continue engaging with HS2 Ltd to ensure that Leicester and Leicestershire’s interests are
protected and/or advanced throughout construction

* We will encourage and support active and sustainable travel options, where appropriate, by learning
from best practice and encouraging the uptake and use of electric vehicles and micro-mobility as
appropriate, including through provision of infrastructure

* We will work with partners through the LLEP to improve digital connectivity through broadband, Wi-
Fi and 5G connectivity in rural blackspots and will define and implementing the Council’s first digital
connectivity strategy

25 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



42

Sufficient employment sites and premises for growth

* We will work with partners to renew existing employment sites and premises where there is demand

* We will work with partners to maintain confidence and momentum of development of strategic sites and
the Freeport

8.3 Leicestershire is an attractive place where businesses flourish

The Leicestershire economy is dominated by small businesses - with 89.2% of businesses micro-sized
(employing 9 or fewer people). Building on the support from our growth hub and successful partnership
initiatives, we can continue the substantial progress made in the last 10 years, as evidenced by the growth
in number of businesses (+18% between 2014 and 2019) and improvements in start-up and survival
rates.

However, productivity rates are lower locally than the national average. Investment in research and
development (R&D) is a key driver of innovation and productivity growth. Investment in R&D in
Leicestershire has however been consistently below the national average; In 2016 R&D expenditure was
equivalent to 1.5% GVA for Leicestershire, Rutland, and Northamptonshire — below the UK average (1.7%),
and government target of 3% in the longer-term. This highlights the need to increase investment and
activity in R&D and innovation and to lever existing R&D capabilities from our leading corporations.

Leicester and Leicestershire is a prime location for international businesses — with 18% of all businesses
exporting overseas in 2020, and 83% of exporters selling to markets in the EU. Over the next 10 years,
businesses must adapt to the new challenges and opportunities posed by Covid-19 and EU-Exit, as
illustrated by the value of goods exported from the UK declining by 16% throughout 2020 — the largest
drop since comparable records began.

I What will success look like?

* Growth and expansion of existing innovation and R&D strengths

* Further increase in business density; particularly in growth sectors and knowledge-based businesses

I Our Commitments

Growth and expansion of existing innovation and R&D strengths

» We will work with partners through the LLEP Innovation Board to drive forward accelerated innovation
priorities

» We will work with partners to ensure the R&D sector has sufficient skills, capabilities and support to
retain and attract new R&D programmes

* We will support R&D funding bids, innovation and knowledge transfer initiatives and increase public and
private investment in R&D and innovation

* We will work with partners to increase opportunities for collaboration, knowledge exchange, pooling of
resources, and applied problem solving

* We will support development of business and university networks to promote technology adoption and
digital transformation

* We will work with businesses to improve the culture of innovation and awareness of the business
performance benefits

26 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



43

Further increase in business density; particularly in growth sectors and knowledge-based businesses

* We will continue to support the key growth sectors of life sciences, space and earth observation,
sports and sport science, advanced engineering, ICT, food and drink, logistics and professional and
financial services — as well as the locally important sectors of agriculture, textiles, creative and cultural,
construction, tourism and the visitor economy, and the voluntary and non-profit sectors

* We will work with partners to encourage and support international business expansion, including in the
Freeport site

* We will develop and implement the Freeport strategy and SME support for exporting, identifying key
sectors and opportunities

* We will continue to provide advice and support to businesses to assist recovery from Covid-19 and
adaptation to the new EU trading relationships

8.4 Economic growth delivers increased prosperity for all

We aim for local economic growth to advance equality by creating opportunities for all, and for the benefits
of increased prosperity to be distributed fairly.

Leicestershire is not deprived overall; the county is ranked 137th out of 152 upper tier authorities
in England for Multiple Deprivation, where 1st is the most deprived. However, pockets of significant
deprivation exist; four neighbourhoods in the county fall within the most deprived decile in England.

There is a lower number of children living in poverty locally than the average amongst county authorities
and a lower percentage of children in secondary schools receiving free school meals. However, the
percentage is higher than comparators for nursery and primary school children. Further, Gross Disposable
Household Income (GDHI) is lower locally than average amongst county authorities.

Leicestershire has a low rate of households assessed as being at risk of homelessness, ranking in the
best performing 25% comparators. However, financial pressures on residents are likely to increase as
government Covid-19 support measures end. Local survey data suggests that over half of residents are
worried about the economic wellbeing of their friends and family and significantly more are worried about
their own economic well-being.

I What will success look like?

* Growth in Gross Value Added (GVA) corresponds with an increase in GDHI and a reduction in the
percentage of children receiving free school meals

I Our Commitments

» We will focus on supporting inclusive economic growth in the disadvantaged areas and groups of
Leicestershire

* Our Work + scheme will provide free one-to-one support, advice and information to people looking for
secure paid employment or training

27 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



[
a

44

8.5 Leicestershire has the right homes in the right places to meet needs

Housing is generally an area of good performance, as Leicestershire ranks in the best performing 25% of
comparators for the rates of new houses and affordable houses built. However, expensive house prices in
rural areas puts housing out of reach for many and Leicestershire has a high rate of local authority owned
homes which are ‘non-decent’ (an issue in Charnwood, Hinckley and Bosworth, North West Leicestershire
and Melton). As highlighted, there is a need for 187,096 new houses by 2050, with 96,580 of those
required by 2031. These will need to be low carbon developments and include affordable housing. The
number of older people living in Leicestershire is also forecast to increase significantly, and many will
require specialist accommodation.

I What will success look like?

* Leicestershire is on track to deliver the 187,096 new dwellings required by 2050

I Our Commitments

* We will work with developers, landowners, and statutory agencies to remove the barriers to development

* We will focus development in major strategic locations to reduce the amount that takes place in existing
towns, villages, and rural areas. This will allow us to plan for new housing and employment with new
and improved roads, public transport, schools, health services, shops, and open space

» We will explore ways to secure financial contributions through development to support essential
infrastructure (e.g. highway capacity, schools etc)

* Through the Leicestershire Rural Housing Group, we will guide work to assess and meet the housing
needs of people in the villages of Leicestershire

* We will work with partners and developers to help ensure all housing developments are low carbon and
enhance biodiversity

» We will develop further the Social Care Investment Plan to secure suitable accommodation choices for
social care service users

1

28 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



45

9. Keeping People Safe and Well

This outcome aims to ensure the people of Leicestershire live in a healthy environment and have the
opportunities and support they need to take control of their health and wellbeing. It also aims to ensure
people are safe and protected from harm.

Health and wellbeing is an asset to individuals, communities and wider society. Good mental and physical
health is a basic precondition for people to take an active role in family, community, and work life.
However, these benefits are undermined by health inequalities. Those living in the most disadvantaged
areas often have poorer health outcomes, as do some ethnic minority groups and vulnerable people.
Health inequalities have been further exposed by Covid-19 as it has taken a disproportionate toll on groups
already facing the worst health outcomes.

Health inequalities are driven by factors beyond age, gender, genetics, lifestyle, social and community
networks, socio-economic, cultural and environmental factors. The Council has influence and responsibility
over some of these ‘wider determinants of health’ such as education, housing, transport, culture and clean
air. It also fosters economic opportunity which is reflected in the supply and quality of jobs in the local area.
Further, it empowers people to help themselves and each other, for example through volunteering and local
initiatives.

We will work with partners through Leicestershire’s Health and Wellbeing Board to improve the health

and wellbeing of children and adults and reduce health inequalities. This will include addressing the wider
determinants of health, with a focus on breaking down intergenerational cycles of deprivation and poor
health outcomes. We will ensure that everyone has access to information and advice which supports their
wellbeing and enables them to think ahead and plan for their future. We will promote wellbeing by building
upon peoples’ strengths and community assets. We will identify people who may be at risk of needing
social care support in the future and help them to gain or regain the skills to live independently. We will
also enable those requiring further support to take control of their health and wellbeing and to live active,
independent, and fulfilling lives through easy access to effective, personalised care.

To help keep people safe, we will work with partners through Leicestershire’s Safer Communities

Board to strengthen links between work-streams being undertaken to reduce crime and disorder within
communities. We will also fulfil our statutory duties to safeguard vulnerable children and adults who have
experienced, or may be at risk of experiencing, abuse, or neglect. This will include work with partners
through the Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Adults' Board and Safeguarding Children’s Partnership
to coordinate and continuously review and improve safeguarding practices.

9.1 People are safe in their daily lives

Total crime levels are relatively low in Leicestershire compared to other areas and have reduced in recent
years. The number of people killed or seriously injured on the County’s roads is also low and public
satisfaction with road safety is high. Leicestershire also has low rates of youth offending.

However, during 2020/21 there were significant increases in: hate crime (+32%); sexual offences (+32%);
drug offences (+24%) and violence with injury (+13%). There was also an increase in reported anti-social
behaviour across the County during 2020/21. There has been a reduction in the percentage of residents
who feel safe when outside in their local area after dark, from 88% in 2019/20 to 79% in 2020/21. A
survey by the Leicestershire Police and Crime Commissioner found that respondents tended to attribute this
to a lack of street lighting and the proximity of anti-social behaviour and crime.

From 2018/19 to 2020/21, there has been a year-on-year reduction in the number of referrals to child
safeguarding for child sexual exploitation. However, the rate of referrals for child criminal exploitation has

29 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



46

however increased slightly from 140 in 2019/20 to 145 in 2020/21. There is a risk that child criminal
exploitation and violence related to young people may increase or become more visible during Covid-19
recovery.

I What will success look like?

* Less crime and fear of crime and increase in the percentage of residents who feel safe when outside in
their local area after dark

* Fewer children and young people involved in and impacted by criminal behaviour

I Our Commitments

Less crime and fear of crime and increase in the percentage of residents who feel safe when outside
in their local area after dark

* We will work with Police and other agencies to ensure anti-social behaviour is dealt with swiftly and
effectively

* We will work with partners to raise awareness of and tackle all forms of hate crime in which people are
targeted based on their personal characteristics

» We will help to reduce the prevalence of modern slavery and trafficking by ensuring our suppliers adhere
to the highest standards of ethics and working with the Leicester, Leicestershire, and Rutland Modemn
Slavery Action Group to raise awareness, disrupt crimes and safeguard victims

* We will work closely with partners and communities through the Violence Reduction Unit to prevent
serious violence

* We will work with partners to raise awareness of and tackle scammers and rogue traders who exploit
vulnerable consumers

* We will enforce standards related to food and product safety

Fewer children and young people involved in and impacted by criminal behaviour

» We will deliver a robust, whole-family approach to prevent children and young people from engaging in
criminal behaviour

* We will work with partners to provide safe spaces for children and young people to play, without the risk
of being groomed into criminal exploitation

» We will deliver preventative street-based work with young people targeted in areas with high levels of
anti-social behaviour

* We will identify and address the exploitation of children and young people and provide care and support
to those affected

9.2 People at the most risk are protected from harm

There is an upward trend in demand for child safeguarding, with an increase in the rate of Section 47
enquiries (initiated to decide whether action should be taken to safeguard a child suspected to be suffering
or at risk of suffering harm) and children on child protection plans. The rate of children looked after by the
local authority has also increased year-on-year for the past 10 years.

Whilst the rate of reported domestic abuse-related incidents remains below the national average, it has
increased in Leicestershire from 21.1 per 1,000 population in 2017/18 to 23.1 in 2019/20 and during

30 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



47

2020/21 there was a 20% rise in Domestic Violence with Injury and a rise in psychological abuse.
Domestic abuse has also been a more prominent feature in child safeguarding cases during the last year.

What will success look like?

Safeguarding approaches are effective in recovery from Covid-19 and informed by learning from the
pandemic

Vulnerable people are identified and protected from harm and abuse

Our Commitments

Safeguarding approaches are effective in recovery from Covid-19 and informed by learning from the
pandemic

We will focus on identifying and responding to hidden harm (e.g. self-neglect, mental ill-health and/or
learning disabilities, domestic abuse)

We will support care homes with Infection Control, vaccination, and Personal Protective Equipment
support to minimise Covid-19 outbreaks

We will risk assess and quality assure care providers to ensure services are safe and protect vulnerable
children and adults

We will work with partners to review the response to and forward implications of Covid-19 and recovery
work regarding safeguarding

Vulnerable people are identified and protected from harm and abuse

We will improve how we work with families to safeguard babies by ensuring robust procedures are in
place and raising awareness of risk factors

We will develop a communications strategy to support partners to deliver universal safety messages to
children and young people

We will work with partners to develop joint responses to risk including child sexual exploitation, domestic
abuse, gangs, missing from home

We will focus on combatting sexual violence and domestic abuse by developing a Domestic Abuse
Strategy, protecting all survivors and their families in safe and appropriate accommodation and
improving our understanding of perpetrators and how to respond to them

We will develop trauma-informed practices and offer direct work to support children to recover from
Adverse Childhood Experiences

We will ensure that work with young people to reduce risk and vulnerability assists prevention of adult
safeguarding need

We will work with communities to prevent people becoming victims and ensure they know how to seek
help and have the confidence to do so

We will develop understanding of equality and diversity issues and the impact on access to safeguarding
services

We will review and change systems to ensure that the new Liberty Protection Safeguards Legislation and
codes of practice are in place

31 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



48

9.3 People enjoy long lives in good health

The health of people in Leicestershire is generally better than the England average, as it is one of the 20%
least deprived counties in England. Life expectancy for both men and women is higher in Leicestershire
than the England average. However, healthy life expectancy (an estimate of how many years people might
live in a ‘healthy’ state) is only marginally higher than the national average and there are significant health
inequalities in the county, as life expectancy is 6.3 years lower for men and 5.0 years lower for women in
the most deprived areas of Leicestershire than in the least deprived areas.

As highlighted, health outcomes are influenced by a range of social, economic and environmental factors,
known as the ‘wider determinants of health’. Air pollution, particularly fine particulate matter (PM2.5), is a
significant health hazard. PM2.5 is the 3rd leading cause of preventable deaths in Leicestershire.

Additionally, two thirds of adults, and one third of children in year 6, are either overweight or obese. This
increases their risk of having long-term conditions like type 2 diabetes and reduces expected lifespan.
There has also been a rise in adults classified as physically inactive from 19.5% in 2018/19 to 21.9%
in 2019/20. Whilst these figures are similar to the national average, some areas of the county have
higher rates of overweight/obesity and physical inactivity than England. Physical inactivity has also been
exacerbated by the pandemic, with the deconditioning of the population during lockdown restrictions.

In terms of mental health and wellbeing, Leicestershire has a high rate of people reporting a low
happiness score and a high rate reporting a high anxiety score. Although there is a low rate of suicides
in Leicestershire compared to other counties, the county has a high rate of excess deaths amongst those
aged under 75 with a severe mental iliness. These excess deaths are explained not only by suicides and
accidents but also physical illnesses; studies show that that all-cause mortality in people with severe
mental illness is 2 to 3.5 times higher than in the general population. There has also been a significant
increase in the number of cases referred to adult social care mental health teams during the pandemic,
which has also occurred across the country. Surveys and cases also suggest that ongoing Covid-19
restrictions are having an impact on mental health of children and young people.

I What will success look like?

* Improved healthy life expectancy and reduced health inequalities
* Increased proportion of residents with a healthy weight

* |Improved mental wellbeing and reduced prevalence of mental ill health

I Our Commitments

Improved healthy life expectancy and reduced health inequalities

* We will focus on breaking down intergenerational cycles of deprivation and poor health, promoting new
ways of working to tackle disadvantages

* Through Healthy Together 0-19 we will provide Health Visiting and School Nursing to support the health
and wellbeing of children and young people

* We will provide information and advice to enable people to access services, facilities and resources
which contribute towards wellbeing

» We will deliver a wider determinants programme of work to address the range of social, economic and
environmental factors which influence health outcomes, thereby improving health and reducing health
inequalities. This will include for example our work with partners to improve air quality.

32 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



49

* We will embed a Health Equity in All Policies approach to ensure policy decisions help to improve health
outcomes and reduce health inequalities

* We will identify those at risk of needing social care support in the future and intervene early wherever
possible to maintain wellbeing

Increased proportion of residents with a healthy weight

* We will provide weight management support and guidance to residents, so that they can achieve and
maintain a healthy weight

» We will work with partners through Active Together (Leicestershire and Rutland Sport) to support people
to get and stay active; ensure physical activity and sport facilities are high quality and accessible and
promote the county as a premier location for sport businesses

* We will work with partners in a ‘whole-system’ approach to deliver the Healthy Weight Strategy; creating
an environment which facilitates healthy choices and supports individuals to be physically active and
maintain healthy weight

Improved mental wellbeing and reduced proportion of residents experiencing mental ill health

* We will promote positive mental health and improve awareness of risk factors for poor mental health to
increase resilience

* We will learn from and sustain the excellent customer satisfaction with our cultural, wellbeing and adult
learning services; promoting and facilitating access to our libraries, museums and learning centres to
promote the wellbeing of residents and their communities

* We will implement Making Every Contact Count Plus to make the most of opportunities to support
peoples’ wellbeing

* We will work with partners to improve access to mental health services for all ages to promote recovery
and independence

» We will work with partners to ensure the early detection and treatment of child mental health and
wellbeing needs

9.4 Carers and people with care needs are supported to live active, independent,
and fulfilling lives

Leicestershire’s reablement services effectively support those with physical or mental health needs

to maintain or regain their independence and avoid unnecessary admissions to hospital or residential
care; In 2020/21 Leicestershire ranked in the best 25% of comparators for reablement outcomes.
Additionally, Leicestershire has low rates of adults aged either 18-64 or 65+ being permanently admitted
into residential or nursing care. This is important because residential care is an expensive resource for
individuals and the local authority and research suggests that people tend to prefer alternative options.

Leicestershire also has a high proportion of people with social care needs who are in receipt of a direct
payment or personal budget; enabling people to access personalised care and support by choosing
provision which is suitable to meeting their outcomes.

However, there is a need for improvement in the proportion of people who find it easy to access
information about adult social care services and in the quality of life and overall satisfaction of those who
receive care and support. In 2019/20, Leicestershire also ranked in the worst 25% comparators for the
proportion of adult service users who felt safe or that they had control over their daily lives. The level of

33 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



50

social contact in the daily lives of carers and users of social services also remains comparatively low and an
area for improvement, something which the Covid-9 crisis has made worse.

As mentioned, the number of older people, and those living with dementia and/or mobility problems, is
forecast to increase significantly. Some will require housing adaptions to meet their changing needs and
others will need more specialist accommodation or support.

What will success look like?

Increase in the proportion of people who find it easy to access information and advice about adult social
care services

Improvements in the experiences of those who receive adult social care and support

Carers are recognised, valued, and supported to undertake their caring role, whilst maintaining their own
health and wellbeing

Our Commitments

Increase in the proportion of people who find it easy to access information and advice about adult
social care services

We will improve access to information and advice through our digital plans including the directory of
services and First Contact Plus

We will work closely with partners to take a more proactive approach to providing advice and
information relating to housing, including development of social prescribing and empowering frontline
staff to encourage people to take responsibility for their housing needs

We will continue to provide good quality information, advice, and guidance for those living with dementia
and their informal carers

Improvements in the experiences of those who receive adult social care and support

We will implement activities identified through research with our customers to improve satisfaction with
our adult social care services

We will work with partners to deliver integrated services at the point of delivery with seamless transitions
between health and social care

We will provide effective crisis response, reablement services, equipment, and technology to enable
people to be self-reliant

We will review progress on the Living Well with Dementia Strategy 2019-22 and co-produce a new
strategy and action plan with our partners

We will continue to ensure care services and support procured by the Council provide a good supply and
quality of dementia care

We will explore solutions to transport issues, enabling older people to remain active and independent
and connected to community

We will support people in receipt of direct payments and Personal Assistants to choose the provision
suitable to meeting their outcomes

We will develop further the Social Care Investment Plan to secure suitable accommodation choices for
social care service users

34 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



51

* We will work with providers of services to maximise peoples’ opportunities for independence, health,
and wellbeing

Carers are recognised, valued, and supported to undertake their caring role, whilst maintaining their
own health and wellbeing

* We will work with partners to identify carers and ensure they are signposted, if required, to relevant
information and services

» We will ensure accurate advice, information and guidance is available to assist carers to navigate health
and social care services

* We will listen and involve carers in the development of services that enable them to continue to provide
their caring role

* We will develop carer-friendly communities by awareness-raising within existing community groups

» We will promote health checks for carers to help them to maintain their own physical and mental health
and wellbeing

* We will work with housing and other organisations to ensure carers can access technology, equipment,
or adaptations

* We will ensure carers have access to assessments which will determine if social care services have a
statutory duty to assist them

35 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



52

10. Enabling Services

Delivery of this Plan is dependent on a wide range of ‘back-office’ services such as Finance, IT, HR, Legal,
Communications, Property Services, Strategy and Business Intelligence, Democratic Services and Business
Support. These organisation-wide functions support frontline services by providing business support based
on specialised knowledge, best practice and technology. They also support good governance, ensuring
that:

* Resources are directed in accordance with agreed policy and according to priorities
* There is sound and inclusive decision making
* There is clear accountability for the use of those resources

Good governance is about ensuring the Council is doing the right things, in the right way and for the benefit
of the communities it serves. It leads to high standards of management, strong performance, effective

use of resources and positive outcomes. The diagram to the right illustrates the core principles of good
governance which the Council is committed to and how they relate to each other: Principles A and B
permeate implementation of principles C to G.

Back-office services have a key role in ensuring that the Council adheres to these principles and achieves
positive outcomes for service users. For example, Strategy and Business Intelligence support principle C
by assisting decision-makers in defining the Council’s overall vision and outcomes. Additionally, Finance
support Principle F by enforcing financial discipline, strategic resource allocation and efficient service
delivery.

C.

Defining outcomes
in terms of sustainable
economic, sacial and

% environmental benefits

G.

Implementing good
practices in transparency,
reporting, and audit, to
deliver effective
accountability

Determining the
interventions necessary
to optimize the
achievement of the
intended outcomes

EBehaving with integrity,
demonstratimg strong commitment
to athical values, and respecting

the rule of the law

Ensuring openness and
comprehensive stakeholder
engagement

E

Managing risks and
performance through
rabust imtermal control
and streng public
financial management

E.

Developing the
entity’s capacity,
including the capability
of its leadership and
the individuals
within it

36 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



53

10.1 Leicestershire County Council Values and Behaviours

Good governance flows from shared values and culture. Our values, set out below, underpin everything we
do and describe how we will deliver this Plan.

Trust and
Respect

We enable our staff to take
ownership and be accountable
for their own performance,
actions and decisions. We
value diversity and listen
to the views of others.

Openness and
Transparency

We are honest with the
people we work with and
serve. We share information
and communicate clearly,

Positivity
We find the best way to get
things done. We challenge
ourselves to deliver high-
quality services and inspire
others to deliver results.

Flexibility

We are adaptable in order
to support the needs of
the business — working

collaboratively and supporting
colleagues.

11. Monitoring Outcome Delivery

Council officers will oversee delivery of this Plan through Outcome Boards which will meet on a quarterly
basis. These will ensure that the Council maintains focus on achieving the outcomes throughout service
planning and delivery and that the aims of this Plan are reflected in all relevant supporting strategies.

The Council's Scrutiny Committees will receive quarterly reports on progress in delivering the outcomes
in this Plan and our Annual Performance and Benchmarking Reports will provide a summary of progress
each year.

Progress in delivering the outcomes will also be monitored internally by the Outcome Boards through
updates on delivery of key activities supporting outcome delivery along with reviews of Leicestershire’s
performance on the Performance Indicators set out in Appendix A. Updates on outcome delivery and
performance will be shared with our Corporate Management Team, led by the Chief Executive, to inform
strategic decision-making and resource allocation.

5 - el e wi, L
-

37 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



54

12. Medium Term Financial Strategy

The Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) provides information on its financial planning over
a four year period. Our latest Strategy, covering 2021-25, focuses on protecting frontline services and
weathering the coronavirus crisis. The MTFS, along with other plans and strategies such as the Strategic
Change Portfolio, aligns with and underpins the Strategic Plan.

The Council continues to operate in an extremely challenging financial environment following a decade of
austerity and spending pressures, particularly from social care. The position has also been severely affected
by Covid-19 and the ongoing financial impacts of the pandemic are unclear. There is also significant
uncertainty and risk around future funding levels.

What will success look like?

A credible 4-year financial plan to deliver at least 2-years of balanced budget followed by 2-years with a
financial gap that is at a manageable level

A financial plan that reflects the council’s key priorities

Delivery of planned savings and active pipeline of new initiatives

Sustainable level of service growth, particularly in social care

SEND capital and revenue costs contained within designated external funding streams

Capital programme that balances support for the Council’s priorities with financial sustainability
Balance-sheet that supports the Council’s resilience to financial shocks

Above ‘normal’ share of eligible funding schemes secured and sufficient developer contributions towards
the cost of local infrastructure

Progress on Fair Funding to increase Leicestershire’s share of national funding

Our Commitments

We will raise awareness inside and outside of the Council of our financial position and the challenges
faced

We will maintain transparency around our savings proposals

We will target efficiency savings and new income generation before service reductions

We will ensure regular updating of assumptions to support the efficient flow of resources to Council
priorities

We will promote a culture of forward planning to ensure there is time for corrective action

We will embed financial discipline in decision making to increase value for money assurance for Council
Taxpayers

Through our Corporate Asset Investment Fund, we will continue to invest in commercial schemes which
support the Council’s budget

38 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



55

13. Strategic Change Portfolio

The Council has long held an internal approach to transformation that ensures we respond effectively

to national and local drivers of change, including the need to transform local services whilst seeking to
maintain or improve outcomes. The Council’s Strategic Change Portfolio (SCP) brings together the collective
response to these drivers of change, delivered through four primary programmes:

* Sustainable Finances
* Customer & Digital

* Carbon Reduction

* Ways of Working

Overseen by the Council’s Transformation Delivery Board, and managed through Departmental Change
and Programme Boards, the SCP contains key targets and deliverables for each programme as described
below.

13.1 Sustainable Finances Programme

The savings requirements contained within the Council's annually refreshed Medium Term Financial
Strategy remain a central driver for the Council’s change portfolio. However, the scale of the financial and
transformation challenge is increasing, with the simple changes having been made and the straightforward
savings long-since delivered. What remains is complex change, often involving multiple partners and many
risks.

The body of work contained within the portfolio, refreshed annually, currently represents future savings
targets in excess of £48m, including £21m for SEND.

13.2 Customer & Digital Programme

The Covid-19 pandemic has changed customer expectations of how our services should be delivered

and the need for more immediate access to information and support via a broader range of channels is
greater than ever before. In response to the changing needs of our citizens we will focus on developing and
delivering against an improved, council-wide customer and channel strategy which supports the delivery of
modern and effective services in the most efficient and sustainable way. By promoting innovative, digital
ways of working, we will seek to shape the Council’s interaction with its customers as part of our digital
revolution and to enable improved customer journeys leading to an enhanced customer experience and
faster, first time resolution of customer needs.

By 2024...

* |nnovation will be our business as usual
* Automation and digital will have improved services and reduced cost

* Customer journeys for staff and residents will be simple

39 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



56

I What will success look like?

* Customers directed to the right channel, at the right time, in the most efficient way
* Qur customer channels maximise citizen value whilst reducing the cost of service

* A whole system approach is taken to designing our customer journey and back office processes

I Our Commitments

Customers directed to the right channel, at the right time, in the most efficient way

* We will further develop our Customer and Digital strategies to shape our delivery of services

» We will increase our customer understanding and actively involve our customers to inform our channel
development

* Through engagement with groups such as the Leicestershire Equalities Challenge Group, we will
continuously seek to understand and mitigate the impact of digitalisation and channel development on
those with protected characteristics, to ensure services remain accessible to all

» We will improve our front-end communications interfaces to support the routing of customer enquiries to
the right channel at the right time

* We will deliver a new target operating model for our Customer Service Centre
* We will support high-quality, consistent customer experience council-wide

» We will enhance the customer experience through improved digital services

Our customer channels maximise citizen value whilst reducing the cost of service

» We will increase the amount of automation for repetitive, low value activities and integrations

» We will increase customer adoption of improved digital solutions driving a cultural shift to “digital by
choice”

* We will improve our ability to resolve queries on first contact using the optimal channel

» We will identify opportunities to reduce the cost of service provision through more effective deployment
of resources and/or efficiency savings

A whole system approach is taken to designing our customer journey and back-office processes
* We will work jointly with departments to develop and deliver improved customer journeys
* We will improve our contact and system data to inform continuous improvement activity

* We will seek to exploit emerging technologies and system integration where possible to enable more
streamlined end-to-end working

13.3 Carbon Reduction Programme

The Carbon Reduction Programme aims to achieve net zero carbon from the Council's own operations
by 2030, with an interim target of 64% reduction in greenhouse gas emissions by 2025 (compared to
2016/17 emissions)

The Council's emissions are set out in our annual Greenhouse Gas Emissions Report (GHG) and expressed
in a standard measure of tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (CO2e) in line with national guidance which
follows the international Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard. Existing

40 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



57

efforts and future opportunities to reduce our carbon emissions from internal operations were documented,
resulting in the development of a draft roadmap to net-zero emissions by 2030.

The Council is in a good position in comparison to many other authorities due to the quantity and quality of
data we have in relation to our emissions and our historic efforts to reduce emissions which date back as
far as 2008/09 Overall, in 2019/20, the council had reduced its greenhouse gas emissions from its own
operations by 67% to 11, 663 tCO2e compared to 35, 778 tCO2e 2008/09.

The impact of Covid-19 has been seen most significantly in business mileage and to a lesser degree

in emissions from our estates, and an emerging objective is to look to retain as much of these carbon
reductions as possible, primarily through close engagement with our Ways of Working Programme. Even
before the impacts of Covid-19 on carbon emissions are considered, Leicestershire County Council is
ahead of target in the delivery of net-zero emissions by 2030.

As highlighted, the recognition of the climate and biodiversity emergencies mean that there is increased
local, national and international policy commitments to address the issues. This has led to increasing
opportunities to secure external funding and investment. The most recent success has been in our bid for
decarbonisation funding, securing £3.6m towards works on our key buildings, including expansion of the
biomass heating system across County Hall.

However, meeting the ambitious net-zero 2030 target remains a significant challenge, particularly in light of
the challenging financial position of the council and demands on staff resources There is also the risk that
national legislation or local policies change, impacting on our baseline or possible solutions to decarbonise
our operations.

I What will success look like?

* Net-zero carbon emissions from the Council’s own operations by 2030, with an interim 64% reduction
by 2025

* Leicestershire County Council is a climate active organisation — carbon reduction and adapting to climate
change are included in decision making

I Our Commitments

* We will complete an assessment of the cost and technology implications of achieving net zero carbon by
2030 for the council

* We will produce a Net Zero Carbon 2030 Plan for the council
* We will reduce our demand for energy, increase our use and generation of clean energy

* We will explore opportunities to remove carbon from the atmosphere through nature based solutions
such as tree planting

* We will include net zero carbon criteria in our decision making

* We will create a culture for carbon reduction through communications, training, tools and guidance

41 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



58

13.4 Ways of Working Programme

The Covid-19 pandemic saw a huge shift in organisational culture — with many working from home for
the first time. This brought about a change in mentality around how we work with each other and how
we serve our customers. It led to a wholescale rethinking of how departments and teams need to operate

in the future; including the need for a higher degree of flexibility and more remote working than previously
thought possible.

In the latter half of 2020, the Workplace Programme Board, along with wider stakeholders came together
to rescope the vision and objectives into a new programme called “Ways of Working” — building on the
already great foundations and principles established through the workplace programme as well as key
learnings and opportunities presented throughout the pandemic in relation to changing ways of working.

I What will success look like?

* All staff are provided with the technology and training needed to do their job effectively
* The way we work embodies continuous improvement, innovation, and ambition

* Council-operated workplaces are a shared resource based on need, where staff and customers can
collaborate

HOW are we doing this?

OO0 OA8 = A

-» Laptops -» Leadership =¥ Collaboration

=2inls =» Smarter working =» Improved space
% Smartphones - Culture ¥ Reduce cost

- Remote Access -» Our new People Strategy = Activity based

Ability to work remotely Permission to work Compliment [0 working
and on the move rematety and on the move remotety and on the move
Mo longer fixed to an Culture of smarter Truly flexible workplaces
office or desk working and trust

I Our Commitments

All staff are provided with the technology and training needed to do their job effectively
* All staff will have an assigned ‘worker style’ and the IT kit they need

* AllIT equipment will be centrally owned and replaced in good time to ensure technology is effective and
productive

* All staff will have the ability to work remotely through specialist technology, software, and remote access
—no one will be tied to a specific location

* Where appropriate, staff meetings will be ‘digital by default’ - hybrid and face-to-face meetings will be
supported with investment in workplace technology and collaboration spaces

42 |eicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



59

The way we work embodies continuous improvement, innovation, and ambition

* We will focus on objectives and outputs not on presenteeism for office-based staff

* Staff - in consultation with managers - will be empowered to choose the right location to deliver their
work - freedom to choose with responsibility to meet service and customer needs first

* Senior leaders and managers will lead by example — champion > role model > challenge

Council-operated workplaces are a shared resource based on need, where staff and customers can
collaborate

* Our workplaces will be set up to better support collaboration, productivity, wellbeing, and customer
service

* We will prioritise space for activities, not individuals - flexibility will be the norm and use of fixed desks
will be kept to @ minimum

» We will all work in the most appropriate location for the task we are doing rather than being at a council
office or workplace by default

* Staff will be encouraged to work as flexibly as possible, using a mix of workplaces (offices, working from
home, remote working) to best meet service and customer needs, and support staff wellbeing.

43 Leicestershire County Council Strategic Plan 2022-26



Leicestershire
County Council

60

V0451



61 Agenda Item 9
M Leicestershire
County Council

HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE: 4 NOVEMBER 2021

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT AND TRANSPORT

NATIONAL BUS STRATEGY

Purpose of report

1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update on work associated with the
implementation of ‘Bus Back Better’ the National Bus Strategy, setting out the
financial implications for the Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan, which will
inform the proposals for an associated Enhanced Partnership plan and scheme, in
line with the Department for Transport’s (DfT) requirements and timescales as
specified in the NBS and associated guidance (the guidance).

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions

2. In October 2018 the Environment and Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee
considered a report on the Authority’s draft Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy
(draft PTPS). Further to this, in October 2018, Cabinet approved the PTPS.

3. In May 2019, the County Council declared a Climate Emergency. The updated 2020
Environment Strategy sets out how the Council will reduce the environmental impacts
of travel and transport. Providing frequent, high quality passenger transport services is
a key element in delivering the Climate Change commitment and the Environment
Strategy.

4. In November 2020 the Cabinet approved the Leicester and Leicestershire Strategic
Transport Priorities document (2020-2050), which highlights where Leicestershire
County Council and Leicester City Council will work together to deliver common
transport aims and objectives. Its principle aims including:

support the transition to a low carbon and circular economy;

adapting to climate change;

improve connectivity;

support and drive the economy to unlock growth;

support the efficient movement of both people and goods around and through
the County.

5. InJune 2021 the Cabinet approved the establishment of an Enhanced Partnership
Scheme(EPS) and publication of a Statutory Notice to that effect in order to comply
with the requirements of the NBS and the guidance. This further report sets out
proposals for the EPS and BSIP.



62

In October 2021 the Cabinet approved the Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement
Plan, which will inform the proposals for an associated Enhanced Partnership plan
and scheme, and authorised the Director of Environment and Transport to submit the
County Council’'s BSIP funding requirement template to the Department for Transport
by no later than 31 October 2021

Background

10.

11.

12.

13.

National Bus Strateqy (NBS)

The National Bus Strategy (NBS) ‘Bus Back Better’ was published in March 2021,
marking another radical change in Government transport policy.

The NBS sets out an ambitious vision to dramatically improve bus services in
England outside of London through greater local leadership, to reverse the recent
shift in journeys away from public transport as a result of the pandemic and
encourage passengers back to buses. Local Transport Authorities (LTAs) and local
bus operators must work at pace with local communities to plan and deliver a fully
integrated service with simple, multi-modal tickets, more bus priority measures, the
same high quality information for all passengers in more places, and better turn-up-
and-go frequencies that keep running into the evenings and at weekends.

The NBS explains that there can be no return to a situation where bus services are
planned on a purely commercial basis with little or no engagement with, or support
from, Local Transport Authorities.

The Government has previously committed £3bn of new funding to support delivery
of the NBS, some of which has already been paid to LTAs to assist with work to
implement the NBS (i.e. the £397,000 of funding already received by the Authority).
LTA’s access to a further share of this funding is contingent, inter-alia, on compliance
with the DfT’s timeframe requirements as set out in paragraph 13, with the amount
potentially available to each LTA to be dependent on the DfT’s assessment of the
scale of ambition of an LTA’s BSIP.

Bus Service Improvement Plans (BSIP)

The Government describes BSIPs as being how LTAs, working closely with their
local bus operators and local communities, set out a vision for delivering the step-
change in bus services that is required by the NBS.

The Government expects BSIPs to be comprehensive, living documents that will
evolve over time. All relevant LTAs are required to prepare a BSIP.

DfT requirements and timeframes for implementing the NBS

The guidance is very prescriptive in placing significant requirements on LTAs in very
short timeframes.

e Step 1-bythe end of June 2021: LTAs to decide which statutory path to
follow for improving bus services — Cabinet approved an EPS in June 2021 and
the required Statutory Notice was published to that effect.



63

e Step 2 — by the end of October 2021: Publish a BSIP for its area.
e Step 3 - by the end of March 2022: Have the EPS in place.

NBS Engagement Survey

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Engagement with stakeholders is an important part of the process for developing a
new approach to the delivery of bus services. It helps to ensure that the Authority
takes account of customer and user expectations and delivers the most appropriate
service levels, consistent with the budget available.

The guidance also makes clear that BSIPs should be developed taking into account
the views of service users.

Overview

To inform work on the EPS and development of a BSIP a public engagement survey
was undertaken between 15 June and 30 July 2021.

The survey was undertaken primarily as an online survey. However, people were
also offered the option of completing and returning a paper copy of the questionnaire.
The survey was widely publicised through a marketing and communications
campaign.

The main purpose of the survey was to find out what local people think would
improve local bus services and what would make them use local buses more. This
included engaging with people who already use buses and with those who currently
do not. The survey also invited opinions from representatives of public, private, and
voluntary organisations who have an interest in making Leicestershire’s bus services
work better.

Within the survey, questions were asked about local bus services as well as buses
that operate on a regular timetable, which included ‘demand responsive transport’ (or
DRT). Dedicated school bus services were excluded from the scope of the survey.
The survey consisted primarily of ‘closed’ questions with the opportunity for
respondents to express their more detailed thoughts freely, with response to an
‘open’ question.

Whilst a detailed report on the survey findings is included at Appendix A, the
following sections summarise some of its key findings.

Respondent characteristics

A total of 1,483 responses were received, with 1,428 online responses and 55 paper
responses. The vast majority (92%) of respondents were residents of Leicestershire,
with a marked skew towards white (93%), females (68%) and relatively older age
groups (with 42% of respondents being aged 55 or older and only 5% under 25 years
of age).

1,385 respondents answered the survey question about concessionary passholder
status. 64% of respondents were not concessionary passholders, while 36% held a
concessionary pass.



23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

64

Pre-Covid-19 frequency of bus use and journey purpose

The survey data has been consolidated into two main categories - ‘regular bus users’
(those who use a bus once a month or more) and ‘infrequent or non-bus users’ (less
than once per month or never). Of the 1,398 respondents that answered in this
regard, 63% were regular users and 37% were infrequent/non-users.

Excluding respondents that reported they ‘never’ use local buses within
Leicestershire, a total of 1,324 respondents indicated at least one trip purpose. The
majority of respondents used the bus for shopping (60%), closely followed by social
reasons (58%). Just less than one in four respondents (23%) used the bus to travel
to and from work.

Expected frequency of use ‘post-pandemic’

Respondents were asked how they expected their use of local bus services to
change, if at all, following the Covid-19 pandemic (compared to how they used to
travel prior to the pandemic). A total of 1,394 provided a response, with over half
(54%) expecting their bus usage to remain the same. Just over one in five people
(22%) expected to increase their bus usage following the pandemic, while 12%
expected their bus usage to decrease. 12% of respondents did not know how their
usage might change.

Measures to increase bus usage

A key part of the survey from a BSIP perspective explored what measures would
encourage people to use buses more. Individual survey respondents were asked to
consider the extent to which 21 different measures would make them personally use
local buses in Leicestershire more. Similarly, people responding from organisations
were asked their views on which measures would make people whose views they
represent use buses more. For each measure, respondents rated the extent to which
it would increase their bus use, ranging from ‘a great deal’, to ‘to some extent’, to ‘not
very much’ to ‘not at all’ and finally ‘don’t know’.

The top ten measures that responding residents and visitors said would increase
their bus use a great deal, were:

e More frequent services (63%);

e Easier access to bus service information (54%);

e More comprehensive services (local buses near you serving more destinations)
(50%);

e Better bus stops or shelters (50%);

e Earlier and later services (49%));

e Lower fares (49%));

¢ Wider availability of multi-operator tickets (45%);
e More reliable journey times (44%);

e Contactless fare payment on buses (44%);



28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

65

e Better bus service and rail service connections (37%);

Regular users and infrequent/non-users both consider that the measure most likely to
increase their use of buses in Leicestershire is a more frequent service. In addition,
easier access to bus service information and a more comprehensive service (serving
more destinations) were also common considerations likely to increase bus usage.

There are, however, some notable differences in the perceived effect of several
measures between regular users and infrequent/non-users. The capability for
contactless fare payment was considered more effective at encouraging increased
bus use for infrequent/non-users than for regular users. Conversely, whilst 55% of
regular bus users felt that improved bus stops or shelters would encourage increased
bus use ‘a great deal’, only 42% of infrequent/non-users felt the same.

There are also variations of response by district of residence. For example, a more
frequent service was considered as being one of the most effective measures (where
highest proportions of the response ‘a great deal’ was recorded) for five of the seven
districts: Harborough (70%) Blaby (67%), Hinckley and Bosworth (67%), Melton
(67%) and Charnwood (52%). For Charnwood residents, this was very closely
followed by ‘better bus stops or shelters’ where 51% felt that this would encourage
them personally to increase their bus use ‘a great deal’.

Only 35% of North West Leicestershire residents perceived a more frequent bus
service would increase their bus use ‘a great deal’ (although 37% considered it would
do ‘to some extent’). Respondents from North West Leicestershire generally showed
a different set of priorities for measures to improve bus use. Respondents from this
district considered ‘more reliable journey times’ to be a more effective measure for
increasing bus use than increased frequency, with 62% of residents considering this
would increase their bus use by a great deal. More modern vehicles and zero
emission vehicles also appeared in the top five most favoured measures in that
district.

To conclude, the survey responses suggest that the BSIP needs to have a focus on
making bus travel more attractive to a wider demographic, including to those under
the age of 25. Whilst the responses also helpfully highlight measures that the BSIP
should concentrate on to improve attractiveness, they also serve to show that there is
not necessarily a universal one size fits all approach in respect of bus users versus
non-users and across the County.

Development of the Enhanced Partnership Plan and Scheme (EPS)

33.

34.

Following the decision of the Cabinet in June 2021 to establish an EPS, officers
(supported by the commissioned consultants) have been working with local bus
operators to agree the details of the Scheme.

The EPS is a formal agreement between the LTA and local bus operators, to work
together to improve local bus services. It will provide the formal framework and
governance for the Enhanced Partnership and the schemes within it will mirror those
within the BSIP, it is the delivery vehicle for the schemes detailed in the BSIP.



35.

36.

37.

66

Several meetings of the ‘shadow’ EPS have been held, attended by bus companies
Arriva, First Bus, Centrebus, Stagecoach, Vectare and Trent Barton (including
Kinchbus). The meetings have been generally constructive and have been primarily
focused initially on the content of the BSIP; the EPS will be the delivery vehicle for
the BSIP.

A statutory notice of the EPS will be issued to bus operators in November, providing
them with a 28-day period for objection. Should no objections be received a public
consultation would then be undertaken towards the end of the year. Any changes
resulting from the consultation would need to be ratified by bus operators prior to
formalising the partnership agreement, through a further 28-day period of objection.

Discussions will continue and it is currently intended that a further report will be
presented to the Cabinet on this matter March 2022, ahead of the EPS formally
coming into existence.

Draft Leicestershire BSIP

38.

39.

40.

41.

The BSIP has been developed in collaboration with bus operators in the County. It
also takes account of the public’s views gathered through the engagement survey
including those of parish councils and of the views of neighbouring authorities,
including Leicester City Council, district councils; and community transport operators.

The BSIP recognises the very important role that passenger transport services have
to play in keeping people and places connected, especially in a largely rural county
such as Leicestershire. Use of such services rather than private car travel also helps
reduce congestion, improve air quality in towns, and limit carbon emissions.

The BSIP is intended to be strongly led by users. In general terms, the focus is on
increasing the fare-paying customer market, with concessionary passengers also
benefiting from many of the initiatives. A particular focus is growth of patronage
among young people (16-19) and young adults (19-25), as these are key life stages
when people who have been regular bus travellers are often tempted to move from
bus to car use. Encouraging young people and young adults to use buses more is
seen as a cornerstone of a future sustainable Leicestershire bus network.

Whilst for the benefit of customers and also because of how the DfT intend to award
further NBS funding, it is important that a BSIP for Leicestershire seeks to be
ambitious. It is equally important to be mindful of a number of key points:

e There is no reliable evidence available at present to indicate how in a world
living with Covid-19, passenger transport patronage levels in the County might
recover and as to how travel patterns might have changed ‘forever’. This makes
it challenging to establish baseline usage levels against which to set targets for
patronage increases;

e There are still considerable uncertainties about the ‘lasting’ economic
implications arising from the pandemic and the impacts this might have on
levels of public and private investment available, at least in the short to medium
term. Combined with uncertainties about patronage levels, it is unsurprising that
this is influencing operator confidence to invest, for example the degree of
investment in more modern vehicles;



42.

43.

67

e In a rural county such as Leicestershire, with a great number of (relatively)
smaller communities requiring access to a dispersed/remote range of economic
and social needs, it will always be considerably more challenging and costly to
deliver high quality, viable and sustainable (in financial terms) passenger
transport services than in comparison to more densely populated
urban/metropolitan areas;

e Hitherto, rural counties such as Leicestershire have not had access to the
significant levels of funding available to urban/metropolitan areas, such as City
Region Sustainable Transport Settlements for Mayoral Combined Authorities
and Transforming Cities Funds.

Throughout the life of the BSIP, the Authority will be regularly required to report to the
DfT on the progress of the delivery of the targets that it contains.

Overview of content

The draft BSIP is attached at Appendix B. In summary its content includes:

i) Description of the BSIP’s area of coverage, i.e. the area administered by
Leicestershire County Council as the LTA, and of current service provision

i) A vision, which is one where the County’s bus services are simply “best-in-
class’. Our future bus network will seamlessly connect people with
employment locations, education and training opportunities, key services,
other transport modes, leisure destinations and, of course, each other; in a
way that is reliable, affordable, environmentally friendly, easy-to-use, safe, and
inclusive.”

iii) An overall aim, which is to increase bus usage (compared with pre-pandemic
levels) across the County through improved, financially sustainable, higher
standard services that better meet the needs of Leicestershire residents,
employees, and visitors — making bus travel a preferred choice for travel
around the County and travel into the City of Leicester.

iv) Several objectives focused around:

e creating a single, higher-quality integrated system, e.g. through a clearer
brand identity and a more holistic approach to marketing and greater
coordination between operators’ timetables; integration with other travel
modes such as rail and cycling and e-mobility;

e greater use of DRT to provide greater availability, particularly in rural
areas of the County;

e improved journey time reliability of bus services;

e affordability - particularly for young people who are the potential core bus
market for the future;

e ease of use — with the customer experience much easier in terms of
getting information, using different operators’ services, and paying fares;
and;

e moving towards the use of modern, lower emission vehicles across the
network.



68

v) Proposals for setting (but not for definitively establishing at this time, for the
reasons set out in paragraph 41 above) a number of targets in respect of:

passenger growth;

customer satisfaction;

journey times;

reliability (including how well buses run to the timetable, whether a bus
arrives at all and consistency of journey time);

bus emissions.

vi) Delivery themes, and schemes within those themes, grouped around:

Theme: Single System, which includes schemes around:

©)

o

o

o

Operators working together to coordinate timetables on key corridors,
Piloting of increased frequencies on three (yet to be selected) routes,

Bus operators working with rail operators to seek to ensure better
coordination of bus services with connections to railway stations
relative to train times,

Provision of higher quality bus stop infrastructure and which is better
maintained,

Working in collaboration with operators to create a distinctive brand for
the Leicestershire bus network, with marketing of the network as a
single entity undertaken jointly by LCC and bus operators,

Piloting of further DRT services, building on experience as it's gained
from the Rural Mobility Fund (RMF) project in south east
Leicestershire,

Using the RMF project to explore the piloting of evening services,

Agreement and implementation of minimum service quality standards
across all Leicestershire bus services, covering aspects such as
cleanliness of vehicles and customer service training for drivers,

Adoption of a Customer Charter across Leicestershire bus services.

Theme: Reliable, which includes schemes around:

o

The development and implementation of a programme of individual
schemes and interventions to address delays to bus services and give
buses priority,

Improving traffic and parking management and enforcement
particularly in areas where poor traffic and parking discipline causes
problems and delays for buses.

Theme: Affordable, which includes schemes around:

o

Rationalisation of qualification ages for child / young people
discounted fare products, i.e. seeking to agree with operators a
consistent age below which significantly discounted ticket products for
children and young people are available,

Putting in place a young adult discounted fare offer for all 19 to 25-
year-olds.



69

e Theme: Easy to use, which includes schemes around:

o Improved bus service information availability, including online, printed
and roadside,

o Improvements to real time information provision,

o Moving towards multi-operator capped fares that work with debit,
credit card, cash, and mobile payments across all Leicestershire
operators.

e Theme: Greener, which includes schemes around:
o Piloting the use of ultra-low emissions vehicles.

44. Subject to there being no changes in national policy or funding, or any other material
changes, it is currently proposed to undertake a major, wholesale review prior to the
BSIP’s 10-year anniversary. However, during its lifetime changes are likely to be
required as progress against targets is monitored and evidence is collected about the
effectiveness of the BSIP’s delivery.

BSIP Funding Requirements

45. In August 2021, the Government published additional guidance as to how LTAs
should present their BSIP funding requirements to Government.

46. The additional guidance on funding specifies a template that is required to be
attached to BSIPs when returned to them. Furthermore, it sets out that:

i) The purpose of the template is to provide an indicative view of potential LTA
and operator priorities for additional Government funding. The template asks
for detail regarding potential funding requirements, both capital and resource
(revenue), to deliver the expectations set out in the Strategy. It goes on to say
that LTAs should aim to include detail on specific schemes, routes and
requirements where possible (e.g. bus priority measures on a specific route
corridor, or detail on changes to fares/tickets).

i)  Given the limited amount of funding available across the country, LTAs should
aim to prioritise these schemes and consider constraints on available funding.
Funding amounts should be set out by year (i.e. 2022/23, 2023/24 and
2024/25) and long term (beyond 2025) as best as able. Albeit, the
supplementary guidance notes that at this stage, ahead of the DfT’s spend
profiles beyond April 2022 being confirmed at the Spending Review later this
year, it cannot confirm specific funding allocations. Officers understand that
the DfT will release further detailed guidance in due course on the funding
allocation process.

iii) LTAs should also set out what alternative sources of funding are available to
support delivery of BSIPs (e.g. operator or LTA contributions).

iv) The DfT do not expect BSIPs to provide detailed, definitive costings. As
explained in the primary BSIP guidance, given that the plans had to have been
produced by October, they will necessarily be outlines.

v) BSIPs will enable the Government to understand the appetite for
transformational investments which support the bus sector in the funding
period and over the long term (i.e. beyond 2025). In the shorter term, there are



70

also existing bus funding sources (such as the LTA element of the Bus
Services Operators Grant, and the Revenue Support Grant) and other funding
schemes with transport elements (such as the Levelling Up fund, or the City
Region Sustainable Transport Settlements for Mayoral Combined Authorities)
that are expected to be considered, where relevant, in how the BSIP is
supported and delivered. The BSIP is not purely a bid for funding from the
buses £3bn and should not rely on additional Government funding to deliver a
basic level of service integration, investment and improvement. The template
also contains a section to note the other funding which will support delivery of
the BSIP.

47. Whilst the additional guidance does not clearly state it, the process for the further
award of NBS delivery funding is in effect a bidding process. As such there is no
guarantee as to its outcome.

48. The completed template setting out the Authority’s BSIP funding requirements is
attached at Appendix C. This takes into account the additional guidance; the position
on funding previously set out in the report to the Cabinet in June 2021; and
discussions with operators.

49. The total estimated requirement is £173m, which allows for:

e revenue funding required over a ten-year period (assumed life of the BSIP) to
resource the management of the EPS and also to manage implementation of,
monitor the impacts of and the continued development of the BSIP (the NBS
guidance is clear that BSIPs should be ‘living documents’ that continue to
evolve over their lives);*

*This includes funding of a EPS Manager and support team (see Resource
Implications)

e revenue funding to deliver measures set out in the BSIP, e.g. in relationship to
branding and marketing; and

e capital funding to deliver measures set out in the BSIP, e.g. improvements to
bus stop infrastructure or highway works to remove pinch-points that are
causing delays to bus services.

50. The extent to which the Authority (and bus operators) is able to deliver on ambitions
to improve bus services in Leicestershire will be dependent on the level of further
NBS delivery funding received from the Government. In effect the Authority is once
again reliant on having to ‘bid’ for funding from Government in order to deliver its
BSIP.

Further Consultation

51. There is a Statutory requirement for the Authority to undertake a consultation
exercise with bus operators in respect of the EPS.

52. Bus operators will receive notice of the EPS in November, providing them with a 28-
day period for objection. Statutorily, any objections received by bus operators would
need to be resolved before the Enhanced Partnership can be formalised.



53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

71

Subject to no objections from bus operators, the Council would undertake a three to
six-week public consultation on the EPS in Winter 2021 through an on-line survey
with paper version available on request. Other key stakeholders such as district
councils, the police, Transport Focus and the Traffic Commissioner, will be consulted.
It will be promoted through the Council's website and through social media.

Any changes resulting from the consultation would need to be ratified by bus
operators prior to formalising the partnership agreement, through a further 28-day
period of objection.

Any delays caused in resolving any bus operator objections would need to be
reported to DfT accordingly.

It is intended that a further report on the outcomes of the consultation will be
presented to the Cabinet in March 2022.

Going forward specific schemes and measures delivered through the EPS and under
the BSIP will, as appropriate, be subject to separate engagement and consultation
exercises.

Implications for the Authority’s Adopted Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy

(PTPS)

58.

59.

It is inevitable that the formal establishment of the EPS and delivery of the BSIP will
have implications for the adopted PTPS.

The BSIP sets out that the PTPS will be reviewed in full once the BSIP and EP Plan
have been developed to ensure that full alignment is achieved and a further report
will be brought to the Highways and Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee and
Cabinet once that work has been completed and the implications for the PTPS are
understood. For the avoidance of doubt, officers will continue to use the adopted
PTPS where appropriate in considering whether the Authority should provide funding
to support local bus services where they are no longer able to operate on a
commercial basis.

Resource Implications

60.

61.

Since the report to the Cabinet in June 2021, the Authority has received a further
payment of £297,000 from the DfT to support initial implementation of the NBS (which
combined with the pre-June payment of £100,000 gives a total received to date of
£397,000). Presently, the Authority continues to use these funds to help to pay for
consultancy support commissioned to assist with the development of the EPS and
BSIP.

The report to the Cabinet in June 2021 noted that the Authority was not resourced to
deliver the NBS. Having since undertaken a further assessment of resourcing
requirements, an initial need is to appoint an EPS Manager and support team to be in
place by the time that the EPS is expected to be implemented at the end of March
2022. This will be an ongoing ‘base’ requirement to ensure the Authority’s effective
participation in the EPS. The estimated annual total (revenue) cost (based on current
pay rates) is circa £230,000; funding for this forms part of the Authority’s BSIP
funding requirements submission to DfT. In the meantime, should this additional



62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

72

resource need funding for a balance of the current financial year (bearing in mind
likely recruitment process timeframes and notice periods), the intention is that this will
be paid for from the DfT monies already received.

Over the longer-term, as outlined in the BSIP funding requirement template it is
presently estimated that the costs of implementing a Leicestershire EPS and BSIP are
in the order of £58m over the next three years (i.e. 2022/3 to 2024/5) and of the order
of £173m over a ten-year period (the assumed life of the BSIP). There are
fundamental linkages between many aspects of the BSIP’s proposals, so it is likely to
prove challenging to determine which ones not to pursue in the event that the
Authority does not receive the funding that it is ‘bidding’ for. However, this will be
considered once funding levels are confirmed and proposals will be presented to
Cabinet for a decision as appropriate.

At this point it bears repeating the content of the June Cabinet report, which noted
that however ambitious the Authority (and bus operators) might want to be in
improving bus services to meet the needs and wants of the residents and businesses
of Leicestershire, the costs of delivering on those ambitions will not be affordable to
the Authority in either revenue or capital terms without receipt of additional funding.
Thus, accordingly, the Authority continues to expect the Government to provide:

e consistent and sustained revenue funding for the resources that it currently
does not have (and the DfT acknowledge many other Local Transport
Authorities (LTAs) do not have) to enable the implementation of, ongoing
operation of and monitoring and review of the EPS and BSIP;

e consistent and sustained revenue funding to enable it, if and as required, to
continue to provide any financial support for bus services; and

¢ the levels of capital funding required to deliver on the Authority’s ambitions.

There are some significant uncertainties regarding the further share that the Authority
might receive of the already announced £3bn NBS funding, in any event, this only
covers the lifetime of the current Parliament (i.e. until 2024/2025 if this Parliament
runs to its full term) and the level of funding available beyond 2025 is subject to the
outcomes of the Comprehensive Spending Review.

Notwithstanding such uncertainties and the immediate and longer-term financial
implications arising from seeking to deliver on the NBS, there are likely to be equally
significant consequences arising from any failure to do so. The Government continues
to make clear that ongoing access to passenger transport funding (both ‘temporary’
pandemic related and ‘permanent’ NBS related) remains contingent on compliance
with the requirements of the NBS and the guidance, including the specified delivery
timetable. In addition, there is an inference from the guidance that this might not just
be in respect of bus related funding, but in respect of wider highways and transport
funding.

It should also be noted that separately, costs are still likely to fall to the Authority
where a service ceases to operate on a commercial basis and it is required to fund a
replacement in accordance with the Authority's adopted Passenger Transport Policy
and Strategy.

BSIP funding is intended to provide transformational investment to support the bus
sector over the life of the current Parliament and in the long term. In the shorter term,



73

it is expected that the Authority will continue to receive existing bus funding such as
the LTA element of the Bus Services Operators Grant (BSOG) and the Revenue
Support Grant.

Timetable for Decisions

68.

69.

70.

Further to the publication of the Statutory Notice in June 2021, which set out the
Authority’s decision to establish an EPS to improve bus services in Leicestershire,
work will continue to develop the EPS for implementation by the Government’s
deadline of end March 2022.

A report on the BSIP and EPS will be considered by the Highways and Transport
Overview and Scrutiny Committee in November.

It is currently anticipated that a further report on progress with implementation of the
NBS and the associated formalisation of an Enhanced Partnership will be considered
by the Cabinet in March 2022.

Conclusions

71.

72.

73.

74.

75.

Publication of the NBS marked another radical change in Government transport
policy. The role of LTAs in the development and delivery of passenger transport
services is significantly altered by its publication, with the expectation that they will
provide greater local leadership and work far more collaboratively with bus operators
and local communities to plan and deliver a fully integrated service with simple, multi-
modal tickets, more bus priority measures, the same high quality information for all
passengers in more places, and better turn-up-and-go frequencies that keep running
into the evenings and at weekends.

The Government describes BSIPs as being how LTAs, working closely with their
local bus operators and local communities, set out a vision for delivering the step-
change in bus services that is required by the NBS. Government expects BSIPs to be
comprehensive, living documents that will evolve over time. All relevant LTAs are
required to prepare a BSIP.

Development of the Leicestershire BSIP has been informed by discussions with
operators and by the outcomes of an engagement survey, but also mindful too of the
continuing impacts of the pandemic both on patronage levels (both current and going
forward) and on the public finances and private sector investment confidence; the
rural nature of Leicestershire; and that as non-Mayoral or City area, the Authority has
not enjoyed the benefits of such things as (direct award) Region Sustainable
Transport Settlements or qualified for Transforming Cities Funding.

This report sets out the immediate financial implications to the Authority arising from
implementing the NBS in line with DfT requirements. Over the longer-term, delivery of
the Leicestershire BSIP is dependent on the award by Government of further NBS
delivery funds to the Authority. The process for the further award of funding amounts,
in effect, to a bidding process with no guarantee as to its outcome.

Notwithstanding financial considerations, improving local bus services has a key role
to play in seeking to reduce carbon emissions from transport; providing for equality of



74

opportunity for those who don’t have access to a private car; and supporting recovery
from the pandemic.

Background papers

Report to the Environment and Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 11
October 2018, ‘Draft Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy’
http://cexmodgovl.ad.leics.gov.uk:9075/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=1044&MI1d=5645
&Ver=4

Report to the Cabinet on 16 October 2018, ‘Draft Passenger Transport Policy and
Strategy’
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=135&MId=5184&Ver=4

Report to the Cabinet on 20 November 2020, ‘Leicester and Leicestershire Strategic
Transport Priorities’:
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=135&MId=5999&Ver=4

Report to the Cabinet on 22 June 2021, ‘National Bus Strategy’
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=135&MId=6444&Ver=4

Report to the Cabinet on 26 October 2021, ‘National Bus Strategy’
http://cexmodgovl.ad.leics.gov.uk:9075/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=135&MId=6447&Ver=
4

Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure

None

Officer to Contact

Ann Carruthers

Director, Environment and Transport
Tel: (0116) 305 7000

Email: Ann.Carruthers@Ieics.gov.uk

Janna Walker

Acting Assistant Director, Development and Growth
Tel: (0116) 305 0785

Email: janna.walker@leics.gov.uk

List of Appendices

Appendix A: National Bus Strategy Bus Service Improvement Plan Public Engagement
Survey Findings August 2021

Appendix B: Draft Leicestershire BSIP September 2021
Appendix C: BSIP Funding Requirements Template


http://cexmodgov1.ad.leics.gov.uk:9075/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1044&MId=5645&Ver=4
http://cexmodgov1.ad.leics.gov.uk:9075/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1044&MId=5645&Ver=4
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=5184&Ver=4
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=5999&Ver=4
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=6444&Ver=4
http://cexmodgov1.ad.leics.gov.uk:9075/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=6447&Ver=4
http://cexmodgov1.ad.leics.gov.uk:9075/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=6447&Ver=4
mailto:Ann.Carruthers@leics.gov.uk
mailto:janna.walker@leics.gov.uk

75

Relevant Impact Assessments

Equality and Human Rights Implications

76. The Equality Act 2010 requires the Authority to have due regard to the need to
eliminate discrimination and to promote equality of opportunity between different
protected groups.

77. An initial Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment (EHRIA) screening exercise
was undertaken at the stage the Council submitted a statutory notice of intent to
enter into an Enhanced Partnership. The initial impact was considered to be positive
and so a full EHRIA was not needed at that time.

78. A further EHRIA screening exercise will be undertaken following the consultation.

Environmental Implications

79. Delivery of improved bus services should help to deliver mode shift away from the
private car and would therefore be anticipated to deliver air quality and carbon
reduction benefits.



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

H Leicestershire
County Council

National Bus Strategy

Bus Service Improvement Plan

Public Engagement

Survey Findings

August 2021

itp

a company of Royal HaskoningDHV



EWalters_1
Text Box
APPENDIX A


/8

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Table of Contents

1o INEFOAUCTION ettt 1
2. Respondent Sample CharacteriStiCS.......c i sesseessessesessssssssseseens 2
ROIE Of RESPONUENT ...ttt sttt s st ss s saes 2
Respondents’ District Of RESIAENCE.........c.ooriieeriise st sseees 3

Age and Gender Of RESPONAENTS........oovrrririeniierise ittt ss st ssnssas 3
EthnicCity Of RESPONTENTS ..ottt 4
Concessionary PasShOlAEr STATUS ...t sbe s sseeeen 5

3. Travel Habits of Individual ReSpondents............cccceuriereresenneennenninsiesessesssennnes 6
FreqUENCY OF BUS USE ..ottt ettt 6

Trip Purpose When Travelling DY BUS ...t ssssssssssens 6
Expected Frequency of Bus Use Following COVID-T9 .....c.cooiminnienineeeneeieeieseeessesssessseieees 7

4. Measures 10 INcrease BUS USage........ s 10
INAIVIdUAl RESPONAENTS ...ttt sttt asssnens 11
OVETAIL e 11

Regular bus users vs infrequent / NON-DUS USETS ... 13

DiSEIICt Of FESIARNCE ...ttt 16

AL GIOUP .ttt bt sttt bbbt ene b 26

GEINAET ..o 32
Concessionary PasSNOIAING ...t eeen 36
Councillors and Organisation REPreseNntatives.........ccceneinreneiesisesssessssssesssssssssssssssnns 39

5. SummMary and CONCIUSIONS........o ettt se e 41



79

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

List of Tables

Table 2-1: Numbers and proportions of respondent role..........nreereenssnsineesssssssssssesis 2

Table 4-1: Summary comparison of the 'Top 5' measures considered most effective by
regular and iNfreqUENt / NON-DUS USEIS ...t ssssssss s sssssssssssens 13

Table 4-2: Summary comparison of the 'Top 5' measures considered most effective per
LEICESTEISNITE QISTIICT ..ottt 18

Table 4-3: Summary comparison of the ‘Top 5' measures considered most effective per age

GPOUP ettt etseeseseeas st sssesseasess s e s seseeaseas e eeseess s e ee s e e e eas e s e s e s e e s bbb e e st s e e b ee s e st an s s s eeseeaneansenes 27
Table 4-4: Summary comparison of the 'Top 5' measures considered most effective per
GENAEBT .ttt e s s R AR RS R AR 32
Table 4-5: Summary comparison of the 'Top 5' measures considered most effective between
concessionary passholders and NON-PasShOIAErS ...t 36
Table 5-1: Ranked priorities of individual respondents and different sub-groups...................... 41

List of Figures

Figure 2-1: Proportion of respondents per Leicestershire district........coccooeneeneinneeneineceneenecineenne. 3
Figure 2-2: Respondents by gender (male and female) and age ... 4
Figure 2-3: Proportion of respondents per ethniCity ... 4
Figure 3-1: Frequency of bus use prior to the COVID-19 pandemiC........ccc.coeeovemrereeerreerreneesrerneenenes 6
Figure 3-2: Leicestershire local bus usage by trip PUMPOSE........cccovmirieerirriernisrineeeseeeseeeseassiseeenes 7
Figure 3-3: Expected bus usage following the COVID-19 Pandemic.......cc.ccoevemeeenmeeenereneeeneeeneeeneennae 8

Figure 3-4: Expected change in bus use, comparing regular bus users to infrequent/non-bus

Figure 4-1: Measures that would encourage Leicestershire residents and visitors to increase

TNEIT DUS USE...eeie bbb bbb 12
Figure 4-2: Measures that would encourage regular bus users to increase their bus use........ 14
Figure 4-3: Measures that would encourage infrequent or non bus users to increase their bus
USEeuietrieereunesseiseseessse st bbbt e e 15
Figure 4-4: Measures that would encourage residents of Blaby to increase their bus use....... 19
Figure 4-5: Measures that would encourage residents of Charnwood to increase their bus use
...................................................................................................................................................................................... 20
Figure 4-6: Measures that would encourage residents of Harborough to increase their bus

US o eietrtrttseue sttt be i e b st bt bt bR bR bbbttt 21

Figure 4-7: Measures that would encourage residents of Hinckley and Bosworth to increase
TNEIT DUS USE.eie ettt 22



80

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Figure 4-8: Measures that would encourage residents of North West Leicestershire to
INCIEASE ThEIT DUS USE....cieieeee ettt 23

Figure 4-9: Measures that would encourage residents of Oadby and Wigston to increase
ENEIT DUS USE...eeee sttt 24

Figure 4-10: Measures that would encourage residents of Melton to increase their bus use 25
Figure 4-11: Measures that would encourage under-25's to increase their bus use.................. 28
Figure 4-12: Measures that would encourage 25—44-year-olds to increase their bus use....... 29
Figure 4-13: Measures that would encourage 45-64-year-olds to increase their bus use....... 30
Figure 4-14: Measures that would encourage people aged 65+ to increase their bus use..... 31
Figure 4-15: Measures that would encourage males to increase their bus use..........cccoccveeune.ce. 33
Figure 4-16: Measures that would encourage females to increase their bus use..........cccooc...... 34

Figure 4-17: Measures that would encourage those that prefer to self-describe gender to
INCIEASE ThEIT DUS USE ...t bbb 35

Figure 4-18: Measures that would encourage concessionary passholders to increase their bus
Figure 4-19: Measures that would encourage non-passholders to increase their bus use...... 38

Figure 4-20: Measures that would increase bus use as perceived by local councillors and
OrganiSAtiON FEPIESENTATIVES ........ovueeieeireeeeereie ettt ss st nsesaes 40



81

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

1. Introduction

11

1.2

13

This report has been prepared by Integrated Transport Planning Ltd (ITP) on behalf of
Leicestershire County Council. It presents the main findings of a public engagement
survey undertaken by Leicestershire County Council between June 15 and July 30™,
2021. The survey was undertaken primarily as an online survey. However, people were
also offered the option of completing and returning a paper copy of the questionnaire.
The survey was widely publicised through a marketing and communications campaign
devised and run by Leicestershire County Council officers.

The main purpose of the survey was to find out what local people think would improve
local bus services and what would make them use local buses more, to inform
development of Leicestershire’'s Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP). This included
engaging with people who already use buses and with those who currently don’t
(collectively termed ‘individual respondents’ in this report). The survey also invited
opinions from representatives of public, private, and voluntary organisations who have
an interest in making Leicestershire’s bus services work better.

Within the survey questionnaire (see appendix A), questions were asked about ‘local
bus services’. As well as buses that operate on a regular timetable, this included
‘demand responsive transport’ (or DRT). Dedicated school bus services were excluded
from the scope of the survey. The survey consisted primarily of ‘closed’ questions with
the opportunity for respondents to express their more detailed thoughts freely, with
response to an ‘open’ question.



82

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

2. Respondent Sample Characteristics

2.1

2.2

A total of 1,483 responses were received, with 1,428 online responses and 55 paper
responses. A small number of representations from individuals were also received
outside the main survey. This report contains only analysis of the ‘closed’ question
responses; analysis of ‘open’ question responses and separate representations will be
added later.

Role of Respondent

Table 2-1 provides a breakdown of respondents by the role in which they were
responding. The great majority (~95%) of respondents were ‘individual respondents’
who were either residents of Leicestershire or visited Leicestershire (for example, for
work or leisure). Parish, town, district, or county councillors represented 4% of
respondents, with the remainder being representatives of other organisations.

Table 2-1: Numbers and proportions of respondent role

% of all
Number of
Role of Respondent - respondents

P (n=1483)
Leicestershire resident 1370 92.4%
Parish or town councillor 41 2.8%
Visitor to Leicestershire (e.g. for work or leisure) 31 2.1%
District councillor 12 0.8%
Other (please specify) 9 0.6%

Representative of a voluntary sector organisation,

. . 8 0.5%
charity, or community group
Representative of a public sector organisation 5 0.3%
Representative of a business or private sector
present P 4 0.3%
organisation
County councillor 3 0.2%



83

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

2.3

2.4

Respondents’ District of Residence

Individual respondents (residents or Leicestershire visitors) were asked to provide their
full postcode in order to determine their district of residence. 1,336 individual
respondents answered this question. There were two responses from residents of
Rutland, and 67 respondents from the city of Leicester. The split of responses from
Leicestershire residents among the seven districts is shown in Figure 2-1. It is notable
that residents of Melton, and Oadby and Wigston, were under-represented in the
achieved sample. Results specific to those districts presented in this report therefore
need to be viewed with caution because of the small sub-sample sizes.

Figure 2-1: Proportion of respondents per Leicestershire district

3%
6%

229 m Blaby
159% Harborough
® Charnwood

Hinckley and Bosworth

® North West Leicestershire
19%
17%

Oadby and Wigston

m Melton

18%

Age and Gender of Respondents

In terms of gender, the sample was skewed towards females (68%) rather than males
(31%). 1% of respondents opted to self-describe. On age, the highest number of
responses was received from the 65 — 74-year age group (23%), followed by 55-64-
year-olds (19%) and 45-54-year-olds (17%). Only 5% of respondents were under 25
years of age. The breakdown across all age groups and male/female genders is shown
in Figure 2-2.



84

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

85 or above

2.5

Figure 2-2: Respondents by gender (male and female) and age

75-84 2.8%

65-74 8.1%

55-64 7.0%

45-54 4.1%

35-44 3.7%

25-34 3.1%

15-24

Under 15

OMale EFemale

Ethnicity of Respondents

Individual respondents were asked about their ethnicity. Of the 1,352 people who
responded to this question, 93% were White, followed by 3% Asian or Asian British (see
Figure 2-3). For comparison, 2011 Census data for Leicestershire indicated that 92% of
the population of Leicestershire identified as White.

Figure 2-3: Proportion of respondents per ethnicity

2% 1% 1%
3%

= White
Asian or Asian British
B Other ethnic group
Mixed

m Black or Black British

93%



85

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Concessionary passholder status

26 1385 respondents answered the survey question about concessionary passholder
status. 64% of respondents were not concessionary passholders, while 36% held a
concessionary pass.



00

6

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

3. Travel Habits of Individual Respondents

31 The survey posed questions about individual respondents’ (Leicestershire residents and
visitors) pre-pandemic bus usage, including frequency and purpose, and how they
expected their frequency of use to change, if at all, following the COVID-19 pandemic.

Frequency of Bus Use

32 Individual respondents were asked about how often, if at all, they used a local bus
service in Leicestershire, considering a typical week before the COVID-19 pandemic. A
breakdown of responses is shown in Figure 3-1 Error! Reference source not found.,
with only three respondents choosing not to answer. The data was consolidated into
two main categories - ‘regular bus users’ (those who use bus once a month or more)
and ‘infrequent or non-bus users’ (less than once per month or never). Of the 1,398
respondents that answered the question, 63% were regular bus users and 37% were
infrequent/non-bus users.

Figure 3-1: Frequency of bus use prior to the COVID-19 pandemic

~—
T o Never | 14%
L v
3 ?
g <
= 2  Every few months or once per year 23%
About 1 day per fortnight - 6%
5 About 1 day per month _ 8%
5
o
5]
i

4-7 days per week 17%

2 or 3 days per week 21%

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25%

Trip Purpose When Travelling by Bus

33 In order to understand the reasons why people use local bus services in Leicestershire,
individual respondents were asked to provide their most usual / frequent reasons for



87

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

travelling by bus in a typical week before the COVID-19 pandemic. Respondents were
able to provide more than one trip purpose, as applicable.

34  Excluding respondents that reported they ‘never’ use local buses within Leicestershire,
a total of 1,324 respondents indicated at least one trip purpose (see Figure 3-2). The
majority of respondents used the bus for shopping (60%), closely followed by social
reasons (58%). Just less than one in four respondents (23%) used the bus to travel to
and from work.

Figure 3-2: Leicestershire local bus usage by trip purpose

Travel during course of employment / 0
business . °%

Education (including taking children to 0
school) - 7%

other [} 9%

Exercise or leisure 19%

Travel to and from work 23%

Health or medical appointment 28%

Social, including to meet with or visit

g
friends or relatives _ 58%
0% 20% 40% 60% 80%

Expected Frequency of Bus Use Following COVID-19

35 Individual respondents were asked how they expected their use of local bus services to
change, if at all, following the COVID-19 pandemic (compared to how they used to
travel prior to the pandemic). A total of 1,394 provided a response, with over half (54%)
expecting their bus usage to remain the same. Just over one in five people (22%)
expected to increase their bus usage following the pandemic, while 12% expected their
bus usage to decrease (see Figure 3-3). 12% of respondents to this question didn’t
know how their usage might change.



o)

8

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Figure 3-3: Expected bus usage following the COVID-19 Pandemic

| expect to use the bus for fewer journeys

0,
than before Covid 12%

Don't know 12%

| expect to use the bus for more of my
journeys than before Covid

22%

| expect my bus use to remain about the

0,
same as before Covid 54%

0% 20% 40% 60%

36 Itisinteresting to note that infrequent users were more unsure about their bus use
post-Covid than those who regularly travelled by bus (22% compared to 6%), as shown
in

37  Figure 3-4.



89

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Figure 3-4: Expected change in bus use, comparing regular bus users to
infrequent/non-bus users

22%
Don’t know
Bl
| expect to use the bus for fewer | 10%
journeys than before Covid - 13%
| expect to use the bus for more of | 20%
my journeys than before Covid _ 23%
| expect my bus use to remain about | 48%
thesome asbefore vt |
0% 20% 40% 60%

OInfrequent/Non Bus User B Regular Bus User



90

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

4. Measures to Increase Bus Usage

4.1

A key part of the survey from a BSIP perspective explored what measures would
encourage people to use buses more. Individual survey respondents were asked to
consider the extent to which 21 different measures would make them personally use
local buses in Leicestershire more. Similarly, people responding from organisations
were asked their views on which measures would make people whose views they
represent use buses more. For each measure, respondents rated the extent to which it
would increase their bus use, ranging from ‘a great deal’, to 'to some extent’, to 'not
very much’ to ‘not at all’ and finally ‘don’t know'. The 21 measures were.

Journey times on local bus services made quicker

Delays on local bus services reduced to make journey times more reliable
Local bus services near you operating more frequently

Local buses near you operating later in the evening or earlier in the morning
More Sunday bus services

Local buses near you serving more destinations

Better connections between bus services and with rail services
On-demand bus services that could be booked at short notice with an app
Services operated with more modern vehicles

Services operated with electric or other zero emission vehicles

Better availability of Wi-Fi onboard local buses

Better interior cleanliness of the vehicle

Better availability of seating

Better customer service from bus drivers

Better on-bus information such as ‘next stop’ displays or announcements
Lower fares

Simpler-to-understand fares

Wider availability of multi-operator tickets (or e-tickets) that could be used on

more than one operator’s buses
Contactless fare payment on buses

Information on local bus services made easier to obtain and understand

10



91

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Better bus stops or shelters (e.g., real time information, lighting, seating, CCTV,
raised kerbs)

Individual Respondents

42  Responses from Leicestershire residents and visitors (individual respondents) are
considered within this section. It should be noted that not all respondents provided an
answer to all of the 21 measures, so there are varying sample sizes across all measures.

Overall

43 Figure 4-1 shows the overall picture from all individual respondents, in terms of people
who say that measures would increase their bus use ‘a great deal’ or 'to some extent'.
Measures are presented in order of the percentage of respondents who responded ‘a
great deal'.

44 The top ten measures considered that responding residents and visitors’ said would
increase their bus use a great deal, were:

More frequent service (63%)
Easier access to bus service information (54%)

More comprehensive service (local buses near you serving more destinations)
(50%)

Better bus stops or shelters (50%)

Earlier and later services (49%)

Lower fares (49%)

Wider availability of multi-operator tickets (45%)
More reliable journey times (44%)

Contactless fare payment on buses (44%)

Better bus service and rail service connections (37%)

45  The three measures that residents and visitors considered least likely to increase their
bus use included:

Better availability of Wi-Fi
More modern vehicles

Better customer service from bus drivers

1



Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Figure 4-1: Measures that would encourage Leicestershire residents and visitors to increase their bus use

100%

O To some extent

O A great deal

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%
20%

10%

0%

92

1JIM Jo Alljige|iene 193199
S9[2IY3/\ UISPOIA 3JOIN
SJIDALIP SN WOJ4 IIAIDS JOWOISND 191199

3uneas jo Ayjigejieae Jon9g

dde ue y3m a2130uU 1I0YS 3e PN 00Q
9Q p|N02 1BY3 SAIIAIBS SN pUBWSP-UQ

sasng palesadQ 214399|3 / UOISSIWI-0497
S92IAISS SN Aepuns 40N

ssauljues|) 491199

UOI1BWJOLUI SNQ-UO 191199

sawl] Asuanor Jay2InD

S2Je} pueisiapun-03-Ja|dwis

uoI123uu0)
9JIAJSS |IBY pue 3DIAISS Sng 1913199

sasnq uo juawAed aJey Ss9|30€1UOD

sawli] AsuJnor a|qel|ay 340N

S19013 Jojesado-13nw Jo Alljige|ieAe JapIpn
saJlej Jamo

S9DIAJDS J31e] pue J3jjie]

SJ93|9ys Jo sdo3s snq 191399

921AJ3S AAIsUayaLdwo) 30N

UOI}BWIOJU| BIIAIDS SNG 03 $SAVIY Jalse]

92IAJIDS uaNbal4 240N

12



93

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

4.6

47

Regular bus users vs infrequent / non-bus users

Regular bus users (59%) and infrequent / non-bus users (59%) both considered that
the measure most likely to increase their use of bus services in Leicestershire was a
more frequent service (see Figure 4-2 and Figure 4-3). The top five measures that were
considered most effective across both user groups are summarised in Table 4-1. There
was agreement across the two groups on three of the top five measures which would
increase their bus usage. As well as a more frequent service, easier access to bus
service information and a more comprehensive service (serving more destinations)
were also considered likely to increase their bus usage.

There were some notable differences in the perceived effect of a number of measures
between regular bus user and infrequent / non bus user groups. The capability for
contactless fare payment was considered more effective at encouraging increased bus
use for infrequent / non-users than for regular users. Conversely, whilst 55% of regular
bus users felt that improved bus stops or shelters would encourage increased bus use
'a great deal’, only 42% of infrequent / non-users felt the same.

Table 4-1: Summary comparison of the 'Top 5' measures considered most

effective by regular and infrequent / non-bus users

Ranking Regular User Infrequent / Non User
(based on ‘a
great deal’)
More Frequent Service More Frequent Service
Better bus stops or shelters Easier Access to Bus Service
Information
Easier Access to Bus Service Lower fares
Information
More Comprehensive Service Contactless fare payment on
buses
Earlier and Later Services More Comprehensive Service

13



12%

23%

21%

32%

OTo some extent

32%

26%| 124%| |23%]| [23%

38%

O A great deal

31%

39%

39%

29%

31%

37%

37%| 136%| 135%| [34%]| |33% 31%| |130%

28%

41%

29%

24%

25%

34%

23%

28%

32%

55%| |55%| [52%| |51%| |50% 48%| 147%

31%

65%

24%

Figure 4-2: Measures that would encourage regular bus users to increase their bus use

0%

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

94

1J1m Jo Ajijige|iene Ja11ag

dde ue y3m 92130u HOYS je payooq
9 p|NOJ JBY3 SAJIAIDS SN PUBWBP-UQ

S9|21Yd/\ UJSPOIA DJIOA
SJ9AIIP SNQ WOJ) 9IIAIDS J19WO0ISNI 193399
guijeas jo Ajljige|ieae 1a11ag

sasng pajeladQ 2143283 / UOISSIWT-0197
ssauljues|) 493399

sawi] AsuinorJaydInD

sale} puelsiapun-o3}-iajdwis

S921AI9S snq Aepuns 1o

uoljewiojul sng-uo Jajlayg

uoI3auUU0)
9DIAIDS [IBY PUB DIIAIBS SNy 191199

sasng uo juawAed aJej $S3[30LIUOD

s39Y213
Jojesado-13nw jo Ajljige|ieAe JapIpA

SaJej JaMoT]
sawi] Asuinor a|qel@y 10N

S32IAI9S J9)eT pUe J3ljJe]

92IAJ3S dAISUayaIdw o) 10N
UOIJBWIOJU| 3JIAIDS SNY 03 SS9IIY Jalse]
s191ays Jo sdois snq 191199

92IA9S JUanbal aJoy

14



Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Figure 4-3: Measures that would encourage infrequent or non bus users to increase their bus use

O To some extent

O A great deal

100%

90%

95

21%

27%

16%

29%

16%

31%

18%

33%

19%

29%

24%

34%

25%

34%

26%

25%

31%

39%

33%

35%

35%

32%

37%

30%

38%

27%

41%

29%

42%

8 1JIm jo Ayjiqe|iene Jo319g

S9[2IYIA UJSPOIA I0IN

SI9ALIP
SNQ WOJ} 92IAJaS J2WO0]}SsNI Jallag

S9JIAJLS SN(q >m_uC3w 9J0|A

3uness jo Ajljigejieae Ja119g

sasng
paiesadQ 2143993 / UOISSIWI-0497

ssauljues|) 191199

uoleWJOUI SNQ-UO 191199

“*U}IM 92130U 1I0YS 1e payooq 39
P|N0J 1BY3 SIAISS SN puBWSP-UQ

sawli] AsuJnor JaxaInD

sawi] AsuJnor a|gelay 240N

uoI123uUu0)
92IAIDS [IeY puk IIAISS Sng 191199

saJe} pueisiapun-o01-43|dwis

S19y011
Jojesado-i3nw jo Ayjiqe[iene Japip

SJ9}|9ys JO sdois Snhq Jo21lag

24%

46%

S9JIAJSS Jole pue JaljJe]

30%

47%

92IAJDS dAISUIYJdWO) SJO|N

27%

48%

sasnq uo JuawAed aley ssaj10LIUO)

25%

50%

SoJe} JoMOT

26%

54%

uolew.oju|
92IAJBS SNg 01 SS922Y Jalse]

23%

59%

92IAJBS Juanbal4 alo

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

15



Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

4.8

4.9

4.10

District of residence

A more frequent service was considered as being one of the most effective measures (where highest proportions of ‘a great deal’
was recorded) for five of the seven districts: Harborough (70%) Blaby (67%), Hinckley and Bosworth (67%), Melton (67%) and
Charnwood (52%). For Charnwood residents, this was very closely followed by ‘better bus stops or shelters’ where 51% felt that this

would encourage them personally to increase their bus use ‘a great deal'.

Only 35% of North West Leicestershire residents perceived a more frequent bus service would increase their bus use ‘a great deal’
(although 37% considered it would do ‘'to some extent’). Respondents from North West Leicestershire generally showed a different
set of priorities for measures to improve bus use. Respondents from this district considered ‘more reliable journey times’ to be a
more effective measure for increasing bus use than increased frequency, with 62% of residents considering this would increase their
bus use by a great deal. More modern vehicles and zero emission vehicles also appeared in the top five most favoured measures in
that district.

The five measures that were considered most effective in increasing bus use by district are summarised in Table 4-2 with a detailed

breakdown of responses by ‘a great deal’ and 'to some extent’ reflected in Figure 4-4, Figure 4-5

16

96



Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

OTo some extent

O A great deal

100%

90%

97

23%

1M Jo Aljigejiene Janag

33%

17%

S3[2IYA UISPOIA 340N

43%

19%

8unesas jo Alljige|ieae Ja13ag

24%

19%

dde ue y1im 22130U 10YS 1B PaY00(
9 P|N0J 1BY3 S2IAI3S SN PUBWISP-UQ

32%

20%

SIsALIp
SNQ WoJdj 22IAlas J1aWolsnd Jolleyg

38%

23%

S2DIAJI3S SN ABpUNS IO

39%

24%

ssauljues|) Janeg

46%

27%

sawli] Asuinor Jay1np

28%

28%

sasng
paiesadQ 214193|3 / UOISSIWI-0437

36%

31%

uollewJiojul sng-uo Jelleog

34%

32%

uol2uuU0)
30IAIDS [IBY pUB 2J1AI3S Sng Ja1lag

31%

32%

saJe} pueisiapun-o0l-Ja|dwis

29%

39%

S2JIAIS J31E7 pue Jaljle]

28%

42%

sasnq uo JuawAed a.ej SS9)10B3U0)

38%

44%

sawi] Asuunor a|gel|2y aJoAl

34%

44%

92IAIS aAISUBYRIdWO) 30N

30%

45%

SoJil JoMO7

28%

46%

s10n
Jojesado-i|nw Jo Alljiqe|ieAe JapIp

33%

48%

uonewJoul
32IAJS Sng 0] $S222Y Jalse]

31%

51%

sJ21|2ys Jo sdois snq 421129

29%

52%

321AJ3S Juanbali4 aio

80%

70%

60%
50%

40%

30%

20%
10%

0%

, Figure 4-6, Figure 4-7, Figure 4-8, Figure 4-9, and Figure 4-10.

17



Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Table 4-2: Summary comparison of the 'Top 5' measures considered most effective per Leicestershire district

Ranking
(based on ‘a
great deal’)

Blaby

More Frequent
Service

Easier Access
to Bus Service
Information

More
Comprehensive
Service

Lower fares

Better bus
stops or
shelters

Charnwood

More Frequent
Service

Better bus stops
or shelters

Easier Access to
Bus Service
Information

Wider
availability of
multi-operator
tickets

Lower fares

Harborough

More Frequent
Service

Earlier and Later
Services

Easier Access to
Bus Service
Information

Better bus stops
or shelters

Contactless fare
payment on
buses

Hinckley and
Bosworth

More Frequent
Service

Easier Access to Bus
Service Information

More Reliable
Journey Times

Better bus stops or
shelters

Earlier and Later
Services

18

North West
Leicestershire

More Reliable
Journey Times

More Modern
Vehicles

More
Comprehensive
Service

Better bus stops or
shelters

Zero-Emission /
Electric Operated
Buses

Oadby and
Wigston

Quicker Journey
Times

Simpler-to-
understand fares

Better on-bus
information

More
Comprehensive
Service

More Modern
Vehicles

Melton

More Frequent
Service

Earlier and Later
Services

More
Comprehensive
Service

More Reliable
Journey Times

Better Bus and Rail
Connection

86



22%

8 1jm jo Ajjiqe|ieAe Jon1eg

32%
18%

S9[2IYdA UJSPOIA I0IN

35%
19%

SI9ALIP
SNQ WOJj 9JIAJSS J9WO01SN) Jallag

O To some extent

38%
23%

duneas jo Ayljiqe|ieae Ja119g

31%
25%

sasng
paiesadQ 2143993 / UOISSIWI-0497

26%

45%

ssauljuea|) 191199

O A great deal

25%
29%

dde ue yiim 32130U 140YS 1e pay00q
9q p|N02 1ey3 SIIAIIS SNQ puewWIpP-UQ

31%

40%

uollewJojul sng-uo Jallag

27%
32%

$92IAJIS SN Aepuns aJo|A|

32%
32%

saJe} pueisiapun-o1-4a|dwis

35%
38%

sawli] AsuJnor JaxaInD

40%

30%

uoI123uUu0)
92IAISS [IBeY puk JIAISS Sng 191199

33%
41%

sasnq uo JuawAed aley ssa|10LIUO)

45%

38%

sawli] AsuJinor a|geljay aJo

45%

30%

S19y011
Jojesado-i3nw jo Ayjiqe[iene Japip

47%

24%

S9IIAIDS J21€7 puk J3ljJe]

36%
51%

$J93|ays Jo sdois snq 491199

21%
53%

S2Jej JAMOT

29%
54%

921AJ3S aAIsUayaIdwo) 30N

55%

34%

uonew.oju|
9JIAJBS SNg 0] SS90V JalIse]

21%
67%

92IAJ3S Juanbal4 aJop

Figure 4-4: Measures that would encourage residents of Blaby to increase their bus use

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%

100%

10%
0%

19



Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Figure 4-5: Measures that would encourage residents of Charnwood to increase their bus use

OTo some extent

O A great deal

100%

90%

100

(=]
S
~N |
X X
o M~
[n0] —
X X
o )]
= —
X X
< )]
™~ —
X X
o~ o
m ™~
X X
cQ o
[n0] ™~
S X
)] <
[n0] ™~
X X
w r~
= ™~
X X
o] o]
™~ ™~
X X
w —
[n0] o
X X
< o~
m m
X X
— [
m m
S S
9] )]
™~ o
X X
o] o~
™~ =
X X
cQ <
o =
X X
< <
o =
X X
o LN
o =
X X
o] w
™~ =
X X
o 0
o =
X X
— —
[n0] LN
X X
[=)] o~
™~ LN
XX R R R RR R
o O O O O O O O O
0 M~ W W < M o~ —

1JIm JO Alljige|ieAe 121199
S3[2IYA UISPOIA 340N

8unesas jo Alljige|ieae Ja13ag

dde ue y1im 22130U 10YS 1B PaY00(
9 P|N0J 1BY3 S2IAI3S SN PUBWISP-UQ
SIBALIP
SNQ W04} 3J1AISS J2WOISND Ja11ag

S2DIAJI3S SN ABpUNS IO
ssauljues|) Janeg

sawli] Asuinor Jay1np

sasng
paiesadQ 214193|3 / UOISSIWI-0437

uollewJiojul sng-uo Jelleog

uol2uuU0)
30IAIDS [IBY pUB 2J1AI3S Sng Ja1lag

saJej pueisiapun-03}-ia|dwis
S2JIAIS J31E7 pue Jaljle]

sasnq uo JuawAed a.ej SS9)10B3U0)
sawi] Asuunor a|gel|2y aJoAl
92IAIS aAISUBYRIdWO) 30N

SoJil JoMO7

SENRI
Jojesado-nnnw o Ajljige|ieAe JapIa
uonewJoul
32IAJS Sng 0] $S222Y Jalse]

sJ21|2ys Jo sdois snq 421129

321AJ3S Juanbali4 aio

20



101

O To some extent

OA great deal

Figure 4-6: Measures that would encourage residents of Harborough to increase their bus use

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

100%

& | A
~ o~ 4IMJO AlljIqe|leAe Jo1lag
o —
x = SJI9ALIP
5 & SNQ W o4} 92]AIDS JBWOISND J9139g
o o
S N S9DIY3A UIBPON 240N
m o~
o (=]
W w,,_ 8unesas jo Alljige|ieae Ja13ag
(0] o~
= S sasn d -
N PN g paiesad(Q 2143239|3 / UOISSIWI-0497
(0] o~
o (=]
S N $92IAJ3S SN Aepung aJon
(0] o~
o (=]
3 S ssauljues|) Jonag
(0] (0]
o (=]
N S sawl] Asuidnor JaxaInD
o on
< < dde ue yaim 92110U 1J0YS 1 PaY00q
~ o 3¢ P|N02 1Y} S92IAI3S SNQ PUBWIP-UQ
o (=]
N A SaJej pueisiapun-ol-1a|dwis
(0] (0]
(=]
3 UOI1BWJOUl SNQ-UO Ja11ag
(0]
(=]
& sawy] Asuunor a|gel|ay 240N
m
< uol123uuo0)
8 9IIAJISS |leY pue 221AJ3S sng Janag
X N S39321
4 S Jojesado-innw jo Alljige|ieae Japip
(=]
& S9Jej JOMOT
o
(=]
W 92IAI3S BAISUaYaIdwo) 240N
(=]
W sasnq uo JuswaAed aJej ss9[12€3U0D
(=]
S sJ91)9ys Jo sdois snq Ja11ag
LN
(=]
3 UOIJBWIOJU| DIIAIDS SN 0] SSIIDY J31Se]
LN
o (=]
N & S9DIAIDS 19187 puR J3IjJe]
— (e}
(=] (=]
Y S 921AJ3S Juanbali{ alo
o =
X X XX XX XXX
o O O O O O O O O O
(=)} [=0] M~ (] ¥} < on o~ —

21



Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Figure 4-7: Measures that would encourage residents of Hinckley and Bosworth to increase their bus use

OTo some extent

O A great deal

100%

102

21%

14%

29%

24%

32%

25%

33%

26%

27%

26%

18%

27%

40%

30%

41%

31%

25%

33%

27%

33%

36%

35%

27%

38%

23%

45%

25%

47%

1JIm JO Alljige|ieAe 121199
S3[2IYA UISPOIA 340N
sasng pajeJsadQ 2143939|3 / UOISSIWI-0137

8unesas jo Alljige|ieae Ja13ag

SIBALIP
SNQ W04} 3J1AISS J2WOISND Ja11ag
dde ue y1im 22130U 10YS 1B PaY00(
9 P|N0J 1BY3 S2IAI3S SN PUBWISP-UQ

ssauljues|) Janeg

uollewJiojul sng-uo Jelleog

uol2uuU0)
30IAIDS [IBY pUB 2J1AI3S Sng Ja1lag

S2DIAJI3S SN ABpUNS IO
sawli] Asuinor Jay1np

saJej pueisiapun-03}-ia|dwis
sasnq uo JuawAed a.ej SS9)10B3U0)

SoJil JoMO7

21%

47%

s10n
Jojesado-i|nw Jo Alljiqe|ieAe JapIp

27%

49%

92IAIS aAISUBYRIdWO) 30N

24%

53%

S2JIAIS J31E7 pue Jaljle]

26%

54%

sJ21|2ys Jo sdois snq 421129

30%

54%

sawi] Asuunor a|gel|2y aJoAl

27%

58%

UOIJBWLIOJU| 2DIAJI3S SNG 0} SSDJY J3ISe]

24%

67%

321AJ3S Juanbali4 aio

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

22



Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Figure 4-8: Measures that would encourage residents of North West Leicestershire to increase their bus use

OTo some extent

O A great deal

100%

90%

103

sawli] Asuinor Jay1np
uonewW.Ioul SNg-uo 121129

sasnq uo JuawAed a.ej SS9)10B3U0)
S2JIAIS J31E7 pue Jaljle]

sa.Jej} Jamo1

saJe} pueisiapun-o0l-Ja|dwis

uol2uuU0)
30IAIDS [IBY pUB 2J1AI3S Sng Ja1lag

ssauljues|) Janeg
S2DIAJI3S SN ABpUNS IO
UOIJBWLIOJU| 2DIAJI3S SNG 0} SSDJY J3ISe]

321AJ3S Juanbali4 aio

SIBALIP
SNQ W04} 3J1AISS J2WOISND Ja11ag
dde ue y1im 22130U 10YS 1B PaY00(
9 P|N0J 1BY3 S2IAI3S SN PUBWISP-UQ

8unesas jo Alljige|ieae Ja13ag

1JIm JO Alljige|ieAe 121199

s10n
Jojesado-i|nw Jo Alljiqe|ieAe JapIp

sasng pajeJsadQ 2143939|3 / UOISSIWI-0137

sJ21|2ys Jo sdois snq 421129

92IAIS aAISUBYRIdWO) 30N

S3[2IYA UISPOIA 340N

sawi] Asuunor a|gel|2y aJoAl

80%

SIS

o | O

—~ | -

X X

9] 0

™~ —

X X

LN —

™~ ™~

X X

— 2]

[n0] ™~

X X

— LN

™~ ™~

X X

o] w

™~ ™~

X X

00 ~

™~ ™~

X X

LN o

™~ o

X X

< —

™~ o

X X
o o~
[n0] o
X X
~ Ln
m m
X X
o w
™~ m
X S
o] )]
™~ o
X X
™~ —
™~ =
X X
< o~
™~ =
X X
LN m
™~ =
X X
< LN
™~ =
X X
M~ )]
— =
X X
™~ LN
™~ LN
X X
o LN
™~ LN
X X
[Xe) o~
= (o]

X R R R R R R

o o o O O O O

~ O W = ™M o~

0%

23



Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Figure 4-9: Measures that would encourage residents of Oadby and Wigston to increase their bus use

OTo some extent

O A great deal

100%

104

321AJ3S Juanbali4 aio

8unesas jo Alljige|ieae Ja13ag

dde ue y1im 22130U 10YS 1B PaY00(
9 P|N0J 1BY3 S2IAI3S SN PUBWISP-UQ

1JIm JO Alljige|ieAe 121199

sasng pajeJsadQ 2143939|3 / UOISSIWI-0137
S2DIAJI3S SN ABpUNS IO

ssauljues|) Janeg

sJ21|2ys Jo sdois snq 421129

SIsALIp
SNQ WoJdj 22IAlas J1aWolsnd Jolleyg

sawi] Asuunor a|gel|2y aJoAl
sa.Jej} Jamo1

UOIJBWLIOJU| 2DIAJI3S SNG 0} SSDJY J3ISe]

sasnq uo JuawAed a.ej SS9)10B3U0)

uol2uuU0)
30IAIDS [IBY pUB 2J1AI3S Sng Ja1lag

S2JIAIS J31E7 pue Jaljle]

s10n
Jojesado-i|nw Jo Alljiqe|ieAe JapIp

S3[2IYA UISPOIA 340N

92IAIS aAISUBYRIdWO) 30N

uollewJiojul sng-uo Jelleog

saJe} pueisiapun-o0l-Ja|dwis

sawli] Asuinor Jay1np

X N
= | ™~
— | =
X BB
o | uw
o R O s |
X o
a o
(o] (o]
X o
o m
o (o]
X o
m =t
(o] (o]
X e
o o
=t o~
X e
o [=0]
(o] (o]
X e
LN —
(o] o
X o
— o
o o
X o
[=0] =t
=t om
X e
=] [=0]
(o] o
X o
~ a
o o
X e
o LN
om =t
X e
— o
om =t
X e
m [=9]
o~ =t
X e
=] [=9]
o~ =t
X o
~ a
o~ =t
X e
[=0] —
(o] LN
X e
LN [=0]
o LN
X o
— [=1]
(o] LN
X o
o m
o~ K]
X X X X X R XK
o o O o o o o o o
a0 ™~ W W st Mo~

0%

24



Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Figure 4-10: Measures that would encourage residents of Melton to increase their bus use

OTo some extent

O A great deal

100%

90%

105

1JIm Jo AJijige|ieAe Janlag

sasng pajesadQ 2143239|3 / UOISSIWTI-0497
SI9AIIP SNQ WOJ) 3JIAISS J2WOISND 121199
8unesas jo Alljige|ieae Ja13ag

SaJe) puelstapun-03-1ajdwis

s10n
Jojesado-i|nw Jo Alljiqe|ieAe JapIp

uollewJiojul sng-uo Jelleog

dde ue y1im 22130U 10YS 1B PaY00(
9 P|N0J 1BY3 S2IAI3S SN PUBWISP-UQ

S3[2IYA UISPOIA 340N
S2DIAJI3S SN ABpUNS IO
ssauljues|) Janeg

sasnq uo JuawAed a.ej SS9)10B3U0)

sawli] Asuinor Jay1np

sJ21|2ys Jo sdois snq 421129

SoJil JoMO7

UOI}BWIOJU| 9JIAIS SNY 0} SS00Y J3Ise]

uol2uuU0)
30IAIDS [IBY pUB 2J1AI3S Sng Ja1lag

sawi] Asuunor a|gel|2y aJoAl

92IAIS aAISUBYRIdWO) 30N

S2JIAIS J31E7 pue Jaljle]

321AJ3S Juanbali4 aio

(=]
D S
~N | D
X X
o] M~
™~ —
S
0 0
— —
X X
< 0
™~ —
X X
o —
m ™~
X X
o~ <
[n0] ™~
X X
— w
[n0] ™~
X X
o w
™~ ™~
X X
— w
™~ ™~
X X
LN o]
™~ ™~
X X
o] )]
™~ ™~
X X
— m
m m
X X
o] 0
™~ o
X X
o] o
™~ =
X X
0 <
— =
X X
LN w
o =
X X
— ~
o =
X X
< (32]
™~ L
X X
0 —
— (o]
X X
< <
— (o]
X X
.I. M~
™~ Lo
X R R R R R R R
o O O O O O o O
0 M~ W W = mMm o~

0%

25



106

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

411

412

413

414

415

Age group

This section details the measures that were considered by respondents from different
age groups to be the most effective in encouraging them to increase their bus usage
within Leicestershire. For the purpose of this analysis, the age groups were combined
as follows:

Under 25
25— 44
45 - 64
65+

Similar patterns are generally seen across all age groups with measures considered
most effective (where higher proportions of respondents rate a measure by ‘a great
deal’) relatively consistent. A comparative summary of the ‘Top 5" measures
considered most effective at increasing bus use per age group is shown in Table 4-3,
with Figure 4-11, Figure 4-12, Figure 4-13 and Figure 4-14 providing a more detailed
breakdown across all measures by ‘a great deal’ and ‘to some extent'.

A significant proportion (72%) of under-25's perceived that their bus usage would
increase by ‘a great deal’ with the implementation of lower fares. This measure was
also considered effective by the 25-44 and 45-64 age groups but to a lesser extent
(57% and 53% respectively). In comparison, only 34% of respondents over the age of
64 perceived lower fares would increase their bus use by ‘a great deal’, as the majority
of this age group would be eligible for free travel for most of their journeys via the
English National Concessionary Travel Scheme (ENCTS). Views on earlier and later bus
services also differed between younger and older age groups, with a consensus
between under-25s, 25-44s and 45-64s (over 55%) considering this measure would
increase their bus usage by ‘a great deal’, compared to only 33% of those aged over
64.

Respondents within the older age groups (45-64s and over 65) placed more
importance on having easier access to bus service information than those in the
younger age groups (under 25 and 25-44). This measure was perceived as most
effective by those over 65, with 60% considering this would increase their bus usage by
'a great deal'.

All four age groups were consistent in their views on the measures that may have little
effect on increasing their bus usage, with the smallest proportions across all measures

26



107

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

deeming that better availability of Wi-Fi would increase their bus usage by ‘a great
deal".

Table 4-3: Summary comparison of the 'Top 5' measures considered most

effective per age group

Ranking Under 25 25-44
(based on ‘a
great deal’)

1 Lower fares More Frequent More Frequent  Easier Access to
Service Service Bus Service
Information
2 More Frequent = Lower fares Earlier and Later = Better bus stops
Service Services or shelters
3 Earlier and Later Earlier and Later  Easier Access to  More Frequent
Services Services Bus Service Service
Information
4 Wider Contactless fare Lower fares More
availability of payment on Comprehensive
multi-operator  buses Service
tickets
5 Better bus More Wider More Reliable
stops or Comprehensive availability of Journey Times
shelters Service multi-operator
tickets

27



23%

35%

29%

OTo some extent

32%

33%

41%

O A great deal

36%

42%

23%

31%

22%

38%

28%

39%

38%

29%

25%

22%

20%

1JIm JO Alljige|ieAe 121199

S3[2IYA UISPOIA 340N

SIsALIp
SNQ WoJdj 22IAlas J1aWolsnd Jolleyg

sasng pajeadQ 2141933 / UOISSIWI-0497
8unesas jo Alljige|ieae Ja13ag

ssauljues|) Joneg

Uol1BW.IOUI SNQ-UO J2119g

SaJej pueisiapun-o03-1ajdwis

dde ue y1im 22130U 10YS 1B PaY00(
9 P|N0J 1BY3 S2IAI3S SN PUBWISP-UQ

S2DIAJI3S SN ABpUNS IO

uol2uuU0)
30IAIDS [IBY pUB 2J1AI3S Sng Ja1lag

sawli] Asuinor Jay1np

92IAIS aAISUBYRIdWO) 30N
UOIJBWLIOJU| 2DIAJI3S SNG 0} SSDJY J3ISe]
sawi] Asuunor a|gel|2y aJoAl

sasnq uo JuawAed a.ej SS9)10B3U0)

sJ21|2ys Jo sdois snq 421129

s10n
Jojesado-i|nw Jo Alljiqe|ieAe JapIp

S2JIAIS J31E7 pue Jaljle]

15%

321AJ3S Juanbali4 aio

20%

SoJil JoMO7

90%
80%
70%

Figure 4-11: Measures that would encourage under-25's to increase their bus use
100%

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

28



Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Figure 4-12: Measures that would encourage 25-44-year-olds to increase their bus use

OTo some extent

O A great deal

100%

90%

109

18%

13%

28%

19%

24%

22%

25%

25%

31%

26%

31%

28%

30%

31%

29%

32%

22%

34%

30%

36%

25%

37%

38%

37%

28%

45%

28%

46%

1JIm JO Alljige|ieAe 121199

SIsALIp
SNQ WoJdj 22IAlas J1aWolsnd Jolleyg

S3[2IYA UISPOIA 340N

sasng
paiesadQ 214193|3 / UOISSIWI-0437

8unesas jo Alljige|ieae Ja13ag
uollew.Jojul sng-uo 1a139g
ssauljuea|) Ja1199

S21AI3S SNQ ABPUNS 2I0IA]

**UB U}IM 32130U 1IOYS 1B paxy00(q aq
PIN0J 1BY3 SJIAI3S SN PUBWIAP-UQ

saJe} pueisiapun-o0l-Ja|dwis

uol2uuU0)
30IAIDS [IBY pUB 2J1AI3S Sng Ja1lag

sawli] Asuinor Jay1np
sJ21|2ys Jo sdois snq 421129

sawi] Asuunor a|gel|2y aJoAl

25%

49%

s10n
Jojesado-i|nw Jo Alljiqe|ieAe JapIp

28%

50%

uonewJoul
32IAJS Sng 0] $S222Y Jalse]

25%

51%

92IAIS aAISUBYRIdWO) 30N

24%

53%

sasnq uo JuawAed a.ej SS9)10B3U0)

19%

55%

S2JIAIS J31E7 pue Jaljle]

23%

57%

SoJil JoMO7

23%

60%

321AJ3S Juanbali4 aio

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

29



Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Figure 4-13: Measures that would encourage 45-64-year-olds to increase their bus use

O To some extent

OA great deal

100%

110

1JIm JO Alljige|ieAe 121199
S3[2IYA UISPOIA 340N
SI2AIIP SNQ WO} 92IAIS JOWOISND J311ag

8unesas jo Alljige|ieae Ja13ag

dde ue y1im 22130U 10YS 1B PaY00(
9 P|N0J 1BY3 S2IAI3S SN PUBWISP-UQ

sasng pajesadQ 214393|3 / UOISS|WI-0137
S2DIAJI3S SN ABpUNS IO

ssauljues|) Janeg

uonewW.Ioul SNg-uo 121129

sawli] Asuinor Jay1np

uol2uuU0)
30IAIDS [IBY pUB 2J1AI3S Sng Ja1lag

sawi] Asuunor a|gel|2y aJoAl
saJej pueisiapun-03}-ia|dwis
sasnq uo JuawAed a.ej SS9)10B3U0)

sJ21|2ys Jo sdois snq 421129

92IAIS aAISUBYRIdWO) 30N

s10n
Jojesado-i|nw Jo Alljiqe|ieAe JapIp

SoJil JoMO7

UOI}BWIOJU| 9JIAIS SNY 0} SS00Y J3Ise]

S2JIAIS J31E7 pue Jaljle]

321AJ3S Juanbali4 aio

90%

(=]
S|
~N |9
X X
o )]
o —
X X
— —
[n0] ™~
X X
LN —
[n0] ™~
X X
o] LN
o~ ™~
X X
~ ~
[n0] ™~
X X
o o]
[n0] ™~
X X
M~ o]
[n0] ™~
X X
)] o
[n0] o
X X
o <
= o
X X
< ~
m m
X X
M~ —
o =
X X
(] m
o =
X X
o <
o =
X X
m L
o =
X X
— o
[n0] LN
X X
r~ —
o~ LN
X X
— m
m L
X X
— <
[n0] LN
X X
o] w
o~ LN
X X
o ~
o Lo
X R R R R R R R
o O O O O O o O
0 M~ W W = mMm o~

0%

30



Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Fiaure 4-14: Measures that would encouraae people aaed 65+ to increase their bus use

OTo some extent

O A great deal

100%

111

(=]
S [ ® 1m Jo Ayljigeiene Jannag
o~ =]
N e dde ue y3Im 20110U JI0Ys Je paxyooq 3q
X a PIN02 1Y) S3IIAISS SNQ PUBWISP-UQ
(=] (=]
X S S9)2IYaA UISPON IO
on (o]
(=] (=]
W W 8unesas jo Alljige|ieae Ja13ag
=t o~
< < SIBALIP
o N SNQ WOJJ 32IAI9S J3WO0ISND 19119
(=] (=]
R W S9.B) pUB1SIaPUN-01-13|dWIS
(o] (o]
(=] (=]
= S $321AJ3S SN ABPUNS 210N
o (o]
(=] (=]
N & ssauljues|) Ja11eg
=t o~
(=] (=]
N N sawi] AsuJnor JaxyaInp
on (o]
< < SENEN
N 2 Jo1e4ado-n|nw Jo AYljige|ieAe JapIm
(=] (=]
S N SaJe) JaMOT
[ o
(=] (=]
& N $921AI3S J21eT pUe JaljJed
[ o
x 2 sasnyg
o o pajeJadQ 21199|3 / UOISSIWI-0497
S = sasn
o &0 g uo uswAed aJe} ssa30RIUO)
(o] on
N N uo23UU0)
o P 921AJI3S [IBY PUB 92IAISS SNg Ja119g
(=] (=]
X N UOIBW.IOJUI SNQ-UO 13119
o on
(=] (=]
3 A sawi] AsuJnor a|qelay 240
om =t
S S =ISE
& N IAI3S 9AISUBYIdWO)) IO
o LN
(=] (=]
W S 32135 Juanbal4 alo
(o] [¥p]
(=] (=]
S S s191[2ys Jo sdo1s snq 121199
o [¥p]
N N UoNEBW.IOJU|
2 3 30IAJS SN 03 $S300Y JoISe]
XX
o O O O O o o o o o

31



112

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Gender

416 A more frequent bus service was perceived as the most effective measure at increasing
bus usage for respondents across all genders. 56% of males, 66% of females and 71%
of those that prefer to self-describe considered this would increase their bus usage ‘a
great deal’

417 There was agreement across the genders on three of the top five measures which
would increase their bus use to a great extent. As well as a more frequent service,
‘earlier and later services' and ‘easier access to bus service information” were
considered to be effective. Figure 4-15, Figure 4-16 and Figure 4-17Table 4-5 provide
a more detailed breakdown across all measures by ‘a great deal’ and ‘to some extent'.

Table 4-4: Summary comparison of the 'Top 5' measures considered most

effective per gender

Ranking Prefer to self-describe
(based on ‘a
great deal’)
1 More Frequent Service More Frequent Service  More Frequent Service
2 Earlier and Later Easier Access to Bus Lower fares
Services Service Information
3 More Comprehensive  More Comprehensive Earlier and Later
Service Service Services
4 Lower fares Better bus stops or Easier Access to Bus
shelters Service Information
5 Easier Access to Bus Earlier and Later Better bus stops or
Service Information Services shelters

32



113

OTo some extent

O A great deal

(=] (=]
N W 111m Jo Alljiqe|ieae Ja11eg
o —
= X
oy P SI9AIIP SNQ WOJ) 9IIAIDS JI9WOISND 193199
o —
(=] (=]
w5,, W guijeas jo Ajljige|ieae 1a11ag
o (o]
(=] (=]
W W ssauljuea|) Jayiag
o (o]
) = dde ue yjm ad130u JPoOYs e payooq
o m_.,_ 9( P|N02 1BY] S32IAISS SNQ puewap-uQ
(=] (=]
w5x W S3|21YaA\ UIBPOIA 3J0|A
o (o]
= X
oy R~ sasng pajesadQ 214308|3 / UOISSIWI-0487
o (o]
(=] (=]
w5x W uoljewJoful sng-uo 1a31ag
o (o]
(=] (=]
w_,m W $821AJ8S snq Aepung aJo|p
o o
(=] (=]
W W sawl] AsuinorJaaInD
o o
(=] (=]
W W sale} puejsiapun-o}-Jajdwis
(o] o
= X
S R~ sawl] Asuinor ajqelay aJ0N
= on
] ] uolPauu0)
= m 9JIAIBS |leY pue 32IAJI3S Shyg 181199
X X
~ & sasng uo juswAed aiej ssa|10LIUOD
o <t
= X
o) o) s193213 Jojesado-iynw jo Ayljige|ieae Japim
o =
(=] (=]
wa _mx.,, sJ932ys 40 sdo3ls snq Ja211ag
on =
X X
& & UOI}eW.IOU| 3DIAIBS SNY 03 S22y JalIse]
on <
(=] (=]
w3x W SaJej Jomo
o =
= X
P & 82IAI9S BAISUBYaIdW O] BIOA
o =
(=] (=]
w3x W S9OIAIDS J9)eT pue Jsljie]
o =
(=] (=]
ww W 921/JDS JUDNbal{ 210N
o LN

90%
80%
70%
60%
50%

Figure 4-15: Measures that would encourage males to increase their bus use
100%

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

33



Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Figure 4-16: Measures that would encourage females to increase their bus use

O To some extent

OA great deal

100%

114

23%
10%

32%
18%

22%

33%

37%
25%

23%
27%

33%
27%

33%
28%

31%

40%
33%

33%

31%
35%

31%
36%

26%
44%

44%

32%
48%

26%
49%

24%
49%

51%

31%

29%
52%

29%
57%

1J1m Jo Ajijige|iene Ja11ag
S9|2IYdA UISPO|A 3JOIA
SIDALIP SN WOJ) 3JIAISS JBWOISND 183399

guijeas jo Ajljige|ieae 1a11ag

dde ue y3m 92130u HOYS je payooq
9 p|NOJ JBY3 SAJIAIDS SN PUBWBP-UQ

S2IAI3S SNQ ABpuns 3JOA

sasng pajesadQ 21309|3 / UOISSIWI-01a7
ssauljuea|) Ja11ag

sawi] Asuinor JaydInD

uoljewiojul sng-uo Jajlayg

uoI3auUU0)
9DIAIDS [IBY PUB DIIAIBS SNy 191199

SaJej pueisiapun-0}-1a|dwis

s3)213 Jojesado-13|nw jo Ajljige|ieae JapipA
sasng uo juawAed aJej $S3[30LIUOD

sawi] Asuinor a|qel@y 10N

SaJej JaMoT]

S32IAI9S J9)eT pUe J3ljJe]

s191ays Jo sdois snq 191199

92IAJ3S dAISUayaIdw o) 10N

UOIJBWIOJU| 3JIAIDS SNY 03 SS9IIY Jalse]

90%

22%
66%

92IA9S JUanbal aJoy

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

34



Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Figure 4-17: Measures that would encourage those that prefer to self-describe gender to increase their bus use

100%

O To some extent

OA great deal

115

X S
- n
o —
S S
™ ™
~ o~
o
STE
©0 o
X X
- -
o )
S X
n -
— )
S X
™ -
~ )
S S
n 0o
— ]
S S
n 0o
— )
S S
n 0o
— )
X S
- 0o
o )
X S
- 0o
o )
S S
0o 0o
] ]
o
ST
oo <
S R
n ©
— <
o
I
~ LN
S X
n <
— )
o
S F
o LN
S X
< ~
o n
X X
— ~
~ n
S X
™ ~
phd )
o
< 2
~ ~

SJALIP SN WOJ} 9I1AISS J2WO0ISND 191199
ssauljues|) Ja11ag

1}1m Jo Aljiqe|ieAe 193399

guijeas jo Ajljige|ieae 1a11ag

sasng pajelad(Q 2141983 / UOISSIWI-0137
S3|21Yya/ UISPO|A 210N

saJej puejsiapun-o3-Jajdwis

dde ue y3m 92130u HOYS je payooq
9 p|NOJ JBY3 SAJIAIDS SN PUBWBP-UQ

uoI3auUU0)
9DIAIDS [IBY PUB DIIAIBS SNy 191199

92IAJ3S dAISUayaIdw o) 10N

sawi] Asuinor a|qel@y 10N

sawi] Asuinor JaydInD

s3)213 Jojesado-13|nw jo Ajljige|ieae JapipA
S2IAI3S SNQ ABpuns 3JOA

sasng uo juawAed aJej $S3[30LIUOD
UOIlBWIOJUI SNQ-UO 13}19g

s191ays Jo sdois snq 191199

UOIJBWIOJU| 3JIAIDS SNY 03 SS9IIY Jalse]
S32IAI9S J9)eT pUe J3ljJe]

SaJej JaMoT]

92IA9S JUanbal aJoy

35



116

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Concessionary passholding

418 57% of non-concessionary passholders considered lower fares would increase their bus
usage ‘a great deal’. Conversely (and unsurprisingly), only 29% of those that do hold a
concessionary pass thought the same A comparison of the ‘Top 5" measures
considered most effective at increasing bus use of concessionary passholders and non-
passholders is shown in Table 4-5, with a more detailed breakdown across all measures
shown in Figure 4-18 and Figure 4-19. Passholders and non-passholders were in
agreement on two of the top five measures most likely to encourage them to use
buses more — ‘a more frequent service' and ‘easier access to bus service information’.
Better bus stops and shelters was the key measure likely to increase bus use among
passholders.

Table 4-5: Summary comparison of the 'Top 5' measures considered most

effective between concessionary passholders and non-passholders

Rating (based on Concessionary passholder Non-passholder
‘a great deal’)
1 Better bus stops or shelters More Frequent Service
2 Easier Access to Bus Service Lower fares
Information

3 More Frequent Service Earlier and Later Services

4 More Comprehensive Service Easier Access to Bus Service
Information

5 More Reliable Journey Times Wider availability of multi-

operator tickets

36



Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Figure 4-18: Measures that would encourage concessionary passholders to increase their bus use

OTo some extent

O A great deal

100%

117

o
SR
29
X X
[e0] (o)
— —
X X
[Tp] (]
on (o]
X X
(o] [Fp]
= o
X X
on [Fp]
o [
X X
— (o]
[ (o]
X X
LN (o]
= o
X X
o [e0]
on (o]
X X
()] (@)
on (o]
X X
< (@)
(] (o]
X X
o (@)
(] [
X X
(a] on
o o
S =<
~ <
(] o
X X
(o] <
[ o
X X
— [e0]
on o
X X
0 o
m =
X X
(o] <
om =
X X
[#)] on
[ LN
X X
(o] (o)
[ LN
X X
o (o)
on LN
X X
o) o
o [Xs]
X XXX XXX XXX
o O O O O O O O o O
gy 00 I~ W W < M o~

1JIm JO Alljige|ieAe 121199

dde ue y1im 22130U 10YS 1B PaY00(
9 P|N0J 1BY3 S2IAI3S SN PUBWISP-UQ

S3[2IYA UISPOIA 340N

8unesas jo Alljige|ieae Ja13ag

SIsALIp
SNQ WoJdj 22IAlas J1aWolsnd Jolleyg

saJej pueisiapun-03}-ia|dwis
ssauljues|) Janeg
S2DIAJI3S SN ABpUNS IO

sawli] Asuinor Jay1np

s10n
Jojesado-i|nw Jo Alljiqe|ieAe JapIp

SoJil JoMO7

sasng
paiesadQ 214193|3 / UOISSIWI-0437

S2JIAIS J31E7 pue Jaljle]

sasnq uo JuawAed a.ej SS9)10B3U0)

uol2uuU0)
30IAIDS [IBY pUB 2J1AI3S Sng Ja1lag

uonewW.Ioul SNg-uo 121129
sawi] Asuunor a|gel|2y aJoAl
92IAIS aAISUBYRIdWO) 30N

321AJ3S Juanbali4 aio

uonewJoul
32IAJS Sng 0] $S222Y Jalse]

sJ21|2ys Jo sdois snq 421129

37



Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Figure 4-19: Measures that would encourage non-passholders to increase their bus use

OTo some extent

O A great deal

100%

118

23%

11%

30%

19%

28%

20%

34%

23%

30%

26%

36%

28%

30%

28%

1JIm JO Alljige|ieAe 121199

SIsALIp
SNQ WoJdj 22IAlas J1aWolsnd Jolleyg

S3[2IYA UISPOIA 340N

8unesas jo Alljige|ieae Ja13ag

sasng
paiesadQ 214193|3 / UOISSIWI-0437

uollewJiojul sng-uo Jelleog

S2DIAJI3S SN ABpUNS IO

25%

29%

dde ue y1im 22130U 10YS 1B PaY00(
9 P|N0J 1BY3 S2IAI3S SN PUBWISP-UQ

34%

30%

ssauljues|) Janeg

39%

35%

sawli] Asuinor Jay1np

30%

37%

uol2uuU0)
30IAIDS [IBY pUB 2J1AI3S Sng Ja1lag

33%

39%

saJe} pueisiapun-o0l-Ja|dwis

44%

sawi] Asuunor a|gel|2y aJoAl

45%

sJ21|2ys Jo sdois snq 421129

48%

sasnq uo JuawAed a.ej SS9)10B3U0)

49%

92IAIS aAISUBYRIdWO) 30N

51%

s10n
Jojesado-i|nw Jo Alljiqe|ieAe JapIp

52%

uonewJoul
32IAJS Sng 0] $S222Y Jalse]

56%

S2JIAIS J31E7 pue Jaljle]

57%

SoJil JoMO7

64%

321AJ3S Juanbali4 aio

30%

20%

10%

0%

38



119

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

419

4.20

4.21

4.22

Councillors and Organisation Representatives

This section explores the responses from those that responded to the survey in any
other role, including district and local councillors and representatives of organisations,
both in an official and non-official capacity. They account for 5% (82 responses) of the
total number of responses received with 14 (17%) of these people providing a
response on behalf of an organisation.

A more frequent service was perceived as the most effective measure that would
encourage the people they represented to increase their bus use within Leicestershire.
68% (53) felt this measure would increase their bus usage by ‘a great deal’ with a
further 23% (18) responding ‘to some extent’ (see Figure 4-20). This is consistent with
the response received from residents and visitors, who also perceived a more frequent

service as most effective in increasing their bus use.

Easier access to bus service information and earlier and later services were the
measures that were also considered most likely to increase bus use among the people
they represented.

Factors that councillors and representatives considered less effective in increasing bus
use included:

Better customer service from bus drivers
Better Cleanliness

On-demand bus services that could be booked at short notice with an app

39



Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

Figure 4-20: Measures that would increase bus use as perceived by local councillors and organisation representatives

OTo some extent

O A great deal

100%

120

X X
[o.0] [o.0]
(30} —
=X =X
o [#)]
LN —
=X =X
=t [#)]
=t —
=X =X
o o
=t o
=X =X
Ty o
o o
=X =X
o o
=t o
=X =X
o™ —
=t o
=X =X
)] o
o o
=X =X
— =t
=t o
=X =X
™~ Ty
=t o
=X X
o [o.0]
=t o
=X =X
(le] o
(32} <t
=X =X
()] Ty
(30} <t
=X =X
()] Ty
o™ <t
=X =X
Ty (o]
o~ <
=X =X
o o
o Ty
=X =X
<t <t
o LN
=X =X
(le] T
o LN
=X =X
o T
o LN
=X =X
=t a
o LN
=X X
o [o.0]
o [(s]
X X XX XXX
o O O o O o o O o
g o0 M~ W W =t o o o

0%

dde ue y3m 92130u HOYS je payooq
9 p|NOJ JBY3 SAJIAIDS SN PUBWBP-UQ

ssauljues|) 493399
SJ9AIIP SNQ WOJ) 9IIAIDS J19WO0ISNI 193399
S9|21Yd/\ UJSPOIA DJIOA

111m Jo Alljiqe|ieAe Ja1199

guijeas jo Ajljige|ieae 1a11ag

S921AI9S snq Aepuns 1o

sasng pajeladQ 2143283 / UOISSIWT-0197
sawi] AsuinorJaydInD

UOIjeWIOJUl SNQ-UO J9}399

sale} puelsiapun-o3}-iajdwis

sJ23|ays Jo sdojs snq 491199

sawi] Asuinor a|qel|ay 240\

Sale} Jamo

uoI3auUU0)
9DIAIDS [IBY PUB DIIAIBS SNy 191199

s39Y213
Jojesado-13nw jo Ajljige|ieAe JapIpA

92IAJ3S dAISUayaIdw o) 10N

S32IAI9S J9)eT pUe J3ljJe]

sasng uo juawAed aJej $S3[30LIUOD
UOIJBWIOJU| 3JIAIDS SNY 03 SS9IIY Jalse]

92IA9S JUanbal aJoy

40



121

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

5. Summary and Conclusions

51 This report has set out the main findings of the Leicestershire CC BSIP Public
Engagement Survey based on analysis of the ‘closed’ questions included in the
questionnaire. A good overall sample size was achieved, although this was not fully
representative of the general population, with certain groups being under-represented
(e.g. males, younger people, and residents of Melton and Oadby & Wigston).

52 The survey questions on people’s travel habits revealed that shopping and leisure were
the most common trip purposes for bus use before the Covid pandemic. 54% of
individual respondents expected their bus use to be the same after the pandemic as
before. Encouragingly, a higher proportion of respondents expected to make more use
of buses post-pandemic than they had before.

53 The survey responses from the overall sample of individuals (Leicestershire residents
and visitors) showed the top 10 priorities shown in Table 5-1, as defined by number of
responses indicating that they would make respondents likely to use buses ‘a great
deal’ more. This table also highlights where those priorities differ between different
respondent sub-groups, as highlighted within this report.

Table 5-1: Ranked priorities of individual respondents and different sub-groups

wv
(]
=
©
IS
&
o
2 o
= (0}
4 N n =
g 215|6 s| |6
SBR[ 2[5
= @B [} K]
2 % 5] % e ?) < [ 24 s
vls o5 |8 o 8 wn | T ‘ur k? I LB |, D
o | 9 SIF[3|= S [E v |tn [:n ()} [N oy i =3
K| Sl8|2|o|l2|5|w|c o|©

S(c|E|2(=|8|2|o|a|2|N|X|L Tl2lo
w| 0| c|®|gls|T|T|T|T|T gm—o&i
222 IBI219|515/8|5/8/8/8| | |5lalals
AHEHEEEEHEH B
HENHESHE R AR EREE

o2 ® |= T|o|o|o|o|w =

Top 10 measures (all individual responses) CIEZIGIEIE % SIZ2lele|el1g12]218l812]8
1|More frequent service T 1 T T 2 2f 1 1 30 1 1 1 3 11
2|Easier access to bus service information 3| 2| 2| 3| 3| 2|12|10| 6| 8| 6| 3| 1| 5| 2| 4| 2| 4| 2
3|More comprehensive (local buses serving more destinati{ 4| 5| 3| 6| 6 6| 3| 4| 3| 9| 5| 6| 4| 3| 3[{12| 4| 6] 5
4|Better bus stops or shelters 2| 7| 5| 2| 4| 4| 4[14| 8| 5| 9| 7| 2| 6| 4| 5| 1| 8|10
5|Earlier and later services 5/ 6] 6| 9| 2| 5[18| 7| 2| 3| 3| 2[10| 2| 5| 3| 9| 3| 4
6|Lower fares 7| 3| 4| 5| 7| 8|17|11 7| 1| 2| 4|11 4| 6| 2|11| 2| 8
7|Wider availability of multi-operator tickets 8| 8| 7| 4| 8| 7| 6| 6|16 4| 7| 5|12| 7| 9| 9|12| 5| 6
8|More reliable journey times 6|11 8| 7{10| 3| 1[12| 4| 7| 8|10| 5[10| 7|{11| 5| 9| 9
9|Contactless fare payment on buses 9| 4| 9| 8| 5| 9|19| 9(10| 6| 4| 8| 8| 8| 8| 7| 8 7| 3
10(Better bus service and rail service connections 10(10{10{11| 9|{13(15| 8| 5(11|11|11| 7| 9|11|13]| 7{11| 7

41



122

Leicestershire BSIP - Public Engagement Survey Findings

54 This information, alongside views and inputs from bus operators and council officers,
forms invaluable input into shaping Leicestershire’s Bus Service Improvement Plan
(BSIP).



QAS INTERNATIONAL QAS INTERNATIONAL

REGISTERED COMPANY REGISTERED COMPANY

Integrated Transport Planning Ltd
Charles House

148 Great Charles Street
Birmingham

B3 3HT UK

+44 (0)121 285 7301

Integrated Transport Planning Ltd
Build Studios

203 Westminster Bridge Road
London

SE1 7FR UK

+44 (0)7498 563196

Integrated Transport Planning Ltd
1 Broadway

Nottingham

NG1 1PR UK

+44 (0)115 824 8250

www.itpworld.net

a company of Royal HaskoningDHV




This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

Leicestershire County Council

National Bus Strategy

Bus Service Improvement Plan

Version 2-5

October 2021

@ ——
P—mg,
i eﬂi. ’ IF
)‘_,.’- v '};_1:

a company of Royal HaskoningDHV



EWalters_2
Text Box
APPENDIX B


126

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Table of Contents

0. INTFOAUCTION ..ottt ettt 1
1. OVEIVIEW ..ottt s bbb 3
LTA ReSPONSIDIE fOr the BSIP........iereerieeieeerie et sssssssssssssssssssss st s s st sssnssns 3
Area Covered DY the BSIP ...t sssse e sse s seessans 3
ENhanced Partnership. ...t ssse s s sssssesessss e ssasssanens 5
DIUFTION ...ttt s st 5
Alignment with Local Transport Plan...........ccieeceeneeessesessessesessesssessesssnessnes 5
Alignment with Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy .......ccoerneenrinninreeennssssensinnenn. 6
OUE VISION ottt st 6
OU AIM aNA ODJECLIVES ..ottt 6
2. Current Bus Offer 10 PASSENGELS ...t ssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnses 8
Analysis Of EXiStING BUS SEIVICES .....covuuumreemereceiiseeisseeesiseeeseessseessseesasssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssesssssesssnes 8
BUS INETWOTK ..ottt bbb 10
BUS FIEET .ottt bbb 13
Traffic congestion and traffiC [EVEIS ... 14
FAreS and TICKETING .ottt ssss st s s st st ssessnes 14
Timetables and INfOrMAatioN..........oo.iiiiri ettt 15
ReSPONSIDIlity fOr DUS SEIVICES ...ttt e ssssesssssesssesssseees 15
Local Operators and the County COUNCIl........cooorirrirrirererninriesiese et sseseesenes 16
PUDIIC ENGAGEMENT ...ttt sttt 16
Other Factors that Affect Use of Local BUS SEIVICES........ccoiecnnceneeineeiserineeiseeieceseeeeeenne 19
3. HEAdIINE TArQets ...ttt ssss s sttt ssss st sssssssssssasssanes 21
BASEIINE POSITION. ...ttt sttt anees 21
PerformancCe INAICATONS. ... ettt 23
Targets for Passenger Growth and Customer Satisfaction..........ccc.cocoernrinnrionrinerioneinnris 24
Targets for Journey Times and Reliability ... 25
Target for Bus EMiSSioNs StaNdards...........cocenrinrieienniinsinsissississsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssns 27
B, DEIIVEIY ottt sttt 29

SINGIE SYSTEM ..ottt sttt 30



127

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

RIIADIE ..ottt 36
ATFOIAADIE ..ottt 37
BASY 1O USE ettt ettt st s st 39
GIBEINEN ...ttt e e ettt 41
5. REPOMING ettt st 44
6. OVEIVIEW TaDI@ oottt 45
Annex 1: Bus delay NOtSPOLS ...ttt sss st ssssssses
Annex 2: General traffic delay maps for main Leicestershire towns ..........ccccovevuenee.
Annex 3: Current real time information display locations in Leicestershire.............

Annex 4: Town Centre Off-Road Parking Provision in Leicestershire



128

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

Introduction

Leicestershire County Council recognises the very important role that buses and other
passenger transport services have to play in keeping people and places connected,
especially in a largely rural county such as Leicestershire. Use of such services rather
than private car travel also helps reduce congestion, improves air quality in our towns,
and limits carbon emissions.

Decarbonisation is clearly one of the high priority overall objectives for developing
increased use of better, cleaner bus services. The County Council has declared a
Climate Emergency and has pledged to reach a revised target of achieving 'net zero’
across the county by 2045 — five years sooner than the government target of 2050.

In line with this, the Leicester & Leicestershire Strategic Growth Plan has a strong
emphasis on ‘clean growth’, for which greater bus use will be a key delivery strand.

The county already has a number of major employment areas, including Magna Park
(the largest distribution hub in Europe), and the East Midlands Gateway adjacent to the
airport. It is vital that public transport use is maximised for workers at these and other
future major employment parks if ‘clean growth’ is to be achieved.

This document presents the Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP), which
sets out our ambitions to deliver the Government National Bus Strategy, which the
council fully supports. It has been developed by Leicestershire County Council and
consultants, ITP, in collaboration with bus operators in the county. It takes account of
views expressed by residents and visitors to Leicestershire and other interested parties
and organisations, as gathered through a countywide public engagement exercise. It
also takes account of discussions with neighbouring authorities, and community
transport operators.

The delivery vehicle for the Leicestershire BSIP will be an Enhanced Partnership (EP), in
which the County Council will work in partnership with all bus operators in the county
and other interested parties. The EP Plan and initial individual Schemes will be
developed and brought forward following formal adoption of this BSIP.

The Leicestershire BSIP is intended to be strongly led by user needs and desires.
Throughout, we have been cognisant of the views of the people of Leicestershire
expressed through public engagement, and have included further user needs research
in the initial stages of many of the themes and schemes included in the plan. The BSIP
is intended to be a ‘living document’; it will evolve as we learn from experience and
gather evidence.



129

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

0.7

0.8

The focus of the plan is strongly on growing the fare-paying customer market, with
concessionary passengers also benefiting from many of the initiatives included. A
particular focus is growth of patronage among young people (under 19) and young
adults (19-25). Our view is that these are key life stages when people who have been
regular bus travellers are often tempted to move from bus to car use. Getting young
people and young adults to use buses more is seen as a cornerstone of a future
sustainable Leicestershire bus network.

We believe that the Leicestershire BSIP represents an ambitious but realistic first step
on the road to revitalising the Leicestershire bus network. With funding from
Government, we will be able to deliver a brighter future for bus use in the county, that
will play a vital role in achieving Leicestershire’s aspirations to be a low-carbon, clean
growth area.



130

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

1.

1.1

12

13

14

15

Overview

LTA Responsible for the BSIP

The Leicestershire BSIP covers the area administered by Leicestershire County Council
as a local transport authority (LTA). It is therefore a single-LTA BSIP. Although
discussions are being undertaken with neighbouring authorities, because of the largely
rural / market town nature of the area there appears to be no real advantage of joining
to become a multi-LTA BSIP at this stage. Operating as a single-LTA BSIP has the
advantage that we are able to focus on a manageable (though large) area and the
particular needs of its residents, employers, and visitors.

Area Covered by the BSIP

The area covered by the Leicestershire BSIP is the administrative area of Leicestershire
County Council, as shown in Figure 1-1. Our BSIP area does not cover the City of
Leicester. However, we will work with operators and Leicester City Council to achieve
our BSIP vision in respect of county residents’ access to employment, education,
services and to leisure opportunities in the City.

Leicestershire has a population of around 706,000 (2019 mid-year estimate’). The
demographic profile by age and gender is shown in Figure 1-2. The county population
is ageing at a faster rate than the national average.

Leicestershire is predominantly a rural county, with 80% of the county’s land being
used for agriculture and approximately 55% of the county’s population living within
rural parishes. The county has approximately 150 settlements with a population of less
than 10,000, and approximately 150 small villages with a population of less than 250.
The majority of these small villages are located in the east of the County, within the
districts of Melton and Harborough.

There are a number of towns in Leicestershire. These include Ashby-de-la-Zouch,
Coalville, Earl Shilton, Hinckley, Loughborough, Lutterworth, Market Harborough,
Melton Mowbray, Oadby, and Wigston. A significant number of Leicestershire
residents also live within the Greater Leicester conurbation, just outside the city
council’s administrative boundary.

! https://www.Isr-online.org/population-and-census.html consulted July 2021.


https://www.lsr-online.org/population-and-census.html

131

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Figure 1-1: Leicestershire BSIP area (county boundary)

Leicestershire
County Council

Figure 1-2: Age and gender breakdown (2019 bars and 2018 marks)

90+ [ |
85-89 I
80-84 [l B |
75-79 [ I |
70-74 [ |
65-69 | B
60-64 L

55-59 . |
s0-54 I .
45-49 | ]

40-44 I
35-39 (L |
30-34 (L |
25-29 L |
20-24 | I |
15-19 [ |
10-14 I
5-9 I
0-4 [ |
20K 10K 0K 0K 10K 20K
2019 Population Males 2019 Population Females



132

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

1.6

1.7

18

19

Enhanced Partnership

Following initial discussions with Leicestershire’s bus operators (who were all strongly
supportive) and an analysis of the pros and cons of Enhanced Partnership or
Franchising in the local context, Leicestershire County Council published its Notice of
Intent in June 2021 to establish an Enhanced Partnership (EP). This is the preferred
mechanism to deliver the Leicestershire BSIP. A Partnership Working Group has been
established (including the local authority and all Leicestershire bus operators) to
collaboratively develop the BSIP, an EP Plan and EP Schemes. The Enhanced
Partnership will be formally in place by the end of March 2022.

The following bus operators are members of the EP Partnership Working Group: Arriva,
Centrebus, First, Kinchbus, Midland Classic, Nottingham City Transport, Paul Winson
Coaches, Roberts Coaches, Stagecoach, trentbarton, Uno Buses, Vectare.

Duration

It is proposed that the Leicestershire BSIP will cover a 10-year period initially. This will
give stability, consistency, and clarity of long-term vision to allow both LTA and bus
operators to commit to delivering a much-needed boost to bus services and usage.

The BSIP will be formally reviewed annually by Partnership members to ensure that it is
still fit-for-purpose and that it takes account of levels of funding availability,
technological developments and ongoing feedback from bus users and non-users. The
Enhanced Partnership members will meet at least quarterly to review progress on the
delivery of the BSIP, EP Plan and Schemes, and agree actions needed to keep on or
ahead of schedule.

Subject to there being no changes in national policy or funding, or any other material
changes, a major review will be undertaken prior to the 10-year anniversary and the
BSIP will be re-published at that point.

Alignment with Local Transport Plan

Leicestershire is currently in the process of developing a new Local Transport Plan
(LTP4). Our current Local Transport Plan (LTP3) runs until 2026. The six published goals
of the LTP are entirely consistent with the aim of the BSIP — to get more people using
buses through an improved bus network and better operation. These goals are:

Goal 1: A transport system that supports a prosperous economy and provides
successfully for population growth.



133

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

1.12

1.14

Goal 2: An efficient, resilient, and sustainable transport system that is well
managed and maintained.

Goal 3: A transport system that helps to reduce the carbon footprint of
Leicestershire.

Goal 4: An accessible and integrated transport system that helps promote equality
of opportunity for all our residents.

Goal 5: A transport system that improves the safety, health, and security of our
residents.

Goal 6: A transport system that helps to improve the quality of life for our
residents and makes Leicestershire a more attractive place to live.

The BSIP (and subsequently the EP Plan and EP Schemes) will form daughter
documents to the Local Transport Plan (current and future editions) to ensure that they
are embedded within the Leicestershire governance framework and culture.

Alignment with Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy

Our BSIP will align with the county’s Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy (PTPS),
which has been in operation since October 2018 and was developed against a
background of diminishing funds to support buses. The PTPS will be reviewed in full
once the BSIP and EP Plan have been developed to ensure that full alignment is
achieved.

Our Vision

The vision that sits behind the Leicestershire BSIP is one where the county’s bus
services are simply ‘best-in-class’. Our future bus network will seamlessly connect
people with employment locations, education and training opportunities, key services,
other transport modes, leisure destinations and, of course, each other; in a way that is
reliable, affordable, environmentally friendly, easy-to-use, safe, and inclusive.

Our Aim and Objectives

The overall aim of the Leicestershire BSIP is to increase bus usage (compared with pre-
pandemic levels) across the county through improved, financially sustainable, higher
standard services that better meet the needs of Leicestershire residents, employees,
and visitors — making bus travel a preferred choice for travel around the county and



134

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

travel into the City of Leicester. This will enable long term clean growth, supporting
delivery of the Leicester & Leicestershire Strategic Growth Plan.

116 Within this overall aim, our objectives are to make the Leicestershire bus network:

A single system - a high-quality integrated and efficient system, with:
a clearer brand identity and a more holistic approach to marketing;
greater coordination between operators’ timetables;

integration with other travel modes such as rail, cycling, walking and e-
mobility; and
use of DRT to provide greater availability, particular in rural areas of the
county.
Reliable — quicker journey times delivered more reliably and where possible, more
frequently
Affordable - particularly for young people who are the potential core bus market

for the future.

Easy to use — with the customer experience much easier in terms of getting
information, using different operators’ services, and paying fares.

More attractive and greener — through moving towards use of modern, lower
emission (and ultimately zero emission) vehicles across the network.



135

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

2.1

2.2

2.3

Current Bus Offer to Passengers

Analysis of Existing Bus Services

In general, Leicestershire has seen a downward trend in bus passengers over the last
decade, from 17.3m in 2009/10 to 13.8m in 2018/19, as shown in Figure 2-1. This
reduction in patronage to some extent coincides with reduction of local authority
support for non-commercial bus services as council finances have been reduced. The
20% patronage reduction in Leicestershire is equivalent to the fall in patronage in
neighbouring Nottinghamshire and Derbyshire. It is against this background that the
Leicestershire BSIP aims to reverse this trend and grow bus use over the next decade.
At the same time, however, it should be noted that there are a number of commercial
routes whose patronage was growing pre-Covid and there are lessons to be learned
from such services.

Figure 2-1: Leicestershire bus passenger trends? :

Annual bus passenger trips

20,000,000
18,000,000
16,000,000 — [
uwooooo M B B W owmomgo.
12,000,000 e .
10,000,000
8,000,000
6,000,000
4,000,000
2,000,000
0
QQ'\N ,\Q\N & \,\'\, f\'j)\\ c)\'\, \?‘ \(?\\‘0 ,\/fo\ ,\"\\(\/% ’3’\.\9) '\'0){1’0
wP O A M M O S

The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on bus patronage has been dramatic. Patronage
for financial year 2020/21 was just 27.5% of the 2018/19 figure (3.8m compared to
13.8m).

Table 2-1 shows that although the proportion of passengers travelling with an ENCTS
pass has fallen over recent years (in line with the rise in age of eligibility), in 2019/20

2 Based on DfT bus statistics Table BUS0109, as published June 2021.
3 Last month of 2019-20 (latter part of March) was affected by COVID restrictions.



136

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

31% of all bus passengers in Leicestershire were concessionary travellers. This is
significantly higher than the England average of 21%. The concessionary section of the
bus market is also taking the longest time to recover post-Covid.

Table 2-1: Concessionary travel trends in Leicestershire*

Total

Of which Enaland
Passenger  encts % ENcTs 99"
journeys . ENCTS %
" (millions)

(millions)
2009/10 17.3 5.6 33 23
2010/11 15.5 55 36 23
2011/12 15.9 5.8 37 23
2012/13 15.1 5.8 38 22
2013/14 13.8 49 36 22
2014/15 14.6 5.1 35 22
2015/16 14.5 53 37 22
2016/17 13.0 43 33 22
2017/18 13.2 4.4 33 22
2018/19 13.8 45 32 22
2019/20 12.2 40 31 21

24 Over the past decade, there has been a steady decline in the number of bus passenger
journeys per head of population in Leicestershire (Figure 2-2), reducing by 26% from
just under 27 in 2009/10 to just under 20 journeys per person in 2018/19. This trend
reflects the challenges the authority has faced in maintaining service levels, which have
resulted in supported service frequency reductions and removal of certain under-used
services It also reflects growth in car ownership and usage. It is also a slightly greater
reduction than the 23% experienced in neighbouring Nottinghamshire and Derbyshire.

4 Based on DfT bus statistics Tables BUS0109 and BUS0113, as published June 2021



137

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

2.5

2.6

2.7

Figure 2-2: Bus passenger journeys per head of population

Bus passenger journeys per head of population

30
26.9
25
19.8

20
15 17.3
10

5

0

Q N 42 ¢ Vs © A S ) Q

S M Ay

O A S I O S S S U

Bus Network

The primary providers of passenger transport services in Leicestershire are commercial
organisations that operate local bus services on a profit-making basis, as envisaged
when the local bus service market outside London was de-regulated in 1985. It is
generally in the interests of the people of Leicestershire for commercial bus networks
to be attractive, efficient, and stable; also commercial networks require no subsidy and
there is, therefore, no cost to the taxpayer. Such networks can meet the needs of many
people in providing a means of collective transport that reduces congestion on our
roads, limits vehicular emissions and provides access to work and life opportunities.

Facilitating and supporting an appropriate mix of services, working with communities
and commercial and 3rd sector operators, is a key aim for the Council, against a
backdrop of a challenging funding situation. These are intended to meet statutory
requirements, help Leicestershire County Council deliver on its strategic priorities and
outcomes, and support the people of Leicestershire in accessing key services.

There are just over 70 commercial routes in operation in Leicestershire, many of which
operate cross-boundary into neighbouring authority areas. There is no dominant
operator of commercial routes — Arriva operates approximately 44% of commercial
routes, with Centrebus operating approximately 23%. The remaining commercial

10



138

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

2.8

2.9

2.10

routes are operated by nine different operators, including First, trentbarton and
Kinchbus.

There are a number of bus services operating in the county which the County Council
considers it appropriate to secure and financially support, in addition to those
operated commercially, in order to meet priority social needs. These services are
summarised in Table 2-2 and together amount to approximately 1.6 million supported
miles.

Four operators provide supported local bus services in Leicestershire — Arriva,
Centrebus, Paul Winson and Roberts Coaches. Fourteen services are fully supported by
the Council at a gross cost of approximately £2.2m per annum. Thirteen services are
funded on a de minimis basis at a gross cost of approximately £580,000. A further two
services are supported on a de minimis basis, using Section 106 funding from
developers. A number of the de minimis contracts had been commercial within the
last five years, demonstrating the fragility of the bus market in Leicestershire.

Some cross-boundary services are also co-funded by neighbouring LTA's, including the
Park & Ride services that go into the City of Leicester and the 747 that serves Rutland
as well as Leicestershire.

11



139

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Service Number Operator

Details

Cost p.a.

Table 2-2: Supported bus services in Leicestershire - expected costs in 2021/22

Nature of Financial Support

27 Roberts Loughborough - Thurmaston Service fully-funded
55, 56 Centrebus Melton - Grantham (CBP) Service fully-funded
33 Centrebus Market Harborough Town Services Service fully-funded
f4 Centrebus Foxton - Harborough Fleckney Service fully-funded
58 Centrebus Lutterworth - Market Harborough Service fully-funded
00 Centrebus Melton - Syston Service fully-funded
25 Roberts Leicester - Castle Donington Service fully-funded
129 P Winson Ashby - Loughborough (CBP) Service fully-funded
3&13 P Winson Loughborough Town Services Service fully-funded
23 & 25 Centrebus Melton-Bottesford (23) & Melton-Stathern (25) Service fully-funded
7 Roberts Measham - Atherstone (CBP) Service fully-funded
o1 Roberts Park and Ride (Meynell's Gorse) Service fully-funded
03 Roberts Park and Ride (Enderby) Service fully-funded
1303 Roberts Park and Ride (Birstall) Service fully-funded
Sub-total gross cost of fully-funded services £2,212,229
14 & 15 Centrebus Melton Town Services Service part-funded
747 Centrebus Leicester - Uppingham Service part-funded
8 Arriva Lutterworth - Hinckley Service part-funded
8 Centrebus Loughborough - Melton (& Grantham) Service part-funded
X84 Arriva Leicester - Rugby (Saturday) Service part-funded
X55 Arriva Hinckley - Leicester (Fosse Park) Service part-funded
6/6A & 7 Arriva Hinckley Town Service part-funded
X6 Arriva Hinckley Town + Dadlington Diversion Service part-funded
M54 Centrebus Leicester - Loughborough (Saturday) Service part-funded
M54 Centrebus Leicester - Loughborough (Mon-Fri) Service part-funded
M59 Roberts Coalville - Hinckley Service part-funded
X6 Centrebus Bottesford - Grantham (Muston Diversion) Service part-funded
22B Centrebus Leicester - Birstall (Saturday) Service part-funded
Sub-total gross cost of LCC part-funded
services £582,266
X3 Arriva Farndon Fields Extensions Part-funded: S106 obligation funds from developer
30 Centrebus Farndon Fields Ext + infill journeys Part-funded: S106 obligation funds from developer
Sub-total gross cost of part-funded Section
106 services £56,965
Estimated fare receipts to LCC* on min cost
services -£250,000
Total net funding of bus services £2,601,460
*Takes account of Covid effects in 21-22 and anticipated lower level of income than allowed for in the budget
211 Analysis of the local bus network was undertaken in 2018 to identify the proportion of
the population within walking distance (determined as 800m to reflect the rurality of
the area) of a commercial or a supported service. The analysis concluded that 82.3% of
the county’s population was within walking distance of a commercial service and 63.5%
of the population was within walking distance of a supported service. Overall, 93.3% of
the population was within 800m of a local bus service.
212 In addition to conventional bus services, the County Council currently funds in excess

of 40 demand responsive transport (DRT) services at a gross cost of approximately
£185,000 per annum. These taxi DRTs operate on specific days of the week, with a
fixed timetable. Journeys only operate if bookings are received, with bookings being
made directly with the operator. Concessionary passes are accepted for travel on these
services.

12



140

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

The Council secured £1.3m of funding from the Rural Mobility Fund to pilot a
technology-based DRT service in the Hinckley / Narborough area of Leicestershire.
This pilot will be closely monitored with a view to extending the concept to other low
PT demand areas of the county.

The council also funds community transport services across the county which
complement the local bus network and provide lifeline services for those who are
unable to use conventional bus services. Annual funding of £512,000 is provided to 12
CT providers who offer car- and minibus-based services for members of their schemes.

Bus Fleet

The bus fleet deployed in Leicestershire is predominantly Euro 6 (see Table 2-3). The
electric buses within the fleet are deployed exclusively on the tendered Park & Ride
services. Only around 3% of the vehicles deployed in Leicestershire are less than two
years old (see Figure 2-3)- this includes the Park & Ride electric buses. A Euro 6 diesel
car emits 10 times the per passenger NOx of a comparable journey by a Euro VI bus.

In general terms, older buses are more polluting than newer buses. Approximately a
third of buses in public service in Leicestershire are between three and five years old.
More than a fifth of vehicles are over 12 years old, which reflects the tendency among
operators to cascade vehicles as they age from more profitable urban services onto
county services.

Table 2-3: Composition of Leicestershire bus fleets

Summary Total %

Euro 1 0 0%
Euro 2 0 0%
Euro 3 12 4%
Euro 4 12 A%,
Euro 5 50 17%
Euro 6 212 72%
Electric g 3%
Total 294 100%

> Based on data supplied by the majority of bus operators

13



141

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

35%

0%

25%

20%

15%

10%

5%

2.17

2.18

2.19

Figure 2-3: Average age of Leicestershire bus fleet

0%

24%
1% 22%

3%

0 -2 years 3 -5 years & - B years 9 -12 years =12 years

Traffic congestion and traffic levels

According to DfT's Road Traffic Statistics, 5.27 billion vehicle miles were travelled on
roads in Leicestershire in 2019, of which 3.96 billion (over 75%) were travelled by cars
and taxis. For cars and taxis and all motor vehicles, this is an increase of 8% compared
to the equivalent figures for 2014s.

Traffic congestion in the county has worsened over recent years, resulting in significant
pinch points along the network where buses struggle to maintain their schedules as a
consequence of competing for road space with other traffic. A list of key bus pinch
points on the network, as identified by bus operators, is provided as Annex 1. Annex 2
presents maps showing morning peak period traffic delays in and around the main
Leicestershire towns, derived from Trafficmaster journey time data.

Fares and Ticketing

‘Flexi’ bus tickets offer unlimited travel on any bus in the city of Leicester and into
Greater Leicestershire — the urban area of the county close to the city boundary. Five
bus operators participate in the scheme — Arriva, Centrebus, First, Kinchbus and
Stagecoach. The scheme includes child and student termly and yearly ticket options.

6 Road traffic statistics - Local authority: Leicestershire (dft.gov.uk)

14


https://roadtraffic.dft.gov.uk/local-authorities/60

142

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

All commercial bus operators in Leicestershire offer a range of proprietary tickets which
include single, return, one day and multiple day options; all discounts offered currently
are done so commercially by each individual operator. Operators also offer a range of
tickets for employers, schools, colleges and universities to encourage public transport
use. Fares and ticketing information are available from the bus driver or via the
relevant operator’s website. Saver tickets are also available to buy from the driver for
the Council-subsidised Park & Ride services.

Although operators offer some child and young person discounts in Leicestershire, age
restrictions, the amount of discount available and coverage differ by operator.

Timetables and Information

The County Council is responsible for providing timetables and information for the
local bus services which it financially supports. This information is predominantly
available via the Choose How You Move website — the one-stop shop for travel
information in Leicester & Leicestershire’. The website also includes a journey planner
to enable users to explore the different travel options that are available in
Leicestershire.

Several operators also provide live at stop real time information via free to download
mobile phone apps. Such apps also offer journey planning tools to help customers.
Bus operators provide timetable and information for commercial services via their own
company websites and paper timetables at stops.

There are 114 Real-Time Information displays located around the county. A list of the
display sites is provided in Annex 3.

Responsibility for bus services

Responsibility for bus services rests with four main teams, covering 14.3 Full-Time
Equivalent (FTE) posts:

Contracts and Compliance Team — with responsibility for procuring local bus and
DRT services and monitoring compliance with contract conditions (1.5 FTE posts)

Passenger Transport Services Team — providing data on concessionary travel
reimbursements and usage, recording patronage and revenue data for supported
services (1 FTE post)

7 www.choosehowyoumove.co.uk/public-transport

15


http://www.choosehowyoumove.co.uk/public-transport/

143

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

2.26

2.27

2.28

2.29

2.30

Safe and Sustainable Travel Team — responsible for logging bus service
registrations, applying the Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy in response to
proposed network changes, advising Contracts and Compliance Team on services
to be tendered, maintaining NaPTAN database, updating public transport
information for supported services, managing contract for bus shelter cleaning

and maintenance (8 FTE posts)

Transport Strategy and Policy Team — providing policy direction, particularly with
regard to the Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy (0.7 FTE posts)

In addition, three teams provide support to bus service operations as follows:

Network Management Team - processing road space booking applications,
notifying bus operators and assisting works promotors in the selection of
appropriate traffic management to minimise impact on bus services (0.06 FTE
posts)

Network Data Intelligence — collecting and managing data for all bus service
reviews and ongoing patronage monitoring (2.5 FTE posts)

Communications Unit — advising on media handling, preparing public engagement
materials and supporting at engagement events (0.7 FTE posts)

Decision making with regard to all elements of local bus service provision involves high
level Director, Assistant Director and Head of Service resource (1.8 FTE posts).

Local Operators and the County Council

During the pandemic, regular meetings were held with the two main operators of
supported services to deal with issues arising and monitor service provision and Covid-
recovery.

There is a Park & Ride Steering Group involving the service operator, county and city
council which meets on a monthly basis. The county council and bus operators
participate in area-focussed working groups, such as the East Midlands Gateway
Access to Work group, the East Midlands Gateway Sustainable Travel working group
and the Arriva Click DRT project in New Lubbesthorpe.

Public Engagement

An online survey, which was live between 15" June and 30™ July 2021, sought to gather
the views of Leicestershire residents and visitors regarding their use of bus services and
measures that would encourage them to increase their bus travel. A total of 1,483

16



144

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

2.31

2.32

responses were received, which included councillors and representatives of
organisations.

Figure 2-3 shows that the top ten measures residents and visitors considered would
increase their bus use in Leicestershire ‘a great deal’, were:

More frequent service (63%)
Easier access to bus service information (54%)

More comprehensive service (local buses near you serving more destinations)
(50%)

Better bus stops or shelters (50%)

Earlier and later services (49%)

Lower fares (49%)

Wider availability of multi-operator tickets (45%)
More reliable journey times (44%)

Contactless fare payment on buses (44%)

Better bus service and rail service connections (37%)

Among regular users and infrequent / non-users, two of the top three measures were
the same — 'more frequent services’ and ‘easier access to bus service information’.
‘Lower fares’ were considered more likely to increase bus use by infrequent and non-
users than by regular users. The capability for contactless fare payment was
considered more effective at encouraging increased bus use by infrequent / non-users
than by regular users.

17



145

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Figure 2-4: Measures that would encourage Leicestershire residents and visitors

to increase their bus use

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%

10%
0%

23%

63%

More Frequent Service

30%

54%

Easier Access to Bus Service Information

29%

50%

30%

50%

More Comprehensive Service

Better bus stops or shelters

24%

49%

Earlier and Later Services

25%

49%

Lower fares

25%

45%

34%

44%

Wider availability of multi-operator tickets

More Reliable Journey Times

28%)

44%

30%

37%

Contactless fare payment on buses

Better Bus Service and Rail Service
Connection

29%

35%

39%

33%)

Simpler-to-understand fares

Quicker Journey Times

36%

32%

Better on-bus information

37%

29%

Better Cleanliness

31%

29%

More Sunday bus services

OA great deal

30%

28%

Zero-Emission / Electric Operated Buses

™~
w
X

N
D
X

On-demand bus services that could be

booked at short notice with an app

O To some extent

23%

Better availability of seating

21%

Better customer service from bus drivers

20%

More Modern Vehicles

22%

=
o
X

Better availability of wifi

233 In addition to the measures outlined, councillors and representatives of organisations,

business and community groups suggested the following measures could help to

increase bus use in the county:

more circular services providing links to facilities and destinations situated outside

of the city centre

improvements to walking and cycling links to access bus services

measures to disincentivise car use to achieve modal shift and net-zero carbon

targets

improved communication between the bus operator and its users, such as the

provision of real-time information via social media

retain cash payments on the bus and paper timetables at bus stops.

co-ordination between the County and City Council, including better co-ordinated
timetabling, ticketing, and links to other public transport interchanges.

234 Residents and visitors highlighted the following additional measures to encourage

greater bus use:

better bus service connections to Fosse Park shopping centre, avoiding the need

to interchange in Leicester and making the bus journey time competitive with the

car

18



146

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

2.35

2.36

2.37

2.38

2.39

cheaper and easier-to-understand fares, including multi-operator tickets
availability of group saver tickets (particularly for families)

under-18 travel to be available without charge

an extension to the concessionary pass validity, particularly for travel before 09:30

retain traditional methods of payment and bus service information provision at the
same time as developing mobile apps

increase in use of CCTV and improved driving style
improved walking infrastructure to reach bus stops

improve vehicle accessibility, particularly for disabled individuals, those travelling
by bike and those with a pushchair

The full survey analysis report can be accessed on the Leicestershire public transport
website.

Other Factors that Affect Use of Local Bus Services

Local bus services are always in competition with other modes of transport. In
particular, this includes the private car, which on a per-person basis uses more road
space, contributes much more to congestion, emits more local air pollutants, and has
greater carbon emissions.

Private car users incur costs each time they make a trip. These include depreciation on
the initial investment made in the vehicle, maintenance costs, tyre wear, fuel costs, and
parking costs. However, only the last two items tend to be perceived as a per-trip cost
by people, leading to a skewed view of the relative cost of car versus bus or other
modes.

Parking capacity and prices are within the partial control of the public sector, where car
parks and on-road parking are controlled and operated by local authorities. Private
non-residential (e.g. employer-provided) parking is, of course, outside their direct
control, as are privately-operated car parks. Nonetheless, parking prices and supply
control can be used as a demand management tool, helping to re-balance the skewed
view of relative costs of car versus bus.

Leicester City Council is considering the introduction of a Workplace Parking Levy in
Leicester. Such a measure would have implications for Leicestershire residents who
currently drive into work in the city, as city centre employers may opt to pass some or
all of the parking charge onto employees, which may affect county residents’ modal
choice for travel to work in the city.

19



147

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

2.40

2.41

In the main Leicestershire towns (as in many towns), parking prices are generally set
quite low by the seven first tier local authorities (district councils). This is probably due
to a concern that higher prices would affect the attractiveness of the town.
Nevertheless, there is some scope for using parking price as a lever in future to get
more people to use buses and other sustainable transport modes, provided that there
are high quality bus services and infrastructure available as alternatives. This will be
explored with the district councils during the early stages of BSIP implementation,
particularly in towns where improved bus services are delivered.

Annex 4 to this document presents an overview table of off-road parking capacity and
prices in the main Leicestershire towns. In viewing this table, it is worth noting that
Oadby & Wigston Borough Council is considering introducing some form of car park

charging in 2022.

20



148

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

3.1

32

33

34

Headline Targets

Baseline Position

As required by DfT, we have set targets in the following areas for the Leicestershire Bus

Service Improvement Plan:

Passenger growth
Customer satisfaction
Journey times
Reliability

We have also set an additional target for bus emission standards for the Leicestershire

bus fleet.

We want to set ambitious and challenging targets. In order to set such targets,
however, it is important that we have suitably representative evidence so that a
baseline position can be established, against which improvements can be measured.
This is challenging, as bus operations are not in a ‘stable’ position at present, with
patronage levels and public opinions on buses still in recovery from the Covid-19
pandemic, and journey times being affected by post-pandemic private car usage
patterns. Comparison with pre-pandemic levels as a baseline is not seen as
appropriate by the Council or partner bus operators as people have settled into new
travel habits and services have also flexed and altered since the pandemic began in
March 2020.

We therefore propose the followings:

For passenger growth, the baseline position will be based on patronage on
services serving Leicestershire in the six months leading up to March 31 2022.
These are the last six months before the first measures under the BSIP and
associated Enhanced Partnership Plan will start to take effect, and are likely to
represent the most stable picture of ‘the new normal’ bus operations post-Covid.
The six-month period figures will be converted to annual equivalent figures using
ratios (annual/final six months) from a previous non-Covid-affected financial year
(e.g. 2018-19). It is anticipated that this patronage baseline will be of the order
of 80% of pre-Covid levels.

8 Subject to national COVID guidance and restrictions not materially changing in the meantime

21



149

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

For customer satisfaction, the baseline position will be based on outputs from
the National Highway and Transport Public Satisfaction Survey (NHT Survey) for
2019 (the last complete year unaffected by COVID). Leicestershire County
Council subscribes to this annual survey, which includes a number of questions
on public satisfaction with different aspects of bus services, as well as overall
satisfaction with local bus services. It is worth noting that this samples views
from general members of the public, rather than just focusing on current bus

users.

The county of Leicestershire is not one of the areas covered by Transport Focus
in their annual national bus passenger survey. While some Leicestershire
operators run their own customer satisfaction surveys, these are unlikely to be
comparable across operators in the county.

The DfT requirement appears to be for customer satisfaction to be reported
every six months rather than annually. It is therefore proposed that an ‘infill’
customer satisfaction survey is undertaken across the county halfway between
each annual NHT Survey. This would ask a subset of the NHT survey questions of
a sample of Leicestershire residents, with the first one taking place in Spring 2022
using some of the BSIP funding provided by DfT. The results of the NHT and
‘infill" surveys will then be tracked over time to monitor changes in customer
satisfaction with different aspects of bus services. The need for the ‘infill’ surveys
is included in the financial ask for supporting Leicestershire’s BSIP delivery.

For journey times, it is proposed that average bus journey times for different
times of day (e.g. morning peak, interpeak, afternoon peak) for each service are
examined for ‘neutral months’ twice per year (e.g. March and September). Where
possible, this will be based on GPS bus journey time data and the baseline will be
set by data from September 2021 and March 2022.

On reliability, there are three measures that are all important:

»  Punctuality — reflects how well buses run to the timetable (which is
developed in the knowledge of regular delays).

= Reliability — concerns whether a bus arrives at all.

= Consistency of journey time — concerns how much journey times vary
between uncongested and congested conditions.

As with journey times, it is proposed that, where possible, this will be based on
GPS journey time data and the baseline will be set by data from September 2021
and March 2022.

22



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

150

Performance Indicators

35  Within each of the four areas, a number of performance indicators will need to be

monitored. Table 3-1 sets out the proposed performance indicators under each area.

Table 3-1: Proposed performance indicators

Passenger growth

Customer
satisfaction

Patronage (person-trips)

Overall satisfaction with bus
service — all users

Satisfaction with punctuality

Satisfaction with value for
money / bus fares

Satisfaction with quality and
cleanliness of vehicle

Satisfaction with helpfulness of
drivers

Satisfaction with bus stops
/shelters

Satisfaction with ease of
obtaining service information

Satisfaction with availability of
information to plan journeys

23

Desirable Sub-divisions, if

available

All users / adult fare-payers /
young people / ENCTS
passholders

All users / adult fare-payers /
young people / ENCTS
passholders

All users / adult fare-payers /
young people / ENCTS
passholders

All users / adult fare-payers /
young people / ENCTS
passholders

All users / adult fare-payers /
young people / ENCTS
passholders

All users / adult fare-payers /
young people / ENCTS
passholders

All users / adult fare-payers /
young people / ENCTS
passholders

All users / adult fare-payers /
young people / ENCTS
passholders

All users / adult fare-payers /
young people / ENCTS
passholders



151

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Desirable Sub-divisions, if
EVELEL )

Journey times Average journey time (monthly Morning peak / Interpeak /
period) per service Afternoon peak
Reliability Punctuality Morning peak / Interpeak /

Afternoon peak

Reliability — percentage of
cancelled service runs.

Consistency of journey time — Across AM peak, interpeak and
drawn from journey time data. PM peak

Targets for Passenger Growth and Customer Satisfaction

36  Our targets for passenger growth over the 10-year BSIP period are shown in Table 3-2
below. The value 100 denotes the baseline position, as described above, as
determined at the end of March 2022. It is anticipated that this will be around 80% of
pre-Covid levels. These are set to be challenging targets against a background of
declining patronage, as presented in Section 2.

Table 3-2: Targets for passenger growth and customer satisfaction

Performance indicator Year All passengers

Patronage (person-trips) Baseline 2021-22 100
2022-23 110
2023-24 125
2024-25 130
2025-26 132
2026-27 133
2027-28 134
2028-29 135

2029-30 136

24



152

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Performance indicator All passengers

2030-31 137
2031-32 138
Customer satisfaction (all indicators) Baseline 2021-22 100
2022-23 101
2023-24 103
2024-25 105
2025-26 107
2026-27 109
2027-28 111
2028-29 112
2029-30 113
2030-31 114
2031-32 115

Targets for Journey Times and Reliability

37  Our targets for journey times and reliability over the 10-year BSIP period are shown in
Table 3-3 below. Targets for punctuality and percentage of cancelled service runs will
apply to all services across Leicestershire. Other targets apply only to services that
operate on routes that are affected by journey time schemes or interventions (typically
those targeting bus priority) implemented under the plan. The value 100 denotes the
baseline position, as described above, as determined at the end of March 2022. These
are set to be challenging targets against background growth in general traffic and
declining bus patronage.

Table 3-3: Targets for journey times and reliability

Performance indicators Routes covered
by BSIP journey

time
interventions

Average journey time (morning and evening Baseline 2021-22 100
peak periods)

25



153

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Performance indicators Routes covered
by BSIP journey

time
interventions

2022-23 100
2023-24 97
2024-25 95
2025-26 95
2026-27 95
2027-28 95
2028-29 95
2029-30 95
2030-31 95
2031-32 95

Reliability (punctuality) — morning and evening Baseline 2021-22 100
peak periods

2022-23 101
2023-24 102
2024-25 103
2025-26 104
2026-27 105
2027-28 106
2028-29 107
2029-30 108
2030-31 109
2031-32 110
Reliability (percentage of cancelled service runs)  Baseline 2021-22 100
—all day
2022-23 95

2023-24 90

26



154

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Performance indicators Routes covered
by BSIP journey

time
interventions

2024-25 85
2025-26 80
2026-27 75
2027-28 70
2028-29 65
2029-30 60
2030-31 55
2031-32 50
Reliability (average journey time differences Baseline 2021-22 100
between peak and interpeak services)
2022-23 97.5
2023-24 95
2024-25 925
2025-26 90
2026-27 87.5
2027-28 85
2028-29 82.5
2029-30 80
2030-31 77.5
2031-32 75

Target for Bus Emissions Standards

38  Our target for bus emission standards is a relatively short term one. This is that all
buses used on the Leicestershire registered local bus network will meet Euro VI
emission standards (or equivalent) by the end of 2024-25. There may be a very small

27



155

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

number of exemptions from meeting this standard for services operated by small
operators that only have one or two stops in Leicestershire.

28



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

4.

4.1

4.2

Delivery

From our discussions with operators and informed by feedback from users, we have already developed a number of delivery
themes, and schemes within those themes, which with the aid of Government National Bus Strategy funding we stand ready to
begin delivering through our BSIP. These are grouped together in the following tables under the five objectives identified in
section 2. On the public sector side, Leicestershire County Council will work with Government to ensure that sufficient funding is

made available to deliver these themes and schemes.

Delivery will be driven by the Enhanced Partnership of bus operators and the local authority, working in collaboration with other
interested parties and stakeholders. The Partnership will be supported in delivery by an EP Coordinator (with a support team),
whose cost has been included in our financial ask from the National Bus Strategy funding pot. Additional Council officers and

external consultancy support will also be required to deliver specific schemes under the BSIP.

29

9GT



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Single system

mm Scheme description Detail and timing

Timetablingand  S1-1: Operators will work together to coordinate  An initial review to establish where coordination of

frequencies timetables on key corridors, as far as possible, to  timings on specific corridors would be beneficial and
achieve regular headways. This will apply where  possible (given other constraints) will be undertaken in
there is more than one operator serving a the first half of Year 1 (2022-23) of the BSIP. On
corridor, and will ensure that the timetable Leicester-bound services, this review will be undertaken
serves the needs of as many customers as in coordination with Leicester City Council. Required
possible and is easy to understand. timetable changes will be implemented in the second

half of Year 1. All timetable coordination will be kept
under review by the EP members throughout the BSIP
duration.

Under this scheme, all timetable changes will take place
at six set dates in the year to aid user comprehension.
These dates will be coordinated with neighbouring
authorities in the East Midlands to ensure compatibility.

30

LSGT



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

mm Scheme description Detail and timing

S1-2: Minimum service frequencies will be
implemented on different types of bus route.
This should help to grow patronage, but will
require some initial revenue funding support.

31

A review will be undertaken of the whole supported
services network, in line with an updated version of our
Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy that reflects
the BSIP. This will look service-by-service and
determine whether / how the network should be re-
shaped. Changes will be made as required after
appropriate assessments and local consultation. Existing
supported services will be maintained whilst this review
is being undertaken. This scheme will also provide post-
Covid recovery funding support where needed services
that would otherwise be at risk while patronage re-
grows to pre-Covid levels.

Increased service frequencies will be introduced in Year
1 on three selected routes in order to pilot the scheme
for two years and ensure that it gives good value for
money. Other routes will be added gradually to the
scheme in Years 3 to 5, assuming that the early pilot
routes show promising growth in patronage levels.

8GT



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

mm Scheme description Detail and timing

Integration with S2-1: Bus operators will work with rail operators  An initial review to establish where coordination of

rail to ensure that, as far as possible, bus services timings with rail timings would be beneficial and
that serve railway stations are timed to connect  possible (given other constraints and not at the expense
with key rail services. of providing a worse service for a significant proportion

of the bus customer base) will be undertaken in the first
half of Year 1 (2022-23) of the BSIP, in coordination with
the review in Scheme S1-1. Any bus timetable changes
identified as beneficial will be implemented in the
second half of Year 1. All timetable coordination will be
kept under review by the EP members throughout the
BSIP duration.

S3 Consistent, high S3-1: LCC will work in collaboration with An audit of all bus stops and shelters will be undertaken
quality roadside operators to ensure that all bus stops in the in Year 1, against a defined list of features that different
infrastructure county have better, appropriate, consistently types of stop should have. Accessibility and personal

high-quality, roadside infrastructure. safety issues with bus stops will also be reviewed and

measures identified to provide safe access for a wide
range of users (including people with impaired
mobility).

Implementation of upgraded infrastructure will
commence during the second half of Year 1, and will be
rolled out during Years 2 and 3. This will include
provision of better information, and, where suitable,
seating and shelters to protect users from the elements
in key locations.

32

6GT



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

“m Scheme description Detail and timing

S4

S5

Mobility hubs

Branding and
marketing

S3-2: Improved maintenance and repair regime

S4-1: LCC will work to implement significant
mobility hubs at key points to achieve better
integration with active travel modes and e-
mobility. This will include facilities for safe and
secure cycle parking, as well as hire points for e-
mobility and bicycles in some locations. It will
also include other community facilities (e.g.
parcel collection, cycle maintenance).

S5-1: LCC will work in collaboration with
operators to create a distinctive brand for the
Leicestershire bus network. This will seek to
work alongside the individual operators’
branding. Marketing of the Leicestershire bus
network as a single entity will be undertaken
jointly by LCC and bus operators.

33

An upgraded approach to managing existing and new
infrastructure sites will be developed in the first half of
Year 1. A maintenance and repair regime will be
implemented starting from the mid-point of Year 1 that
has challenging targets for repair and replacement
when infrastructure gets damaged.

A mobility hub feasibility study will be undertaken in
Year 1. This will look at possible locations, review
potential features that could be included, and assess
the business case (including costs and benefits) for
implementing hubs at different locations. Depending
on the results of the feasibility study, it is envisaged that
one hub will be implemented in Year 2, which will act as
a pilot. Three further hubs will be implemented in Years
3,4 and 5.

Using our experience in developing the Choose How
You Move brand, we will develop a branding design
and marketing plan in the first half of Year 1. The aim
will then be to roll it out across all infrastructure in
parallel with the upgrading of infrastructure in the
second half of Year 1 and Years 2 and 3. The branding
will be applied to roadside infrastructure and to
publicity and information materials. It will not be
applied to vehicles because of potential clashes with
existing operator vehicle branding and difficulties this
would cause with cross-boundary services.

097



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

“m Scheme description Detail and timing

S6-1: Demand responsive transport (DRT) will be
used to provide services in areas of dispersed
population and/or where demand is
insufficiently concentrated to make regular fixed
route services viable. These will connect into the
main fixed route services as well as directly to
local towns and centres.

DRT will be delivered using booking apps and
short-notice booking windows to appeal to
people who are tech-savvy, as well as through
more conventional telephone bookings. This
strategy will learn from and build on the
experiences of the Rural Mobility Fund DRT
service that will be implemented in the
Leicester-Hinckley corridor from early 2022.

S6-2: Provision of evening services using DRT
will be explored, piloted, and implemented in
selected areas.

34

In Year 1, Leicestershire’s RMF-funded DRT service
focussed on the Narborough — Leicester corridor will be
operational. This will be an invaluable source of
information on what works and what doesn't.

In parallel with the first year of RMF service operation, a
feasibility study will be undertaken to look at the
potential viability of other locations where DRT could be
used to expand the bus offer for poorly served
communities.

Proposals will be brought forward for six further DRT
services, subject to the performance of the Narborough
DRT service. These will provide broad coverage of
currently under-served rural areas across the county
and will be implemented in Years 2, 3 and 4 and
operated continuously from that point. It is anticipated
that all DRT services will require some ongoing public
funding support throughout the BSIP period, although
we expect the level required to drop as people get used
to using DRT and patronage builds.

The RMF-funded DRT service will be used as an initial
pilot for operating evening services. This expansion of
time coverage will take place at the end of year 1. Six
additional evening DRT services will be implemented in
Years 2, 3 and 4 to provide broad coverage across the
county. These are likely to be linked to the additional
daytime DRT services (see S6-1) but may cover a wider
area in the evenings.

191



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

mm Scheme description Detail and timing

Service quality S7-1: Minimum service quality standards will be  Minimum service standards will be agreed and
standards agreed and implemented across all implemented across Leicestershire. These will include
Leicestershire bus services. standards for cleanliness of vehicles and customer

service training for drivers.

S7-2: A Customer Charter will be adopted across A customer charter will be developed in collaboration

Leicestershire bus services. between all operators and representatives of the user
community, and will include remedies for bus users in
the event of failure to meet those standards. This will
be in line with guidance published by Transport Focus
on customer charters. The aim is for this to be in place
before the start of the BSIP period in April 2022.

35

[As))



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Reliable

mm Scheme description Detail and timing

Bus priority at key = R1-1: A programme of individual schemes and A list of pinchpoints on the Leicestershire network that

points interventions will be developed and lead to significant bus delays (making service journey
implemented to address delays to bus services times unreliable and impacting on operating costs) is
and give buses priority. being developed through collaboration between bus

operators and Leicestershire County Council. These will
be sifted and prioritised. Feasibility studies will be
undertaken on at least three pinchpoints each year, and
business cases will be developed to justify investment in
bus priority interventions. Bus priority interventions to
the value of £2m per year will be implemented on the
Leicestershire network in each year of the BSIP from
Year 2 onwards.

Possible measures may include bus priority at signals,
bus lanes, bus gates, and/or restrictions on on-street
parking or loading at peak times. Where delays can be
addressed sufficiently to reduce operating costs by
reducing PVR, part of the financial benefit will be used
to increase service frequency and/or reduce fares.

Behavioural change campaigns (involving, for example,
PTP and/or business engagement) will be undertaken
alongside implementation of the bus priority measures.
Experience across the UK has shown that these
complementary activities help maximise the mode shift
impact of new and improved sustainable transport
infrastructure.

36

€91



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

mm Scheme description Detail and timing

Traffic and R2-1: Improved traffic and parking management = During Year 1, the partnership will identify particular
parking and enforcement. areas where poor traffic and parking discipline causes
management and problems and delays for buses. LCC will then work with
enforcement partners throughout the BSIP period to put in place new

restrictions on on-street parking or loading at peak
times, together with improving enforcement of existing
restrictions. Enforcement technology and systems will
be implemented as required, and operated in
cooperation with Leicestershire police.

Affordable
mm Scheme description Detail and timing
Consistent age A1-1: Rationalisation of qualification ages for We will seek to address the current inconsistency across
level for child / young people discounted fare products. Leicestershire operators in the age at which children /
discounted child young people are able to access discounted fare
and young products. We will agree, through the EP, a consistent
people’s fares age of under 19, below which Leicestershire bus users

can expect discounted fares. This will address the
current situation where different operators have
different age criteria. This will be done in order to come
into operation during Year 1 of the BSIP.

37

o1



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

mm Scheme description Detail and timing

Discounted fare
scheme for young
adults

A2-1: A young adult discounted fare offer for all
19-25 year-olds will be implemented. This is
viewed as important at an age where most
people are on low incomes, and when moving
from bus to car use is often an attraction. As
noted earlier, getting young people to use buses
more is seen as a cornerstone of a future
sustainable Leicestershire bus network.

38

We will enhance the current fare offers (e.g. student
ticket products) made to some young adults aged 19-
25 to ensure that all young people of that age group
can access reduced fares. It is envisaged that fare
discounts of around 25-33% would be applicable. This
may require purchase of a discount card (off-bus) for an
affordable sum (e.g. £5) to act as proof of entitlement.
Smarter ticketing solutions, such as ITSO cards, white
label EMV cards, etc. may also be considered.

Development of the offer (which is likely to involve a
concessionary travel scheme) will be undertaken early in
Year 1, with a view to implementation during Year 2 and
operation throughout the BSIP duration.
Implementation will take place in a pilot area first in
Year 2, with subsequent rollout to the rest of the county
in Year 3.

GoT



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

mm Scheme description Detail and timing

E2

Easy to use

Improved
information

Real-time
information

E1-1: Improved information availability will be
developed and provided across multiple
channels to meet everyone's needs. This will
include online information, printed leaflet
information, and roadside service information.
This will be based on user research on views of
current information provision among different
customer groups.

E2-1 In order to provide a consistent standard
across the whole Leicestershire network, all
buses will be fitted with GPS positioning units
which will feed into real-time information (RTI)
provision to users. Delivery mechanisms for RTI
will include a Leicestershire-wide app that will
cover all operators’ services, as well as RTI
displays on selected corridors.

39

A customer research exercise will be undertaken in Year
1 of the BSIP. This will explore the strengths and
weaknesses of the information offer, in order to define
what needs to be changed or improved. The research
will be undertaken both with regular bus users and with
irregular or non bus users. Including the latter group
will help identify information barriers to bus usage.

The results of the customer research exercise will be
used to plan and implement the changes to information
provision. The aim will be to have those changes in
place by the end of Year 2.

The vast majority of buses in Leicestershire are already
GPS-equipped. All currently non-equipped buses will be
fitted with GPS positioning units as early as possible
within Year 1.

A review of current RTI will be undertaken in Year 1,
including app-based provision and at-stop displays.
The intention is to develop a Leicestershire-wide app
that will cover all operators’ services to ‘fill in the gaps'’
in the current operator provision during Years 2 and 3.
We will also double the number of RTI displays in the
county, adding extra displays on selected corridors to
strengthen information provision to bus users. Such
additional signs will be procured and provided in Years
2 and 3.

991



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

“m Scheme description Detail and timing

E4

Multi-operator
ticketing

Mobility as a
Service

E3-1: The aim will be to move towards multi-
operator capped fares that work with debit,
credit card, cash, and mobile payments across all
Leicestershire operators. This is likely to be a
staged programme, with acceptance of each
other’s ticket products on certain corridors
initially, before broadening out into a full multi-
operator ticketing regime.

E4-1: As a longer-term goal, the Leicestershire
EP will investigate the potential for broadening
the payment offer to include Mobility as a
Service (MaaS) concepts, where user accounts
can be used to pay for other modes of transport
(e.g. bike hire, e-scooter hire) as well as bus
fares. This may be particularly attractive once
mobility hubs are in operation in Leicestershire.

40

During Year 1, mutual acceptance of each other’s tickets
will take place on certain defined corridors where there
is more than one operator offering services and where
this will genuinely enhance the opportunities to travel
by bus. As appropriate, there will be a back-office
reconciliation and revenue apportionment function.

Following on from this, the Leicestershire EP will work
with neighbouring EPs (Leicester City, Nottinghamshire
etc) to maximise value-for-money from technological
investments. The aim will be to move into full tap-on /
tap-off contactless multi-operator ticketing where users
are guaranteed the best price for their travel patterns.
This will be dependent on the results of pilots such as
CORAL (in which several of the Leicestershire operators
are participating) and other national initiatives, but is
anticipated that this could be in place by Year 5 of the
BSIP.

Throughout the BSIP period, some budget will be
allocated for a future technology monitoring and
horizon-scanning observatory function. This will enable
the EP to identify and assess trial or pilot opportunities
in Maas.

9T



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

mm Scheme description Detail and timing

Autonomous E5-1: The potential for use of autonomous buses = Throughout the BSIP period, some budget will be
vehicles will be monitored throughout the BSIP period. allocated for a future technology monitoring and
These have some long-term potential for horizon-scanning observatory function. This will enable
reducing bus operating costs. the EP to identify and assess trial or pilot opportunities

(particularly within a rural or market town environment)
in autonomous vehicles.

Greener
mm Scheme description Detail and timing
Low Emission G1-1: Lower emission vehicles. All vehicles used  All buses used in Leicestershire will be Euro VI emission
Vehicles (LEV) and = on the Leicestershire network will be Euro VI standard by March 2025. A grant fund will be
Ultra-Low emission standard by March 2025 established to assist some operators with the cost of
Emission Vehicles upgrades or retrofits. All services supported by LCC will
(ULEV) be required to be operated by vehicles with Euro VI

emission standard or equivalent by March 2025. Some
exemptions may be permitted by agreement (for
example, services in neighbouring counties that have
just one or two stops in Leicestershire).

41

891



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

mm Scheme description Detail and timing

G1-2: ULEV buses will be used on a pilot route to We plan to introduce electric or other ULEV vehicles on

test their operation and economics in practice in
a peri-urban or market town context. We will
work with neighbouring authorities such as
Leicester City Council and Nottingham City
Council to learn from their ULEV experiences.

42

a selected pilot route in Leicestershire. This will build
on knowledge from the Leicester electric P&R bus
operations that the County Council co-funds. The pilot
route will be chosen based on suitability for ULEV
operation and economic considerations. It is planned
that the pilot route will be implemented in Year 3, with
feasibility work, preparatory planning (including
charging infrastructure considerations), business case
development, and procurement undertaken in Years 1
and 2. Available ULEV technologies will be kept under
review throughout the BSIP so that, as range and
capabilities develop, ULEV technologies will be rolled
out to as many vehicles as possible.

697



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

43

Delivery of the Leicestershire BSIP is completely contingent on Leicestershire County Council being able to draw on additional
funding from central Government. This will complement the existing expenditure by both the council and local bus operators that
deliver the current bus offer. Table 4-1below provides a summary of the estimated additional funding requirement from central

Government, over an initial 3-year period and over a 10-year period.

Table 4-1: Summary of estimated additional funding required to deliver BSIP

Delivery cost (additional funding required) for
schemes under following BSIP objectives

First 3
years
FY 2022-24

Next 7 years

FY 2025-

10-year total

FY 2022-

2031

2031

Coordination of partnership £1,166,607 £3,160,238 £4,326,845
Single integrated system £32,340,334 | £38,679,576 | £71,019,911
Reliable £14,223,487 | £52,034,662 | £66,258,148
Affordable £3,282,794 | £20,396,159 | £23,678,953
Easy to use £1,627,988 £918,750 £2,546,738
Greener £5,310,994 £5,310,994
Total £57,952,205 | £115,189,385 | £173,141,589

43

0LT



171

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

5. Reporting

51 Reporting of performance will take place every six months. The aim will be to publish
the results of performance indicator monitoring activities within six weeks of the end of
each six-monthly period. Presentation of the results will be in a clear, succinct,
accessible format that members of the public, local and national politicians, and other

interested parties can easily understand.

52 The performance monitoring reports will be easily accessible for all parties. They will
be:

Published on the Leicestershire County Council website at www.leics.gov.uk/roads-

and-travel/buses-and-public-transport/passenger-transport.
Presented in poster form at major bus boarding points and transport interchanges
Presented in poster form at public libraries

Shared with DfT (and Transport Focus, if that is felt appropriate)

53 We are happy to discuss and agree with DfT the best format for presentation of results.

44


http://www.leics.gov.uk/

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

6. Overview Table

Name of authority or

authorities:

Leicestershire County Council

Franchising or Enhanced
Partnership (or both):

Enhanced Partnership

Date of publication: 315 October 2021
Date of next annual update:| 31 October 2022
URL of published report: To be added

45

¢LT



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Targets

2018/19

2019/20

Target for
2024/25

Description of how each will be measured (max 50
words)

Journey time

Not available

Not available

5% reduction in
average
journey time
within 2 years
on routes
subject to bus
priority
measures under|
Schemes R1-1

Average journey times and journey time variability will
be established and monitored for all routes across the
county. This will utilise data from GPS-based AVL
systems that are fitted to most operators’ buses.

reliability (percentage of
cancelled service runs; and
difference between peak and
interpeak services) will also
be monitored — see section 3

and/or R2-1
Reliability (punctuality) 63.0%° Not available |5% Percentage of services departing between 1 minute
improvement |early and 5 minutes late
over baseline
NB 2 other measures of
measurement

° From national bus statistic BUS 0902 (Non-frequent bus services on time)

46

€LT



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Passenger numbers (annual [{13.81m 12.73m? 13.37m™" Passenger trip numbers will be reported by operators
passenger trips) quarterly (and summed to give an annual figure over
four quarters) using the exact same methodology as
used to report numbers to DfT (as used in
Government's annual bus statistics Table BUS0109a).
This will ensure values are comparable with past years.

Average passenger 58.8% 58.0% 61.4% Satisfaction (very or fairly satisfied) with local bus
satisfaction (overall) services (overall) will be measured through the annual
National Highway and Transportation Survey (NHT).
Infill surveys will be undertaken for 6-monthly
reporting. NHT survey is with general public rather
than just bus users, so includes non or prospective bus
users as well — so gives significantly lower numbers
than Transport Focus surveys with current bus users.

NB Measures of satisfaction
with specific aspects of bus
services will also be
monitored and reported — see
section 3

19 Adjusted from actuals to take March 2020 numbers affected by COVID-19 lockdown

" Based on estimated baseline annual figure for 2021-22 of 12.73m passengers (which will be calculated at the end of the year as set out in Section 3). Targets will be adjusted in line with
baseline figure at that point.

12 Based on NHT survey with sample of members of the public rather than just bus passengers.

47

V.1



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Delivery - Does your BSIP detail policies to: Yes/No Explanation
(max 50 words)

Make improvements to bus services and planning

More frequent and reliable services

Review service frequency Yes Scheme 1-1 will coordinate timetables and give regular
headways on selected corridors.

Scheme 1-2 will provide increased service frequencies on
selected routes.

Increase bus priority measures Yes Scheme R1-1 will deliver a £2m p.a. programme of capital
investment in bus priority measures to address hotspots
on the network where buses are delayed.

Scheme R2-1 will deliver a programme of traffic and
parking management and enforcement measures to
reduce bus delays from poor traffic and parking discipline.

Increase demand responsive services Yes Scheme S6-1 will build on the current DfT RMF-funded
Leicestershire DRT pilot around Narborough to deliver six
additional DRT services across the county.

Scheme S6-2 will expand DRT to provide evening services
across seven areas that currently have none.

Consideration of bus rapid transport networks No Not appropriate for the Leicestershire operating

environment.

Improvements to planning / integration with other modes

48

QLT



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Integrate services with other transport modes

Yes

Scheme S2-1 will involve bus and rail operators working
together to identify and deliver opportunities to better
connect these modes.

Scheme S4-1 will involve implementing four significant
size mobility hubs at key locations to facilitate
interchange between bus, cycling, walking, and e-mobility,
as well as providing other community services.

Simplify services

Yes

Where this is any over-provision on a route, the EP
members will look to resolve this.

Review socially necessary services

Yes

A review will be undertaken of the whole supported
services network, in line with an updated version of our
Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy that reflects the
BSIP. This will look service-by-service and determine
whether / how the network should be re-shaped.
Changes will be made as required after appropriate
assessments and local consultation. Existing supported
services will be maintained whilst this review is being
undertaken.

Community transport services were reviewed recently, and
a commitment has been made to continue providing
financial support for these vital services.

Invest in Superbus networks

No

Not appropriate for the Leicestershire operating
environment.

Improvements to fares and ticketing

Lower fares

Yes

Scheme A2-1 will implement a discounted fare scheme for

young adults age 19-25. Capturing or retaining bus users

49

9.1



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

at this key life stage is seen as a cornerstone of a future
sustainable bus network.

Simplify fares

Yes

Scheme A1-1 will introduce a consistent age of under 19
for Leicestershire bus users to expect significantly
discounted fares. This will address the current situation
where different operators have different age criteria.

Integrate ticketing between operators and transport

Yes

Scheme E3-1 will introduce mutual acceptance of other
operators’ tickets in selected corridors, with back-office
revenue apportionment. Leicestershire will also work with
neighbouring authorities to be ready to adopt full tap-on-
tap-off contactless multi-operator ticketing once the
results of pilots such as project CORAL and other national
initiatives come to fruition.

Make improvements to bus passenger experience

Higher spec buses

Invest in improved bus specifications

Yes

Scheme S7-1 will apply minimum service standards for
vehicle cleanliness and customer service training for
drivers.

Scheme G1-1 will move all vehicles to Euro VI emission
standard or equivalent within three years, with a grant
fund set up to assist operators where needed.

Invest in accessible and inclusive bus services

Yes

Protect personal safety of bus passengers

Yes

Scheme S3-1 will involve a full countywide review and
upgrade of bus stop and shelter infrastructure to ensure
that it is accessible to all, safe, modern, and provides a
user environment in keeping with user expectations.

50

LLT



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Scheme S3-2 will provide an upgraded approach to
managing and maintaining roadside infrastructure.

Improve buses for tourists

Yes

Tourists will benefit from many of the proposed schemes
(e.g. information improvement) but the tourist sector is
not a particular target.

Invest in decarbonisation

Yes

Scheme G 1-2 will involve implementing a ULEV pilot
route in Leicestershire, building on the experience of the
electric Leicester park & ride services that Leicestershire
County Council co-funds and promotes.

Improvements to passenger engagement

Passenger charter

Yes

Scheme S7-2 will develop and implement a customer
charter for users of Leicestershire services, in collaboration
with representatives of the user community.

Strengthen network identity

Yes

Scheme S5-1 will create a distinctive brand for
Leicestershire bus services, which will be applied to all
roadside infrastructure and marketing and information
materials. It will also involve joint marketing of
Leicestershire bus services by LCC and bus operators.

Improve bus information

Yes

Scheme E1-1 will carry out an in-depth customer research
exercise, which will be used to plan and implement
improved information provision across the county.

Scheme E2-1 will involve fitting all remaining non-
equipped buses used in the county with GPS, developing
a countywide app to provide multi-operator RTI, and
installing 85 additional roadside RTI displays on selected
corridors.

51

8.1



Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Other

Other

Yes

In Schemes E4-1 and E5-1, we will monitor technology
developments in MaaS and autonomous vehicle

technology to look for appropriate trials or pilot
applications that could be hosted in Leicestershire.

52

6.1



180

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Annex 1: Bus delay hotspots

Loughborough area

Loughborough Road A6/A6004 Roundabout, Volume of traffic, difficult for services to pull onto the roundabout with speeding traffic in both
directions.

Loughborough - Leicester Road and Ashby Road towards the town centre. Ashby Road towards Epinal Way in the morning peak.
Loughborough town centre pedestrianisation

Loughborough Train Station exit (plus route from Train Station to Town)

Bridge Street to the Rushes

Woodgate / Leicester Road / Pinfoldgate junction

Loughborough College / Epinal Way / Loughborough Uni

Loughborough High School area

M1 J22 & J23 - grind to a halt whenever there is disruption on the motorway, no way for buses to get quickly across the junctions when
obstructed by diverting traffic.

Hinckley area

Hinckley — A47 queues down to Dodwells Island and impacted northbound by HGVs who think it acceptable to park on the bypass while
waiting to get into Tesco/XPO Logistics.

Hinckley — A5 Dodwells Island to/from The Longshoot.

Hinckley — Regent Street / The Borough — uncoordinated traffic signals and opening up to cars when previously buses only. Junction with
Lower Bond Street particularly bad, as sequence of traffic light signals results in southbound buses getting held on a red light crossing
Stockwell Head and northbound buses then being unable to turn right through the bus lane as the southbound bus is obstructing it.

Ashby area
Ashby town centre — High Street congested, opportunity to include bus priority between Flagstaff Island and Nottingham Road missed in
recent works.

Coalville area
Coalville — Ashby Road / Memorial Square.
Coalville, Belvoir Road/Central Road - parked cars hinder follow of traffic.

Market Harborough area
Market Harborough — High Street and The Square, one-way system isn't big enough and traffic waiting to turn right onto Coventry Road or St
Mary’s Road creates holdups. Should be no right turn at either of these junctions.

Melton Mowbray area
Crossroads at the edge of Melton Town Centre near Nottingham Road often causes delays, especially on market days

Lutterworth area
Lutterworth — Leicester Road and High Street from Bill Crane Way down to Woodmarket. Turning right into George Street and Woodmarket
challenging due to oncoming traffic, which is only going to get worse when Aldi opens at the Whittle Island.

North Leicester urban fringe

Melton Road, Syston - heavy volume of traffic through the village with mini roundabouts causing issues, parked cars hindering progress. (NB —
the remodelling of this junction has removed the opportunity to serve new developments off Barkby Road and into Quenniborough)
Thurmaston Asda roundabout A607/Melton Road - vehicles hindered coming off the roundabout onto Melton Road and coming onto the
roundabout from Melton Road.

South Leicester urban fringe

Fosse Park — stops at M&S/Sainsbury’s aren't ideal location, no additional bus stops provided as part of recent redevelopment or construction
of Everards Meadows. Fosse Park Avenue (service 104) is horrendous at weekends.

South Wigston — from Saffron Lane through to Launceston Road; volume of traffic and uncoordinated traffic signals.

A6 Oadby Glen Road/ Harborough Road - volume of traffic traffic, inbound particularly (40MPH), Right turn into Uplands Road is a give way to
heavy traffic.

Oadby - pulling out of Stoughton Road onto the A6 towards the Parade

Wigston, Aylestone Lane junction with Shackerdale Road and West Avenue

Moat Street/Bull Head Street, Wigston Magna, Right turn from Horsewell lane onto Moat Street towards Bullhead Street. Traffic light
configuration may also be an issue.

Hinckley Road A47 Leicester Forest East/Braunstone Crossroads, Volume of traffic, This one of the main access routes to Leicester Western
Bypass/M1, delays in this area highly likely.

Other areas

A511 Bardon Road - volume of traffic in both directions aided by heavy articulated vehicles from Bardon Hill Industrial estate and Bardon Hill
Quarry.

A6 Kibworth /Leicester Road - inbound towards Wistow Roundabout in particular, Turning Left & Right from Church Road, onto A6 Kibworth.
Does not take a lot to cause delays in this area.

St John B4114/ Foxhunter Roundabout/B582 Blaby Road, Volume of traffic, Filtering to the right before roundabout made difficult towards
Enderby, Blaby Road is the main access route to Warrens Business Park.

Castle Donington and Bus Station



181

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Annex 2: General traffic delay maps for main

| eicestershire towns



A\~ 4A >4

AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
- 0-15
S—— - — 25-56
\
-
v
<
: N
+
~ Notes:
' Leicestershire
County Council
Ashby de la Zouch
NDI
Congestion Analysis 2019
AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
Location
NOTES
The highway records are not definitive, but are based on currently available supporting information and are given without warranty. Ref
If roadside ditches are present, the legal presumption without evidence to the contrary is that these do not generally form part of the publicly ererence
maintainable highway. _
This plan has been produced in response to the enquiry shown in the title address and should not be used for any other purpose, since its Drawing No.
accuracy cannot be guaranteed.
This plan is based on Ordnance Survey features and therefore only shows the general position of the boundaries: it does not show the exact line O 500 1000 1 500 2000 m Date Produced 2021-08-26 12:21:59
of boundaries. If a scale has been provided, measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the ground.
This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown — ] Network Data & Intelligence | Environment & Transport
copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Leicestershire County Council. LA100019271. County Hall, Glenfield, LE3 8R]
Published 2018. 0116 3057648 | ndi@leics.gov.uk
y Y y /<500




NOTES

The highway records are not definitive, but are based on currently available supporting information and are given without warranty.

If roadside ditches are present, the legal presumption without evidence to the contrary is that these do not generally form part of the publicly
maintainable highway.

This plan has been produced in response to the enquiry shown in the title address and should not be used for any other purpose, since its

accuracy cannot be guaranteed.

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey features and therefore only shows the general position of the boundaries: it does not show the exact line

of boundaries. If a scale has been provided, measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the ground.

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Leicestershire County Council. LA100019271.

700

Published 2018.
v 4 8 — =

Legend
AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
= (0-1.5
1.5-25
— )5 -56

€87

Notes:
' Leicestershire
County Council
Coalville
NDI
Congestion Analysis 2019
AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
Location
| @
Reference
Drawing No.
Date Produced 2021-08-26 12:22:21

Network Data & Intelligence | Environment & Transport
County Hall, Glenfield, LE3 8R]
0116 3057648 | ndi@leics.gov.uk




NN&&&NM

\

V4 ’

The highway records are not definitive, but are based on currently available supporting information and are given without warranty.

If roadside ditches are present, the legal presumption without evidence to the contrary is that these do not generally form part of the publicly
maintainable highway.

This plan has been produced in response to the enquiry shown in the title address and should not be used for any other purpose, since its

accuracy cannot be guaranteed.

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey features and therefore only shows the general position of the boundaries: it does not show the exact line

of boundaries. If a scale has been provided, measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the ground.

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Leicestershire County Council. LA100019271.
Published 2018.

" A\ N

600

1200

y/4

1800

2400 m

Legend
AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
= (0-1.5
1.5-25
—_— 2.5-56

79T

Notes:
' Leicestershire
County Council
Earl Shilton
NDI
Congestion Analysis 2019
AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
Location
2
Reference
Drawing No.
Date Produced 2021-08-26 12:22:28

Network Data & Intelligence | Environment & Transport

County Hall, Glenfield, LE3 8R]
0116 3057648 | ndi@leics.gov.uk




NOTES
The highway records are not definitive, but are based on currently available supporting information and are given without warranty.
If roadside ditches are present, the legal presumption without evidence to the contrary is that these do not generally form part of the publicly
maintainable highway.

This plan has been produced in response to the enquiry shown in the title address and should not be used for any other purpose, since its

accuracy cannot be guaranteed.

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey features and therefore only shows the general position of the boundaries: it does not show the exact line

of boundaries. If a scale has been provided, measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the ground.

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Leicestershire County Council. LA100019271.
Published 2018.

2100

2800 m

Legend

AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
= 0-1.5

1.5-25
— 2.5-56

G8T

Notes:
' Leicestershire
County Council
Hinckley
NDI
Congestion Analysis 2019
AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
Location
Reference
Drawing No.

Date Produced

2021-08-26 12:22:45

Network Data & Intelligence | Environment & Transport

County Hall, Glenfield, LE3 8R]
0116 3057648 | ndi@leics.gov.uk




NOTES

The highway records are not definitive, but are based on currently available supporting information and are given without warranty.

If roadside ditches are present, the legal presumption without evidence to the contrary is that these do not generally form part of the publicly
maintainable highway.

This plan has been produced in response to the enquiry shown in the title address and should not be used for any other purpose, since its

accuracy cannot be guaranteed.

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey features and therefore only shows the general position of the boundaries: it does not show the exact line

of boundaries. If a scale has been provided, measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the ground.

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Leicestershire County Council. LA100019271.
Published 2018.

h 4 a

800

1600

2400

Legend
AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
= (0-1.5
1.5-25
— )5 -56

987

Notes:
' Leicestershire
County Council
Loughborough
NDI
Congestion Analysis 2019
AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
Location
Reference
Drawing No.
Date Produced 2021-08-26 12:23:01

Network Data & Intelligence | Environment & Transport
County Hall, Glenfield, LE3 8R]

0116 3057648 | ndi@leics.gov.uk




NOTES

The highway records are not definitive, but are based on currently available supporting information and are given without warranty.

If roadside ditches are present, the legal presumption without evidence to the contrary is that these do not generally form part of the publicly
maintainable highway.

This plan has been produced in response to the enquiry shown in the title address and should not be used for any other purpose, since its

accuracy cannot be guaranteed.

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey features and therefore only shows the general position of the boundaries: it does not show the exact line

of boundaries. If a scale has been provided, measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the ground.

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Leicestershire County Council. LA100019271.
Published 2018.

400

800

1200

1600 m

Legend
AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
- (0-1.5
1.5-25
— 2.5-56

L8871

Notes:
' Leicestershire
County Council
Lutterworth
NDI
Congestion Analysis 2019
AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
Location
Reference
Drawing No.
Date Produced 2021-08-26 12:23:07

Network Data & Intelligence | Environment & Transport
County Hall, Glenfield, LE3 8R]

0116 3057648 | ndi@leics.gov.uk




Legend
AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
m—0-1.5
1.5-25
—_— 2.5-56

88T

NOTES

The highway records are not definitive, but are based on currently available supporting information and are given without warranty.

If roadside ditches are present, the legal presumption without evidence to the contrary is that these do not generally form part of the publicly
maintainable highway.

This plan has been produced in response to the enquiry shown in the title address and should not be used for any other purpose, since its

accuracy cannot be guaranteed.

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey features and therefore only shows the general position of the boundaries: it does not show the exact line

of boundaries. If a scale has been provided, measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the ground.

Notes:
' Leicestershire
County Council
Market Harborough
NDI
Congestion Analysis 2019
AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
Location
Reference
Drawing No.
Date Produced 2021-08-26 12:23:17

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Leicestershire County Council. LA100019271.
Published 2018.

\ 7

Network Data & Intelligence | Environment & Transport
County Hall, Glenfield, LE3 8R]
0116 3057648 | ndi@leics.gov.uk




~_

Legend
AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
= (0-1.5
1.5-25
—_— 2.5-56

NOTES

The highway records are not definitive, but are based on currently available supporting information and are given without warranty.

If roadside ditches are present, the legal presumption without evidence to the contrary is that these do not generally form part of the publicly
maintainable highway.

This plan has been produced in response to the enquiry shown in the title address and should not be used for any other purpose, since its

accuracy cannot be guaranteed.

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey features and therefore only shows the general position of the boundaries: it does not show the exact line

of boundaries. If a scale has been provided, measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the ground.

Notes:
' Leicestershire
County Council
Melton Mowbray
NDI
Congestion Analysis 2019
AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
Location
e
Reference
Drawing No.
Date Produced 2021-08-26 12:23:22

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown

copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Leicestershire County Council. LA100019271.
Published 2018.

Network Data & Intelligence | Environment & Transport
County Hall, Glenfield, LE3 8R]

A\

0116 3057648 | ndi@leics.gov.uk

687




Legend
AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
- (0-1.5
1.5-25
—_— 2.5-56

067

o
Q
+
_—
;
-
/7 N
1
[} |
§
NOTES

The highway records are not definitive, but are based on currently available supporting information and are given without warranty.

If roadside ditches are present, the legal presumption without evidence to the contrary is that these do not generally form part of the publicly
maintainable highway.

This plan has been produced in response to the enquiry shown in the title address and should not be used for any other purpose, since its

accuracy cannot be guaranteed.

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey features and therefore only shows the general position of the boundaries: it does not show the exact line

of boundaries. If a scale has been provided, measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the ground.

Notes:
' Leicestershire
County Council
Oadby
NDI
Congestion Analysis 2019
AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
Location
Reference
Drawing No.
Date Produced 2021-08-26 12:23:33

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Leicestershire County Council. LA100019271.
Published 2018.

Network Data & Intelligence | Environment & Transport
County Hall, Glenfield, LE3 8R]

&

0116 3057648 | ndi@leics.gov.uk




Legend
AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
- (0-1.5
1.5-25
—_— 2.5-56

NOTES

The highway records are not definitive, but are based on currently available supporting information and are given without warranty.

If roadside ditches are present, the legal presumption without evidence to the contrary is that these do not generally form part of the publicly
maintainable highway.

This plan has been produced in response to the enquiry shown in the title address and should not be used for any other purpose, since its

accuracy cannot be guaranteed.

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey features and therefore only shows the general position of the boundaries: it does not show the exact line

of boundaries. If a scale has been provided, measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the ground.

o

Notes:
' Leicestershire
County Council
Wigston
NDI
Congestion Analysis 2019
AM PEAK v OVERNIGHT
Location
Reference
Drawing No.
Date Produced 2021-08-26 12:23:54

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Leicestershire County Council. LA100019271.
Published 2018.

Network Data & Intelligence | Environment & Transport
County Hall, Glenfield, LE3 8R]
0116 3057648 | ndi@leics.gov.uk

167




192

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Annex 3: Current real time information

display locations in Leicestershire



193

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Sign ID Locality Name Summary Board Stops
260006018 |Anstey Anstey-Leicester Rd -
260010904 |Barwell The Square -
260010936|Barwell The Square -
260006503 |Birstall Birstall G'gate Ln -
260006506 |Birstall Birstall opp G'gate -
Birstall1 Birstall P&R site Birstall1 P & R -
Birstall2 Birstall P&R site Birstall2 P & R -
260003127 |Blaby Forge Corner -
260013603 |Castle Donington Bus Station -
260013650(|Castle Donington Bus Station -
260014078 |Coalville Memorial Square -
260013986|Coalville Memorial Square -
260014071|Coalville Memorial Square -
260014074 |Coalville Marlborough Square |-
260014063 |Coalville Marlborough Square |-
260013943 (Coalville Memorial Square -
260014077 |Coalville Memorial Square -
260003404 |Countesthorpe C'thorpe Church St -
260003410|Countesthorpe C'thorpe Stn Rd -
260010508 |Desford Desford-Manor Rd -
260010509 |Desford Desford-Station Rd -
260010604 |Earl Shilton Earl Shilton Wood S -
260010606 |Earl Shilton Earl Shilton Wood S -
Enderby1 |Enderby P&R site Enderby1 P & R -
Enderby2 |Enderby P&R site Enderby2 P & R -
260003732 |Fosse Park M&S -
260003807 |Glen Parva Glen Parva-Glen Rd -
260003917 |Glenfield Church Road -
260003901 |Glenfield G'field Groby Rd -
260003905 |Glenfield County Hall -
260003907 |Glenfield Opp County Hall -
260003935(Glenfield Tesco -
260010716|Groby Groby-Laundon Way |-
260010704 |Groby Groby-Leicester Rd -
260010318|Hinckley Harrowbrook Rd -
260010322(Hinckley King George Way -
260010326(Hinckley Granville Road -
260010361|Hinckley Bus Station Stand CE -
260010362|Hinckley Bus Station Stand CD |-
260010363 [Hinckley Bus Station Stand CC |-




194

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Sign ID Locality Name Summary Board Stops
260010364 |Hinckley Bus Station Stand CB |-
260010377|Hinckley Bus Station Stand CA |-
260010356 |Hinckley Regent St Stand R1 -
260010357 |Hinckley Regent St Stand R2 -
260010358|Hinckley Regent St Stand R3 -
260010388 |Hinckley Regent St Stand R4 -
260004212 |Kirby Muxloe Kirby Muxloe Stn Rd -
260004306 |Leicester Forest East  [Kings Drive -
260007234 |Loughborough Ashby Square Stand AA |-
260007454 |Loughborough Baxter Gate Stand BA |-
260007455|Loughborough Baxter Gate Stand BB |-
260007456|Loughborough Baxter Gate Stand BC |-
260007457|Loughborough Baxter Gate Stand BD |-
260007434 |Loughborough Swan St Stand SA -
260007436|Loughborough Swan St Stand SB -
260007437|Loughborough Swan St Stand SC -
260007348|Loughborough Rail Station -
260007219|Loughborough High St Stand HA -
260007212|Loughborough High St Stand HB -
260006542 |Loughborough High St Stand HC -
260007333 |Loughborough Lemyngton St Stand LA |-
260007216|Loughborough Lemyngton St Stand LB |-
260007335 |Loughborough Browns Lane -
260007479|Loughborough Fennel St -
260011000|Market Bosworth Mkt Bosworth-Mkt PI |-
260011800|MIRA MIRA -
260011311 |Newbold Verdon N'bold-Verdon-Mn St |-
260016711|Oadby East Street -
260016712|0Oadby East Street -
260007916|Quorn Quorndon Fox -
260007911|Quorn Quorndon Fox -
260011605 |Ratby Bulls Head -
260008205|Rothley Cross Green -
260008204 |Rothley Rothley-Cross Green -
260008429|Shepshed Shepshed-Bull Ring -
260016108|South Wigston S Wigston-Blaby Rd -
260016109|South Wigston S Wigston-Blaby Rd -
260008809 |Syston Brookside -
260016413 |Wigston Magna Wigston M-Long St -
260016000|Wigston Magna Guthlaxton College -




195

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Sign 1D Locality Name Summary Board Stops
Reception Foyer, 260003903 (County Hall)
County Hall , County Hall
County Hall, Glenfield 260003907 (Opp County Hall)

260010361 (Bus Station CE)

260010362 (Bus Station CD)

Hinckley 1 [The Crescent, Hinckley |Hinckley 1 260010363 (Bus Station CC)

260010364 (Bus Station CB)

260010377 (Bus Station CA)

260010361 (Bus Station CE)

260010362 (Bus Station CD)

Hinckley 2 |The Crescent, Hinckley [Hinckley 2 260010363 (Bus Station CC)

260010364 (Bus Station CB)

260010377 (Bus Station CA)

260010361 (Bus Station CE)

260010362 (Bus Station CD)

Hinckley 3 |The Crescent, Hinckley [Hinckley 3 260010363 (Bus Station CO)

260010384 (Bus Station CB)

260010377 (Bus Station CA)

260010361 (Bus Station CE)

260010362 (Bus Station CD)

Hinckley 4 [The Crescent, Hinckley |Hinckley 4 260010363 (Bus Station CCO)

260010384 (Bus Station CB)

260010377 (Bus Station CA)

260006542 (High St HC)

260007212 (High St HE)

260007219 (High St HA)

Loughbaorough _
Loughbo1 Lloyds Bank 260007454 (Baxter Gate BA)

Market Place —
260007455 (Baxter Gate BE)
260007456 (Baxter Gate BC)
260007457 (Baxter Gate BD)
260007216 (Lemyngton 5t LEB)
260007333 (Lemyngton 5t LA

Loughbaorough (Lemyng :I

Loughbo?2 Swan Str 260007434 (Swan 5t SA)

Market Place
260007436 (Swan St SEB)

260007437 (5wan 5t 5C)




196

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Annex 4: Town Centre Off-Road Parking

Provision in Leicestershire



197

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Parking charges Operator
Council- Private
Town (& District) Car park 2 hour 4 hours 8 hours operated operator Capacity
Loughborough Carillon Court £1.80| £3.50| £6.00 X 340
(Charnwood) Market Street £1.50| £2.50( £3.50 X 85
Granby Street £1.60| £3.20| £6.00 X 175
Sital House £1.60| £3.20| £6.00 X 42
Ashby Place £1.50| £2.50 N/A X 24
The Rushes £3.10| £6.10| £12.60 X 387
Beehive Lane £1.60| £3.20| £6.00 X 577
Regent Retail Park £1.80| £3.00| £5.00 X 250
Browns Lane £3.20 N/A N/A X 199
Loughborough Station (off-peak) £7.00 £7.00| £7.00 X 250
Capacity (council controlled) 951
Capacity (private) 1378
Capacity (total) 2329
Ashby de la Zouch North Street £1.00| £2.00| £2.50 X 144
(NW Leics) South Street £1.00{ £2.00| £2.50 X 57
Hood Park £1.00 £2.00{ £2.50 X 88
Capacity (council controlled) 289
Capacity (private) 0
Capacity (total) 289
Coalville Council Offices £1.00| £2.00[ £2.50 X 150
(NW Leics) London Road £1.00f £2.00| £2.50 X 87
Belvoir Retail & Leisure £0.00| £2.50( £5.00 X 546
James Street £1.00| £2.00{ £2.50 X 58
Margaret Street £1.00| £2.00 N/A X 44
Capacity (council controlled) 339
Capacity (private) 546
Capacity (total) 885
Hinckley Church Walk £1.20 N/A N/A X 89
(Hinckley & Bosworth)|Britannia Centre £1.40( £3.00| £5.00 X 250
Mansion Street £1.20| £3.00[ £6.00 X 17
Rear of Castle Street £1.20| £3.00| £6.00 X 23
Stockwell Head £1.20| £3.00| £6.00 X 42
St Mary's Road £1.20 N/A N/A X 79
Lower Bond Street £1.20| £2.00[ £4.00 X 97
Trinity Vicarage Road £1.20| £2.00[ £4.00 X 92
Hinckley Leisure Centre £1.20| £3.00f £6.00 X 109
Trinity Lane East £1.20| £3.00f £6.00 X 47
Castle £1.20| £2.00{ £4.00 X 116
Trinity Lane West £1.20| £1.60[ £2.50 X 42
Alma Road £1.20| £1.60[ £2.50 X 40
Thornycroft Road £1.20| £1.60| £2.50 X 36
Sainsburys £1.20| £3.00 N/A X 550
Druid Street £1.20| £1.60[ £2.50 X 28
New Street £0.00| £0.00{ £0.00 X 14
Capacity (council controlled) 871
Capacity (private) 800
Capacity (total) 1671




198

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Parking charges Operator
Council- Private
Town (& District) Car park 2 hour 4 hours 8 hours operated operator Capacity
Market Harborough |The Commons £1.50| £3.00| £7.50 X 285
(Harborough) Market Hall £1.50| £3.00| £7.50 X 73
Mill Hill £1.50| £3.00( £7.50 X 93
St Mary's Road £1.50| £3.00( £7.50 X 29
Symington Way £1.50| £3.00| £7.50 X 84
King's Head Place £1.50| £3.00( £7.50 X 24
Symington's Recreation Ground car park N/A| £2.50( £5.00 X 30
St Mary's Road East N/A|  £2.50| £5.00 X 49
Doddridge Road short stay £1.50| £3.00| £7.00 X 0
Doddridge Road long stay N/A|  £2.50| £5.00 X 98
Angel Street N/A|  £2.50| £5.00 X 88
Springfield Retail Park £1.50| £3.00| £7.50 X 600
Springfield Street £2.50| £2.50| £5.00 X 26
Capacity (council controlled) 1479
Capacity (private) 0
Capacity (total) 1479
Melton Mowbray Parkside £1.60| £3.00 N/A X 68
(Melton) Mill Street £1.50| £3.50 N/A X 45
Burton Street (Annex) £1.60| £3.00 N/A X 32
Burton Street £1.50| £3.50 N/A X 131
Mucky Lane £1.50| £3.50 N/A X 25
Chapel Street £1.60[ £3.00 N/A X 99
Waterfield Leisure Pools £1.60| £3.00 N/A X 96
St Mary's Way £1.60| £3.00 N/A X 112
Wilton Park £1.50| £3.50 N/A X 42
56 Nottingham Street £1.50| £2.50| £3.50 X 66
Wilton Road £1.60| £3.00 N/A X 141
Scalford Road £1.50| £3.50 N/A X 199
Capacity (council controlled) 2427
Capacity (private) 108
Capacity (total) 2535
Oadby Ellis Park £0 N/A N/A X 39
(Oadby & Wigston) East Street f0 N/A N/A X 117
51 Sandhurst Street £0 £0 £3 X 191
Shady Lane Arboretum £0 £0 £0 X 17
Knighton Park £0 £0 £0 X 61
Evington Park £0 £0 £0 X 48
Queen Street £1.40| £2.80| £5.70 X 25
Victoria Park £1.00| £2.00| £0.60 X 246
Nelson Street £1.00| £3.00f £6.00 X 57
Lee Circle £3.50 X 1070
34 Dover Street £3.00| £4.00| £9.00 X 161
Phoenix Square £3.00| £4.00f £9.00 X 51
Newarke Street £3.00/ £4.00f £9.00 X 470
Upper Brown Street £1.00| £3.00 £4.00 X 21
Mercure The Grand Hotel £3.00| £5.50( £10.00 X 124
Almond Road £2.00| £3.00| £6.00 X 106
Havelock Street £3.00| £6.00[ £10.00 X 74
Rutland Centre £7.00| £14.00| £21.00 X 526
Capacity (council controlled) 1422
Capacity (private) 1982
Capacity (total) 3404




199

Leicestershire Bus Service Improvement Plan — Draft v2-5 October 2021

Parking charges Operator
Council- Private
Town (& District) Car park 2 hour 4 hours 8 hours operated operator Capacity
Wigston Station Street £0.00| £0.00| £0.00 X 28
(Oadby & Wigston) Countesthorpe Road £0.00{ £0.00[{ £0.00 X 67
Kirkdale Road £0.00| £0.00| £0.00 X 40
Aylestone Lane £0.00| £0.00| £0.00 X 25
Frederick Street £0.00 N/A N/A X 52
Spring Lane £0.00 N/A N/A X 28
Junction Road £0.00 N/A N/A X 142
Enderby Road & John's £0.30| £1.50| £5.00 X 126
High Street £0.00| £0.00| £0.00 X 20
Capacity (council controlled) 528
Capacity (private) 0
Capacity (total) 528
Lutterworth Wycliffe Memorial Methodist Church £0.00{ £0.00| £0.00 X 15
(Harborough) Church Close £1.50| £3.00{ £5.00 X 18
Lutterworth Sports Centre £0.00( £0.00| £0.00 X 110
George Street £1.50( £3.00| £5.00 X 42
Chapel Street £1.50| £3.00{ £5.00 X 43
Station Road £1.50| £3.00f £5.00 X 71
Football Club £0.00| £0.00| £0.00 X 20
Lutterworth Country Park £0.00| £0.00| £0.00 X 13
Capacity (council controlled) 332
Capacity (private) 0
Capacity (total) 332
Earl Shilton St Stephen's shopping centre £2.00| £3.00| £8.00 X 800
(Hinckley & Bosworth)|37 Spring Street £0.80| £1.90| £2.40 X 85
St Stephens square £0.80| £1.90( £2.40 X 258
Travelodge £1.50| £2.50| £3.00 X 27
Pryme Street £2.50 £3.50 X 110
Prospect Shopping Centre £2.00| £3.20[ £10.00 X 188
The Royal Hotel £2.50| £4.00{ £7.50 X 33
Albion Street £2.00| £3.60[ £12.00 X 164
Fountain Street £4.00| £5.00[ £6.00 X 300
Dock Street £2.00| £3.60[ £7.20 X 42
Princes Quay Shopping £2.00| £3.00| £6.00 X 900
History Centre £2.00| £3.60[ £12.00 X 58
Zebedee's Yard £2.00 N/A N/A X 71
Lowgate £2.00| £3.60[ £12.00 X 61
Trippett Street £2.00| £3.60| £12.00 X 58
The Bowery £1.00 £1.50| £2.00 X 45
Capacity (council controlled) 341
Capacity (private) 2859
Capacity (total) 3200




QAS INTERNATIONAL QAS INTERNATIONAL

REGISTERED COMPANY REGISTERED COMPANY

Integrated Transport Planning Ltd
Charles House

148 Great Charles Street
Birmingham

B3 3HT UK

+44 (0)121 285 7301

Integrated Transport Planning Ltd
Build Studios

203 Westminster Bridge Road
London

SET 7FR UK

+44 (0)7498 563196

Integrated Transport Planning Ltd
1 Broadway

Nottingham

NG1 1PR UK

+44 (0)115 824 8250

www.itpworld.net

a company of Royal HaskoningDHV




APPENDIX C

BSIP outline funding form

Detail on aspiration
[e.g. ‘additional bus

2022/23 (£ nominal)

2023/24 (£ nominal)

2024/25 (£ nominal)

Beyond 2025 (£ nominal)

Total cost of project or

Title of scheme Qrior,ity‘/ on X Prio'rity Source of Funding proposal (£ nominal) ==
corridor’, ‘flat fares Ranking**
of Y across : : : : :
operators’]* Resource Capital Resource Capital Resource Capital Resource Capital Resource Capital
Bus priority infrastructure R1-1: Bus priority interventions N/A - see DfT - £3bn - 129,729 906,400 133,620 5,834,950 137,629 6,009,999 1,086,214 47,432,928 1,487,192 60,184,276
footnote below
DIT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other -00 -00
Government
(please specify)
Private -00 -00
R2-1: Improved traffic & parking N/A DfT - £3bn - 136,615 56,650 140,713 291,748 144,935 300,500 1,143,874 2,371,646 1,566,136 3,020,544
management and enforcement
DIT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other Revenue Support Grant 43,358 43,358 43,358 303,504 433,577 -00
Government
(please specify)
Private -00 -00
Other infrastructure S3-1:Upgrading of roadside N/A DfT - £3bn - 196,138 1,120,990 202,022 2,309,240 87,883 2,378,517 -00 -00 486,043 5,808,747
infrastructure DfT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other Revenue Support Grant 433,577 -00
Government
(please specify) 43,358 43,358 43,358 303,504
Private -00 -00
S3-2: Upgraded maintenance regime N/A DfT - £3bn - -00 -00 116,699 -00 120,200 -00 948,659 -00 1,185,558 -00
DfT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other Revenue Support Grant 433,577 -00
Government
(please specify) 43,358 43,358 43,358 303,504
Private -00 -00
S4-1: Mobility hubs N/A DfT - £3bn - 96,342 339,900 99,233 2,100,582 102,210 2,163,599 649,425 4,141,310 947,209 8,745,391
DfT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other -00 -00
Government
(please specify)
Private -00 -00
E2-1: Real-time information N/A DfT - £3bn - 89,082 113,300 33,405 472,631 34,407 306,510 71,942 -00 228,837 892,441
DfT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other -00 -00
Government
(please specify)
Private -00 -00
Fares support Al-1: Rationalisation of child / young N/A DfT - £3bn - -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00
person qualification age DfT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other -00 -00
Government
(please specify)
Private -00 -00
A2-1: Young adult discounted fare offer N/A DfT - £3bn - 56,650 -00 641,845 -00 2,584,299 -00 20,396,159 -00 23,678,953 -00
for all 19-25 year olds DfT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other -00 -00
Government
(please specify)
Private -00 -00
Ticketing reform E3-1: Multi-operator ticketing N/A DfT - £3bn - 33,990 -00 35,010 -00 36,060 -00 338,089 -00 443,149 -00
DfT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other -00 -00
Government
(please specify)
Private Operator investment in 1,897,319 283,976
technology & operations 632,440 94,659 632,440 94,659 632,440 94,659
E4-1: MaaS (Mobility as a Service) N/A DfT - £3bn - -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00
DfT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other -00 -00
Government
(please specify)
Private -00 -00
Bus service support S1-1: Coordinated timetables N/A DfT - £3bn - -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00
DfT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other -00 -00

Government
(please specify)

T0¢C



Private -00 -00
S1-2: Supported network and increased N/A DfT - £3bn - 6,433,018 -00 4,201,470 -00 3,548,664 -00 5,391,095 -00 19,574,247 -00
service frequencies DfT other LTA BSOG and 4,430,876 -00
(please specify) |Supported Bus Services 624,209 422,963 422,963 2,960,741
Other Public health funding 632,060 -00
Government
(please specify) 63,206 63,206 63,206 442,442
Other Revenue Support Grant 26,925,965 -00
Government
(please specify) 2,692,597 2,692,597 2,692,597 18,848,176
Private -00 -00
S2-1: Better integration with rail N/A DfT - £3bn - -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00
DfT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other -00 -00
Government
(please specify)
Private -00 -00
S6-1: DRT services N/A DfT - £3bn - 243,029 -00 1,358,960 -00 2,361,328 -00 16,942,821 -00 20,906,138 -00
DIT other Rural mobility fund 1,030,000 -00
(please specify) 377,000 352,000 301,000
Other Revenue Support Grant 433,577 -00
Government
(please specify) 43,358 43,358 43,358 303,504
Private -00 -00
S6-2: Evening DRT services N/A DfT - £3bn - -00 -00 700,194 -00 1,658,760 -00 9,701,902 -00 12,060,855 -00
DfT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other -00 -00
Government
(please specify)
Private -00 -00
Marketing E1-1: Improved information N/A DfT - £3bn - 259,032 -00 33,405 116,699 64,457 -00 508,718 -00 865,613 116,699
DfT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other Revenue Support Grant 433,577 -00
Government
(please specify) 43,358 43,358 43,358 303,504
Private -00 -00
S5-1: Branding and marketing N/A DfT - £3bn - 175,519 -00 111,250 -00 114,588 -00 904,366 -00 1,305,723 -00
DfT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other -00 -00
Government
(please specify)
Private Operator marketing 190,600 -00 190,600 -00 190,600 -00 571,800 -00
EP/franchising delivery: LTA costs JC1-1: EP Coordinator & support team N/A DfT - £3bn - 264,133 -00 272,057 -00 280,219 -00 2,211,579 -00 3,027,988 -00
DfT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other -00 -00
Government
(please specify)
Private -00 -00
C1-2: Monitoring, evaluation and N/A DfT - £3bn - 113,300 -00 116,699 -00 120,200 -00 948,659 -00 1,298,858 -00
reporting DfT other ~00 ~00
(please specify)
Other -00 -00
Government
(please specify)
Private -00 -00
S7-1: Service quality standards N/A DIT - £3bn - -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00
DfT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other -00 -00
Government
(please specify)
Private Operator customer 76,680 -00
service training 25,560 -00 25,560 -00 25,560 -00
S7-2: Customer charter N/A DIT - £3bn . -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00
DIT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other -00 -00
Government
(please specify)
Private -00 -00
Zero and low emission buses G1-1: Lower emission vehicles N/A DfT - £3bn - -00 453,200 -00 466,796 -00 480,800 -00 -00 -00 1,400,796
DIT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other -00 -00
Government
(please specify)
Private Operator investment in 323,160 1,426,049
EuroVI vehicles 107,000 475,350 190,600 475,350 25,560 475,350
G1-2: ULEV pilot N/A DfT - £3bn - -00 90,640 -00 93,359 -00 3,726,199 -00 -00 -00 3,910,198
DIT other -00 -00

(please specify)

c0¢



Other -00 -00
Government
(please specify)
Private -00 -00
E5-1: Automated vehicles N/A DfT - £3bn - -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00 -00
DfT other -00 -00
(please specify)
Other -00 -00
Government
(please specify)
Private -00 -00
-00 -00
-00 -00
TOTALS*** 13,155,976 3,651,089 12,983,335 12,256,013 | 15,966,552 15,936,132 85,012,379 53,945,884 127,118,242 85,789,118

Q2. [optional] Please provide any additional notes to explain the other funding sources outside of the £3bn for buses (150 words maximum).

1. Interventions have not been priority ranked, as many are interdependent and will be appropriately packaged once DIT funding availability is known.

2. DT funding ask for interventions shown as having zero cost (Al-1, E4-1, S1-1, S2-1, S7-1, S7-2, E5-1) is included within C1-1 (EP coordination and support).

3. Rural Mobility Fund funding comes from the RMF funding awarded to LCC for a DRT pilot scheme.
4. Private sector funding represents estimated value of bus operator commitments up to 2025
5. Revenue support grant covers estimated current staffing costs plus expenditure on passenger transport services (local buses, DRT & CT). Assumed to

€0¢



This page is intentionally left blank



205 Agenda Item 10

H Leicestershire
County Council

HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
— 4 NOVEMBER 2021

A511 GROWTH CORRIDOR PROPOSALS

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT & TRANSPORT

Purpose of the Report

1. The purpose of this report is to advise the Highways and Transport Overview and
Scrutiny Committee on the progress of the A511 Growth Corridor
proposals and provide an opportunity for comments prior to seeking Cabinet
approval to submit a planning application for the extension of the Bardon Link
Road which is an element of the A511 Growth Corridor Scheme.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions

2. In March 2011 the County Council approved the third Leicestershire Local Transport
Plan (LTP3). This contains six strategic transport goals, of which Goal 1 is to have a
transport system that supports a prosperous economy and provides successfully for
population growth. The LTP3 sets out the Council’s approach to achieving this,
namely to improve the management of the road network and continuing to address
congestion issues.

3. In March 2014 the Cabinet approved the principles set out in the Leicester and
Leicestershire Enterprise Partnership’s (LLEP) Strategic Economic Plan, which
prioritises support for the economy of Market Towns and rural Leicestershire.

4. The County Council’'s Enabling Growth Action Plan (approved in March 2015)
supports the development of Market Towns for employment land as a priority and
includes a specific action to work with North West Leicestershire District Council to
plan for the future growth in the area and in particular Coalville.

5. In November 2015 the Environment and Transport Overview and Scrutiny
Committee was advised that given the significant opposition to making any changes
to Hugglescote Crossroads, future highways improvement work in the area would
be focused on the A511.

6. In March 2019 the Cabinet agreed to the development of the Strategic Outline
Business Case and the OBC for the Major Road Network (MRN) A511 Growth
Corridor scheme. It authorised the Director of Environment and Transport to



206

prepare and submit bids, as appropriate, to secure external funding for delivery of
schemes identified in the Highways Capital Programme.

In November 2019, following public consultation, the Cabinet agreed to support the
proposals comprising proposed improvements to eight junctions along the A511,
including a Bardon Link Road extension to south-east Coalville, and dual
carriageway between Thornborough Road and Whitwick Road. It authorised the
Director of Environment and Transport to use the existing funding allocation of £4m
capital funding to develop and submit a planning application for the extension to the
Bardon Link Road and undertake all necessary preparations to progress the
scheme to Full Business Case (FBC) and, subject to Department for Transport
(DfT) approval, deliver the scheme.

In March 2021, the Cabinet agreed to continue to progress the A511 Growth
Corridor scheme including submission of the Full Business Case to the Department
for Transport (DfT); and the Director of Environment and Transport was authorised;
following consultation with the Director of Corporate Resources and the Cabinet
Lead Member for Highways and Transportation, to undertake a pre-submission
consultation exercise to support the submission of a planning application in respect
of the route of the extension of the Bardon Link Road aligned to the programme for
scheme delivery as required by the DfT.

Background

9.

10.

11.

12.

Congestion on the A511 Growth Corridor has been a long-standing issue
recognised by both North West Leicestershire District Council and Leicestershire
County Council. This dates back to 2008 when the Coalville Transport Strategy
(CTS) was developed and officers investigated junctions on the corridor requiring
improvement to facilitate housing growth in Coalville and Ashby.

An outcome of the CTS was the implementation of the Coalville Contribution
Strategy (CCS) to help facilitate the delivery of improvements along the Growth
Corridor. However, insufficient funding has currently been received from the CCS to
deliver the range of improvements required and issues (such as congestion and
pollution) have become increasingly pronounced. This is likely to be exacerbated
further by increases in background traffic and the significant levels of growth
planned for Coalville as part of the district council’s Local Plan.

The A511 Growth Corridor is recognised by Leicester and Leicestershire Enterprise
Partnership (LLEP) in its Strategic Economic Plan as one of five Growth Areas. The
Strategic Economic Plan states through appropriate investment and improvements
along the corridor, there is the potential to deliver at least 5,275 houses and 25
hectares of employment land. Importantly, a significant number of the committed
dwellings (3,500) are on sites which are collectively referred to as south-east
Coalville.

Taking into account the aims of the MRN funding opportunity and the evidence of
priorities needed to support growth, a package has been developed for submission
to DfT to seek MRN funding. The A511 Growth Corridor proposals consist of a
range of measures, including improvements to eight junctions, a dual carriageway



13.

207

between Thornborough Road and Whitwick Road in Coalville and an extension to
the Bardon Link Road. This main part of the Link Road is being provided as part of
the South East Coalville development. It is extension of this link which requires
planning permission and has been subject to a pre-submission planning
consultation. Appendix A shows a plan of the proposed Bardon Link Road.

Implementation of A511 MRN Corridor scheme will provide the breathing space to
enable a wider transport strategy for Coalville and the surrounding area to address
localised traffic issues, public transport improvements and walking and cycling
connectivity; building on the work done as part of the Local Sustainable Transport
Fund in 2012 and 2013.

Bardon Link Road Extension Consultation

14.

15.

16.

An essential step in the development of the scheme is to identify a preferred route
for the new section of the Bardon Link Road. The preferred route forms the basis for
the planning and Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) processes (minor alterations
may be made as part of the later detailed design process).

As reported to the Cabinet in March 2021, it was recommended that an informal
public consultation exercise should be undertaken in order to support the Cabinet in
deciding whether to support the submission of a planning application.

The informal consultation commenced on 27" September 2021, running until 31
October 2021. The communications strategy for the consultation included a variety
of communication methods; such as letters, social media platforms and posters. In
summary the communication consisted of the following:

o Two weeks before consultation launch, hand delivery of 29 consultation letters
to the properties immediately adjacent to the proposed link road. This included
the opportunity for the property owners to discuss the plans with the Project
Team.

« One week before consultation launch, distribution of 1700 consultation letters
to the wider area.

« Two Public Exhibitions held at Hermitage Park Hotel in Coalville on
29" September 2021, and 1% October 2021.

« Detailed consultation material launched via the Leicestershire County Council
consultation platform at the A511 website, promoted via the consultation
letters, social media and the local press.

« Posters promoting the consultation and exhibitions were placed around the
Coalville area. The locations for the posters were as follows:-

Stephenson College

McDonalds

Aldi

Lidl

Morrison’s

Coalville Post Office (located in ASDA on Ashby Road)
Costa Coffee (Coalville Precinct)

The New Coalville Indoor Market — (Marlborough Square)

0O O O 0 O O O O©O



17.

18.

208

o Coalville Library
North West Leicestershire District Council Offices (Whitwick Road

« Information shared with both LCC Elected Members
and North West Leicestershire District Council Elected Members about the
consultation.

Attendance at both exhibitions totalled 46, with 26 visitors on Wednesday 29th
September and 20 visitors on Friday 1st October. Although the numbers

were relatively low, those that did attend were very engaged and stayed to discuss
the proposals for on average 45 mins — 1 hour.

Outcomes of the consultation will be reported in full to Cabinet but at the time of
writing this report (26 October 2021), feedback via the consultation website is
as follows:-

How many members of the public have looked | 112 total public visitor
at Confers to date? sessions,
(97 as observer, 15
as contributor)

How many have actually commented? 52 open text comments
How many have added ‘thumbs-up? 22

How many have added ‘thumbs-down? 22

How many have suggested ideas? 3

Resource Implications

19.

20.

21.

The current total estimated cost of the A511 Growth Corridor scheme is £48.7m of
which £40.4m is expected to be met from DfT funding. This was an early estimate of
cost and it is highly likely that there will be a further increase due to the significant
rise in supply chain costs.

Of the remaining financial commitment of £8.3m, £1.5m has already been received
for development of the project from DT and Midlands Connect. The remaining
£6.8m is to be funded from the Coalville Contribution Strategy (the means by which
funds are collected from developers via agreements to fund transport infrastructure
in North West Leicestershire, as agreed with North West Leicestershire District
Council). As some of this £6.8m may need to be financed in advance of receipt of
this funding it is proposed that it is forward-funded through the County Council’s
capital programme, £4m having been allocated in the MTFS.

Forward funding involves a risk to the County Council if the developer funding to be
used to recoup the forward funding does not fully materialise via developer
contributions — noting that decisions on developer contributions will be made by
the district council as the local Planning Authority. However, contributions of
approximately £3.7m for physical infrastructure works have been received to date
through the Contribution Strategy and in discussion with North West Leicestershire
District Council it is estimated that a further £6.7m is expected in developer



22.

209

contributions from signed s106 agreements as the planning permissions attached to
the s106 agreements in question are implemented.

Given current inflation levels and potential for further construction inflation and
supply chain issues, a revised cost estimate for the scheme is currently being
prepared. Continuation of the scheme will be kept under review with reference to
key decisions and milestones such as the outcome of the planning process and
assessment of value for money.

Timetable for Decisions and Key Milestones

Planning application submission Early 2022

Planning application Spring/Summer 2022

determined by LCC Planning

Committee

Land acquisition (CPO process) Summer 2022 — Winter
2023

Submission of Full Business Winter 2023/24

Case to DIT

Construction commences Summer 2024

Scheme complete Spring 2026

Conclusions

23.

24.

The A511 Growth Corridor scheme is progressing well and with commencement of
statutory processes required prior to submission of FBC to the Department for
Transport scheduled for Winter 2023. Whilst it is anticipated that the MRN Fund will
enable construction of the A511 Growth Corridor to commence in 2024, the
preparatory work will ensure that the project is ‘shovel ready’ for any other funding
opportunities that arise. The financial risk of delivering the scheme and any cost
escalation will, in part, be mitigated by secured and expected s106 development
contributions and continued working with North West Leicestershire District Council.

In the context of planned growth, the A511 Growth Corridor scheme will have
considerable benefits for North West Leicestershire, especially Coalville, and for
Leicestershire and the wider region. As well as addressing existing traffic delays
and congestion in and around Coalville, the scheme will support housing and
economic growth in the area.

Background Papers

Report to the Cabinet 23 March 2021. ‘A511 Growth Corridor Proposals - Bardon Link
Road’.
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s160568/A511%20MRN%20Proposals

Report to the Cabinet 29 March 2019. ‘Environment and Transport 2019/20 Highways
Capital Programme and Highways Transportation Work Programme’:
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=135&MId=5601&Ver=4



http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s160568/A511%20MRN%20Proposals
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=5601&Ver=4

210

Report to the Cabinet 16 March 2015. ‘Enabling Growth Plan’:
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=135&MId=4360&Ver=4

Report to the Cabinet 5 March 2014. ‘Strategic Economic Plan and City Deal’:
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=135&MId=3988&Ver=4

Report to the County Council 23 March 2011. ‘Final Draft Local Transport Plan
(LTP3) Proposals’:
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=134&MId=3057&Ver=4

Consultation Report
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/road-maintenance/A511MRN

Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure

25. This report has been circulated to members representing the electoral divisions that
are affected by the proposals - Mr D. Harrison CC, Mrs D. Taylor CC, Mr C Smith
CC, Mr K Merrie CC, Mr T. Gillard CC, Mr P. Bedford CC and Mr N. J. Rushton CC.

Equality and Human Rights Implications

26. An Equality and Human Rights Impact AssessmentéEHRlA) Screening has already
been approved by the Cabinet at its meeting on 22" November 2019. It was
produced in order to understand the potential impacts, both negative and positive,
on protected characteristic groups. The full and final report will form part of planning
application.

27. The conclusion of this screening is that there are a number of potential impacts that
could affect groups with protected characteristics across North
West Leicestershire. In particular groups most likely be affected are younger
people, older people, people with disabilities and low income/deprived groups. At
this stage there is insufficient clear evidence as to the level or direction of
these impacts in terms of equalities and therefore it is proposed that the
impact assessment is updated as the detail of the scheme progresses, as well
as undertaking further consultation with relevant groups and organisations.

28. As further evidence emerges through the design and consultation process on the
impact of detailed proposals on those with protected characteristics, mitigation
measures will be suggested to minimise or avoid potential negative impacts. This
will be in addition to recommendations for advancing equality of opportunity for
those with protected characteristics. A monitoring plan will also be developed to
ensure that impacts are monitored throughout the design and development of the
proposed scheme, as well as through construction and operation stages.

Other Relevant Impact Assessments

29. Currently a small section of the A511 around the Broom Leys junction is designated
as an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA). Without intervention to ease the
current and future levels of congestion along the A511 there is a likelihood that air
quality objectives will not be met at other locations, leading to the need to declare


http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=4360&Ver=4
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=3988&Ver=4
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=3057&Ver=4
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/road-maintenance/A511MRN

211

more AQMAs along the route. The scheme offers the opportunity to reduce exhaust
emissions through reducing acceleration/deceleration, thus reducing particulates
due to tyre and brake wear that such events cause. The proposed scheme also
provides an opportunity to contribute to improving biodiversity through thoughtful
landscaping. The table below sets out how the proposed scheme is aligned to the
carbon reduction and biodiversity and habitat commitment set out in the County
Council’s Environment Strategy.

Aim Objective Actions taken
A. Reduce our own IA2. Contribute to the
greenhouse gas reduction of

emissions and those in [greenhouse gas

the wider county where |emissions across the
we have influence County. Reduce exhaust emissions
F. Reduce the F4. Work with through reducing
environmental impacts |partners to reduce  [acceleration/deceleration
of travel and transport [greenhouse gas and |events

other pollutant
emissions from the
local transport
network.

G. Have due regard for (G4. Work with
biodiversity throughout |partners to support
all our activities and wider biodiversity
seek to improve the improvements across
biodiversity value of our |Leicestershire.

own land and influence
improvements in the
wider county

As part of the detailed
design, opportunities to
improve biodiversity within
the green areas of highway
land will be considered.

30. The potential to promote short journeys by promoting sustainable transport
will also contribute to the Council’s commitment to tackling climate change.

Appendices
31. Appendix A — Plan of the proposed Bardon Link Road.

Officers to Contact

Ann Carruthers

Director, Environment and Transport
Tel: (0116) 305 7000

Email: Ann.Carruthers@Ieics.gov.uk

Janna Walker

Acting Assistant Director, Environment and Transport
Tel: (0116) 305 7215

Email: Janna.Walker@Ieics.gov.uk



mailto:Ann.Carruthers@leics.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



213

Leicestershire
County Council

Bardon Link Road

Public Consultation
27 September to 31 October

Introduction and wider context Following feedback from the consultation
process, the junction improvements along the

A511 Corridor have been updated and are
currently progressing through the detail design
stages. Updates on each of the proposed
junction improvements can be found via the
link below.

In September 2019, Leicestershire County
Council held a series of public consultation
events showcasing the latest improvements
proposed for the A511 Major Road Network
corridor. The works included improvements
at nine locations outlined in the figure below.

L Rl e e WAL
Ty, i Mount St E.‘r'r.'ard A - h 1 e

E:}-’i.hhw .;E' - -:h"_ Al

fﬁMnnaHarw Oaks Fm gy W |

-"ﬁ Tn : tl _.—. .H. ‘"-. H:I‘HEE :“

= == “L A Ehﬂrﬁﬁ'ljﬂf! ‘-:'L‘H--.:::._h -.'

) f-:-"-"?LD#ge AN N

Ry TN
."J Hﬂbﬂ"‘-. ,_|||||" l"-..l
;- Whittl

Roundabout
Improvement i By G,Ebmnﬂ /4 W RS (R
- iGores /N on ? Ty TS
| i i *.- y o -

7 | .I., = f L ElLE . —~4 ;-\ ) Pt : P 2 il " oy ' :-. 5 I “ ‘l. . 1y Y
A l|_llm ‘ ‘ - k. ¥ e ) 4 f ' f{ e . ;.T-.-. a ; i .i_lj | 3 -. 1 ' "
1'7'; I'.!:-_—":':'____- Roundabout e 7 B Ii-:il. “ 7 _ Roundabout || . '-; 41-. cho . | _ C ._il":r_i:'-l' : ﬁ_.l

Tl Improvement g | oAl ) Ay ‘“,??f" -
2 \ P .y gy O e, _,'“ Improvement Timberwood "'::".'* y | :-'r"‘ .

L itontyl T - . TR { freg 12 L OHill | W9 \
L ALY TNy SS oY) \; -».ﬂ ‘f 155 { %) [T -

- g
: % SN o % n Lgl_ell,;'_ ] '-- . ‘TJ,E F'EH 1r_.|"i:‘||;'_ '-,-,,
f s "'1.. 2 ; ﬂ'—-rl,{% 2. < 7 = Greenhill 1‘3"-"Jt' | Etld -’I'L e J:;- \@
§ 1216 WOGKeS = —T =P "Fm f ~ j_w ?MI |. . Frr'/,{ ¥, ,_EE .. 3 )
Iy e Hall [

;’Ea W -::rl I:as,.tm o

;n 1 ‘ '-.q:- I " P g § , - “__,:_-' *I:" ] | i ’:l o | ‘ , o 5 ] JUnCtIOI'I : ..-‘- oy Y __@\ ] |
f L, W o b , o - . - = . , - i e [ | { . i a
£ ._L o VL | eeyid et s Jady s eVl 42 ' E Improvement é“"‘ =1 | L7 R § Lhd:lE"f Whlt.Fm E =

'y > ¥ Fm /S A A Fm
Y hn!-:mnmlmdf' A A o T = ey

A reas to be considered L O —
] = _ £ . -i i - .

_ ‘ and Link Road Extension | — | "” ’_ : ,ﬂ | :, Bes: H

I | | o 1 R % S s | T agley % .\

1 - Hoo Ash roundabout % 27 P ENZ 6 A D er? Lo CEINE e QAT L TN AL
‘ | | - ’ ‘ P - . ] - s - - .-‘”'.'I‘ L_.‘--'_' A - u-.'r. ] . . l'-‘\.

iae 2 - Thornborough Road roundabout
th B 3 _ Stephenson Way dualling

o . oh Pl . S '~ Roundabout s 268 V=7
4 - Whitwick Road roundabout - .lﬂ“%“'“”te [JITTRERE 4 /7 | Improvement g ﬁ A\
=

: L® " |
=25\ Eﬁew £ L»:»Hbusmg LTINS
i 7 ¢ Moy AT 0N

ﬁé’{:/efépment Vhite “ “ i /AN

n TF‘ N NStal

' ' : E 133 Ilim:- T u::-‘!l Wiy, A
HEL Grange, | sl e ¢
N T | | Fully signalised Roundabout - 5 LY 2 ™ Ny Ralr
: Bt T s, ‘ | : : et - ] i n N O e
7 - Birch Tree Road roundabout = P AN =rn ¥ — with Turning Restrictions | S o \ d.c;'" _w!?_. o \
.1'- o y Z — 3 E — =- m—— e i a ; s ¥ L i -ﬂ‘.-' . '|:.'l_. o .Ii.: h .:‘ ..'_-",_-' ’
. s - - i "!

Hill Fm i

r"' ’

leer:. II'.'..HI LD i

5 - Broom Leys Road junction

6 - Bardon Road junction

5 , g | 7 # ‘i — il ! i B, =, -, &l =
. I .“‘-\. i v : LN -_.;‘! V-r'i ‘Ji_ ‘: | - 1 - I" ' ' ....". [ p A o 1 I ;-H = ; ."'l_lt.l. 1 ‘ ‘:';:. I.|.|_—"':::: :I' e
3 - Flying Horse roundabout L2 Elistowrlndustrial Est P i A b Y Bl 197, SO r;;.r'-.h..w :
'\"'\._- li i '|:" i- .\_I|FI.|I o - J ‘ T J s i 1.1 L—_i- i = = LIPS 5 |*-\- '“\-: ‘lll- s N *_ ._ r n-.. e :f-. |
) N N = . T vl s s " L W | & @ L A -, |
B =l E u

:étﬁ_:r; 9 - Field Head roundabout

.

47, = WSS |bstock -
134 L\ bstoc | 20 1 463~
‘l“x‘\\ b g i e A} | If |
:}b‘“ - A447 wﬁ A F'nnh I__Hm G ange | .H.f g A W < J "'r' :;ﬁ _‘:ﬂ“ I;oun$_a|bout_W|tr||
= J\H Vs kféxi | " ot *-.r-mcl T ‘\ 'SR - T 7 art Time Signals |
oy M ey T e T

J # 1“ r .'.‘ _.ﬂ s ‘}\ li e ! " . - il|_ ,:'_ ! I"l ‘__-IH_; L 4 A} o ___N‘ i
gl This plan is for identification only and is ‘ﬁ-.r 4 Y AT | e f L WA ot R S f.’-'-.% = W
4 Subject to copyright. Please do not reprduce. ‘-_I = ; !

s , ‘ -l - ‘ I, Tl
.I -‘. r.-"-l—- o i .l'-‘_..\&h '“.Hn'r "_ § ln Ii‘.” e .hl _II 1 % F I S T p. __'I._ il | - f— .l_"- I-lr_ ;F:_.n - i
) ki - E = oo 1 ‘ : . g 5 ] { L] - = il o Pt Filemy ==a i .
' \ Iu&:tﬂ ck L Battram ol MR R | P g0 WA r == ' 1 F AL L s e e | R o
L i § F | | u - . 1 , Fd T =
£ [ 1, TN % i : - if N | Sl b ’ ‘.,: RTEEY T = U T Bnpiwdy W pF VTR A el
L }_.:_',.:1 1 s - N " i -"'\._\_ ¥ + F B | i F L1 A i - " i‘ i P -f.] I_'-? e T o “*.t":f
-, |

i o _— g - L - ¥ l:_\_
r T £ & i Fmay w5 ol o
Ly ‘&- l.'._ : & -.. |‘ l 41 . _--ﬁ-:l 1 G’HTUH |.i .-.7':.:_-.'] . .-'w:l.":; % ‘;::, ;E: ¥ .'I

The ‘Contact Us’ section of the
website can be used to provide us
with any comments you may have for
the wider improvements to the A511.

Don’t miss your chance,

have your say.

This Consultation is designed to seek For further information
your feedback on ‘Location 6’ only. | ..
please VISIt:

Further information on the proposals
at this location Is provided on Www.leicestershire.gov.uk/

b t boards. .
e SR roads-and-travel/road-maintenance/
A511-growth-corridor-scheme




214

Leicestershire
County Council

Bardon Link Road

Public Consultation
27 September to 31 October

The pUFpOSG Of thIS This new section of highway, known as the

Bardon Link Road, Is identified as Location

consultation event: 6 on the site wide plan.

As part of the improvements to the AS11 Due to the scale of works proposed at this
corridor, it Is proposed that a new section location, this element of the project will require
of highway Is constructed to link the planning permission and the project team are
AS11 Bardon Road with the new housing in the process of preparing the relevant material
developments at Grange Road. to submit a planning application in early 2022.

In advance of submitting the
application, we want to make
residents and interested parties
aware of the latest proposals and
seek your feedback on the current
designs so we can consider any
adjustments prior to submission
of the planning application.

You will also have the opportunity
to comment on the full planning
application via the planning portal,
once It has been submitted.

Artist’s impression of the new Link Road looking southwards from the A511.

Please note information on this
scheme will only be made available
on the planning portal once the

Don’t miss your chance,

have your say.

planning application has been
submitted in early 2022.

Comments can be made
via the planning portal:

www.leicestershire.gov.uk/
environment-and-planning /planning



215

Leicestershire
County Council

Bardon Link Road

Public Consultation
27 September to 31 October

Scheme Overview

The alterations to the Bardon Road roundabout
would comprise the following:

AYM NOSNIHd3LS

T Acquisition and demolition
of up to four properties.
The affected residents
have been informed.

Scotlands
Bowling Club

Construction of a fourth
arm of the roundabout’s

southern side.

A box bridge installed

Construction of below the railway.

approximately 450m of
new highway, connecting
the A511 Bardon Road to
the housing developments
at Grange Road.

The speed limit along the
road will be 30 mph.

Road to connect with
developer spine road



216

Leicestershire
County Council

Bardon Link Road

Public Consultation
27 September to 31 October

The benefits of the scheme include:

 Reduced congestion along the A511 * Improved pedestrian crossing points at
and anticipated improvements to air the existing roundabout

quality as a result e Improved sustainable links between

Supporting wider growth in the local area Coalville town centre and the new

Lit footway / cycleways along both sides of housing developments, helping to
the new road providing safe access for all reduce the reliance on the car

A safer route to cross the railway line via * Improved connectivity to Coalville,
the new underpass M1 and A42

How will the scheme
be paid for? S—
The total cost of the A511 Growth 9
Corridor scheme is currently S S T Ssaaaaa .
projected to be £49m, of which e | SN e
£42m is expected to be met from gy NN T S N
the Department for Transport’s (DfT)
Major Road Network (MRN) Fund.
The remaining £/m represents the

local contribution requirement, e.g.
found from developer contributions.

Artist’s impression of the new Link Road looking north towards the A511 and Coalville.

J... I. [
'-'.'l'd
PR, |

-

Leicestershire County Council are
continuing to work through the DfT’s
funding process and on the basis
the scheme continues to represent

good value for money and secures
the necessary funding from the

DT, and subject to the necessary
Cabinet approvals, we will look to
commence construction in 2024.

Don’t miss your chance,
have your say.

For further information
please visit:

www.leicestershire.gov.uk/
have-your-say/current-engagement



217

Leicestershire
County Council

Bardon Link Road
Public Consultation

27 September to 31 October

Environmental Impact:

The Planning Application to be submitted In
early 2022 will include considerations of the
environmental impacts of the scheme.

This will examine the impacts of the scheme
on a range of matters including heritage,
biodiversity, archaeology, noise and air quality.

Key considerations include:

Noise:

The scheme could have noise impacts during
operation and construction stages. These will be
assessed In detall with appropriate mitigation provided
It needed. The level of mitigation proposed will vary
depending on the change in noise levels.

Ecology:

The Site has potential to support a range of protected and
/or notable species. Surveys are currently being conducted
to evaluate the ecological condition of the habitats present
within the Site. Impacts will be addressed through the
avoidance and protection of habitats using best working
practice and, where appropriate, any loss will be
addressed through the careful design of compensatory
habitat as part of the development.

Air Quality:
The planning application will consider the scheme’s
Impact on air quality and how this could impact

nearby sensitive receptors, including residential
properties.

Drainage:

Initial studies have shown that surtace water
currently collects / pools to the north of the railway
embankment. A more formalised pond will be created
to the south of the railway embankment as part of the
overall drainage strategy for the new road.

Iransport Assesment:

The scheme has the potential to re-distribute some
local traffic. A transport assessment will be produced
to ensure any traffic re-assignment does not have an
adverse impact on the local highway network.

Don’t miss your chance,
have your say.

For further information
please visit:

www.leicestershire.gov.uk/
have-your-say/current-engagement



218

Leicestershire
County Council

Bardon Link Road

Public Consultation
27 September to 31 October

What Happens Next?

Once the consultation has closed on 31st October 2021, Leicestershire County Council will review
all the suggestions and comments received during the consultation and consider any necessary

alterations to design.

A consultation report will be produced which will summarise the responses received. This will
form part of the planning application.

Consultation Events Closes
31st October 2021

Submission of Planning Application
Early 2022

Land Acquisition
(Allowing for public inquiry)
Autumn 2023

Start of Construction
Summer 2024

Scheme Open
Spring /Summer 2026

We want to know what you think

of these proposals. This Is your
opportunity to express your thoughts,
any concerns you have and share
any local or specialist knowledge that

may help to improve the scheme. For fU rther information
Thinking about the proposals at the p|€88€ VISit:

Bardon Roundabout only, we would

be grateful It you could answer a WWW.Ieicestershire.gOV.uk/
short questionnaire sharing your

thoughts on the latest designs. have-your-say/cu rrent-engagement

Don’t miss your chance,

have your say.




219 Agenda Iltem 11
H Leicestershire
County Council

HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
4 NOVEMBER 2021

HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2020/21

JOINT REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTOR OF
ENVIRONMENT AND TRANSPORT

Purpose of the Report

1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Highways & Transport Overview and
Scrutiny Committee with an annual performance update on the key performance
indicators that the Council is responsible for delivering against the Council’s Strategic
Plan. Most performance indicators included in this report are reported by the
Highways & Transport sections of the Environment & Transport Department.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions

2. The updates in this report reflect progress against the Council’s Strategic Outcomes
Framework within the Strategic Plan to 2022, and the Highways & Transport (H&T)
performance framework and related high-level plans and strategies.

Background

3.  Following the decision to separate the Environment and Transport scrutiny
committee by the full Council in July 2021 this is the first annual report to the new
committee covering solely H&T performance. This report highlights how the Strategic
Plan indicators are performing against the Council’s key outcomes Strong Economy,
Keeping People Safe and Great Communities, and highlights for the year.

4.  This report includes Appendix A, containing a performance dashboard covering
performance indicator progress within the Council’s Annual Report 2020/21
Performance Compendium. The performance dashboards include a few indicators
where the Council does not have direct or a lot of control of delivery, such as
satisfaction with local bus services and perception of traffic levels & congestion. They
have been included to provide greater oversight of the wider H&T outcomes in
Leicestershire and help to understand what life is like in the County and include a
mixture of national and locally developed performance indicators. Measuring these
may highlight areas for scrutiny of delivery by other agencies or the need for lobbying
to influence government policy and funding. It is expected that action by a range of
agencies will improve a number of these metrics over time.

5. The Council’s performance is benchmarked against 33 authorities which cover large,
principally non-urban, geographical areas. Where it is available, the dashboards
indicate which quartile Leicestershire’s performance falls into. The 1st quartile is



220

defined as performance that falls within the top 25% of county areas (the best). The
4th quartile is defined as performance that falls within the bottom 25% of county
areas (the worst). The comparison quartiles are updated annually in November.

Improvement or deterioration in performance is indicated by the direction of travel
arrows on the performance dashboard. For example, if the number of road casualties
has fallen, the direction of travel will show an arrow pointing upwards representing an
improvement in performance.

Appendix B contains a draft of the Transport & Highways highlights. Once finalised it
will be included in the Council’s Annual Delivery Report due in November 2021.

Performance Update — Annual Report 2020/21

8.

10.

The Annual Report dashboard shows H&T performance up to March 2021. Overall,
there are 12 performance indicators included in this report which are aligned with the
Council’s Strategic Plan Outcomes. The dashboards in Appendix A show: the
indicator description, the quartile position, the direction of travel of performance, end
of year data, target/standard; the previous end of year data; polarity (whether a high
or low number is good performance) and commentary.

Improvement or deterioration in performance is indicated by the direction of travel
arrows on the dashboard. Where a direction of travel is available, 5 show
improvements, 3 had declined and 3 remained the same as the previous update.

The Council performs extremely well compared to other English county councils with
8 performance indicators falling within the top quartile. These include: the ‘Overall
satisfaction with traffic levels and congestion (NHT satisfaction survey)’, ‘Percentage
of principal (A class) road network where structural maintenance should be
considered)’, and ‘Percentage of non-principal (B&C class) road network where
structural maintenance should be considered’, ‘Overall satisfaction with the condition
of highways (NHT)’, ‘Overall satisfaction with the Rights of Way network (NHT), ‘Total
casualties on Leicestershire roads’ and ‘People killed or seriously injured in road
traffic accidents’ and ‘Road safety satisfaction’. None of the Council’s Strategic Plan
performance indicators for H&T fall within the bottom quartile and the majority are
above average when compared to other English county councils.

Highways and Transport

Strategic Transport Infrastructure (Strong Economy Outcome)

11.

The ‘Average vehicle speeds during the morning peak (7am-10am) on locally
managed ‘A’ roads in Leicestershire’ indicator showed an increase in average speed
from 31.1mph in 2019 to 32.5 mph in 2020. This increase is almost certainly as a
result of reduced traffic levels due to the Covid-19 pandemic. This indicator is below
average when compared to other English county councils (3rd quartile in 2019).
Average vehicle speeds are used as a proxy measure for peak time congestion.
Tackling congestion continues to be a priority, with several road schemes
progressing to help alleviate it as well as work to support walking, cycling and public
transport use.



12.

13.

221

Satisfaction with traffic levels and congestion is derived from the National Highways
and Transport Network (NHT) satisfaction survey. The NHT Public Satisfaction
Survey collects public perspectives on, and satisfaction with, H&T Services in local
authority areas. Satisfaction with traffic levels has improved in performance from 32%
in 2019 to 40% in 2020. There were significantly fewer vehicles on our roads during
the Covid-19 pandemic lockdowns during 2020 which is likely to have influenced
people's perceptions. It performs in the top quartile when compared to other English
county councils in 2020.

Businesses’ perceptions of congestion in the County are gathered in the Leicester
and Leicestershire Enterprise Partnership (LLEP) business survey every 2-3 years.
The LLEP changed the survey during 2020 due to the impact of the pandemic and
ran 3 smaller surveys across the year. These covered a period before there were
Covid-19 restrictions in place, a time period during the Covid 19 restrictions and a
post-national restrictions survey. The percentage of businesses saying that a
reduction in traffic congestion would significantly benefit their business increased
from 28% in 2017 to 53% in 2020. This result was drawn from the first two surveys
up to the end of March 2020. The LLEP report that the 2020 survey cannot be
compared directly to previous surveys due to the special circumstances around the
Coronavirus pandemic and the extent to which businesses were affected by this from
mid-March onwards.

Sustainable Transport & Road Maintenance (Strong Economy Outcome)

14.

15.

16.

Leicestershire has an excellent record on road condition and continues to have some
of the best maintained roads in the country. The Council was amongst the highest
rated county councils for satisfaction with condition of highways in the NHT Public
Satisfaction Survey in 2020, in the top quartile. The ‘percentage of the principal A
class roads within the road network where structural maintenance should be
considered’ remained relatively static at 2% during 2020/21 and has met its 2-4%
target range. However, the ‘percentage of the non-principal B & C class roads where
structural maintenance should be considered’ declined in performance from 3% in
2019/20 to 4% in 2020/21. Despite this slight increase it has met its 4-6% target
range. Both ‘A class’ and ‘B and C class roads’ perform in the top quartile compared
to other English county councils. Relatively low funding levels available for road
maintenance combined with the increasing proportions of the network requiring
treatment is likely to result in greater challenges in maintaining these roads in future.

The latest update for ‘Overall satisfaction with the condition of highways,’ derived
from the NHT Survey 2020 remained steady at 37% for 2020. Despite appearing to
be a low figure, low satisfaction levels are typical across the country. This result was
the highest satisfaction rating when compared to other English counties and remains
in the top quartile for 2020.

There was a notable improvement in performance for the ‘Overall satisfaction with
the rights of way network (NHT survey) indicator as it increased by approximately 8
percentage points from 46% (2019) to 54% (2020) resulting in improved performance
and meeting its target (53%). It remains in the top quartile when compared to other
English counties. During the Covid-19 crisis in 2020, more people walked generally
and were likely to have more fully utilised the rights of way network in their area,
which could have positively contributed to this result.



17.

18.

222

Carbon emissions from transport within LA influence remained similar in performance
to the previous year as emissions fell only slightly from 1,184 kilotons in 2018 to
1,179 kilotons in 2019. It continues to perform above average when compared to
other English county councils (2™ quartile). This data is sourced from the published
subset from the Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy.

Results from the 2020 NHT survey show that satisfaction with local bus services has
declined again slightly from 58% in 2019 to 57% in 2020. Satisfaction with bus
services has been declining since 2016. When compared to other English county
councils this was above average performance (2" quartile).

Road Safety (Keeping People Safe Outcome)

19.

20.

21.

There was a 12% decline in ‘Total casualties on our roads’ from 996 in 2019 to 878 in
2020, demonstrating an improvement in performance and meeting its target. It
remains in the top quartile compared to other English county councils for 2020. The
data should be treated with a degree of caution due to possible underreporting of
accidents following changes to police reporting procedures in 2017 (reported to the
E&T scrutiny committee in the ‘Road casualty reduction in Leicestershire’ report in
March 2020). The Police are trialling new methods to ensure they more accurately
report on road accidents in the future.

The number of people killed or seriously injured (KSIs) on our roads declined in
performance due to a 19% increase in the number of KSls from 175 in 2019 to 208 in
2020. Unfortunately, this remains above the target of fewer than 168 casualties.
During the pandemic lockdowns, there were fewer vehicles on the roads, however,
there was an increase in the severity of road accidents. This is still below the average
of 218 KSiIs over the past 10 years of results. The Council continues to remain in the
top quartile compared to other English county councils. Similar to the road casualty
results, this data should be treated with caution.

The road safety satisfaction indicator improved in performance from 54% in 2019 to
59% in 2020 and remains in the top quartile when compared to other English county
councils. The Council is the highest performing council on this measure. This reflects
the efforts of the Council in ensuring all road schemes promote good road safety
standards.

Background papers

Leicestershire County Council’s Strateqgic Outcomes Framework and Plans 2018-22

NHT Survey Results (National Highways and Transport Network) 2020, Available on
request.

Leicester and Leicestershire Business Survey 2020, Available on request.


https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-plans/the-strategic-plan
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-plans/the-strategic-plan

223

Circulation under Local Issues Alert Procedure

None.

Equalities and Human Rights Implications

There are no specific equality and human rights implications to note as part of this
performance report.

List of Appendices

Appendix A — Highways & Transport Annual Report Performance Dashboard, 2020/21
Appendix B — Highways & Transport Annual Report highlights.

Officers to Contact

Ann Carruthers, Director, Environment and Transport Department
(0116) 305 7000
Ann.Carruthers@leics.gov.uk

Nicola Truslove, Business Partner, Business Intelligence Service
(0116) 305 8302
Nicola.Truslove @leics.gov.uk

Richard Wilding, Team leader, Business Intelligence Service
(0116) 305 7308
Richard.wilding@leics.gov.uk



mailto:Ann.Carruthers@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Nicola.Truslove@leics.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

Transport & Highways

Strategic o Quartile  Directionof EndofYr  Target/  EndofYr )
Plan  Description position Travel ~ 2020/21 Standard  2019/20  Polarity Commentary
Strategic Transport Infrastructure
The annual ‘average vehicle speeds during the morning peak (7am-
. Average vehicle speed - weekday morning peak on locally 325 311 . 10am) on locally managed ‘A’ -roads' indicator, ShO\{VG_‘d an incr_ease in
managed 'A' roads (mph) 3rd (2019) ™ (2020) 30.3 (2019) High -average s-peed from 31..1mph in 2019 to 32.5 mphin 2-020. This
increase is almost certainly as a result of reduced traffic levels due to
the Covid-19 pandemic.
Satisfaction with traffic levels has improved in performance from
32% (2019) to 40% (2020). There were significantly less vehicles on
) . ) . . our roads during the Covid-19 pandemic lockdowns which are likely
o i\ifsrleléz:ssfz:i:; \(’:/Lt)h SRR ELe (s v | 1st (2020) ™ 40.1% 42% 31.9% High to have influenced people's perceptions. Leicestershire showed the
largest increase in satisfaction of all participating authorities. It
performs in the top quartile when compared to other English County
Councils.
This indicator increased from 28% in 2017 to 53% in 2020. The LLEP
changed the way they surveyed during 2020 due to the impact of thd]
pandemic and ran 3 smaller surveys across the year that covered pre
" % of businesses saying that a reduction in traffic congestion i ) 53% (2020) <37% 28% (2017) Low Covid 19 restrictions, during Covid-19 restrictions and post national
would significantly benefit their business restrictions and this result was drawn from the first two surveys,
prior to the main impact of national Covid restrictions. Due to the
special circumstanes and how it impacted businesses the LLEP have
said the latest reults are not directly comparable to the 2017 results.
Sustainable Transport & Road Maintenance
Leicestershire continues to have some of the best maintained roads
o % o.f principal (A class) road r?etwork where structural e (2020) > 2% 2-4% 2% Low in the countr\(. The ‘percentage of cIass.ified rcl)ads (Af class) where .
maintenance should be considered structural maintenance should be considered’ remained at 2% during
2020/21 and has met its 4% target.
Although this indicator has declined in performance slightly from 3%
" % of non—prin_cipal (B & Cclass) road ne.twork where v D1st (2020) N 4% 4-6% 3% Low in 2019/20 tlo 4% 2(1)20/2‘1 condition remains' within its- 4-6% target
structural maintenance should be considered range. Both ‘A class’ and ‘B and C class roads’ perform in the top
guartile compared to other English county councils.
Notes: Comparators are the 33 county councils & county unitaries.
™ Improvement in performance (5 indicators) _Top quartile (8 indicators) [ ] Performance issue / problem
N Decline in performance (3 indicators) 2nd quartile (2 indicators) v Exceptional performance
> Similar performance (3 indicator) 3rd quartile (1 indicator)

_Bottom quartile


EWalters_3
Text Box
APPENDIX A


Transport & Highways
Strategic

Description
Plan P

Quartile
position

Direction of
Travel

End of Yr
2020/21

Target /
Standard

End of Yr
2019/20

Polarity

Commentary

Overall satisfaction with the condition of highways (NHT
satisfaction survey) (%)

Overall satisfaction with the Rights of Way network (NHT
satisfaction survey) (%)

Carbon emissions (estimates) from transport within LA
influence (Kt)

Overall satisfaction with local bus services (NHT satisfaction
survey) (%)

Road Safety (Keeping People Safe)

b Total casualties on Leicestershire roads

* Number of people killed or seriously injured (KSls)

o Road safety satisfaction (NHT satisfaction survey) (%)

1st (2020)

1st (2020)

2nd (2019)

2nd (2020)

1st (2020)

1st (2020)

1st (2020)

9

37.4%

53.6%

1179.4
(2019)

56.7%

878

208

59%

38%

53%

56.0%

1495

168

67%

36.6%

46.2%

1183.8
(2018)

58.0%

996

175

53.5%

High

High

Low

High

low

low

High

This indicator remained similar to the previous year and continues to
perform well compared to other county councils as it remains in the
top quartile and it the highest performing County Council.

A notable improvement in performance is for the ‘Overall
satisfaction with the Rights of Way network (NHT survey)’ as
satisfaction increased by 7% from 46% (2019/20) to 54% (2020/21)
meeting its target (53%). It remains in the top quartile when
compared to other English Counties. During the Covid-19 crisis in
2020 more people walked generally and were likely to have more
fully utilised the Rights of Way network in their area, which could
have positively contributed to this result.

This indicator improved in performance since the previous year and
continues to perform above average when compared to other county
councils. This data is taken from the published subset and represents
carbon dioxide emissions within the scope of influence of Local
Authorities. Data is for 2018 and 2019 (latest available).

Results from the 2020 NHT survey show that satisfaction with local

bus services is similar to the previous years and the Council has N
exceeded its target of 56%. It performs above average against [«

comparable English Counties during 2020 (2nd quartile).

There was a further decline in road casualties from 996 in 2019 to
878 in 2020, showing a 12% improvement in performance and
meeting the target. It remains in the top quartile compared to other
English county councils. This data should be treated with caution due
to changes in reporting by Police.

There was a 19% increase in the number of KSIs from 175 in 2019 to
208 in 2020, unfortunately missing the target. During the pandemic,
there were fewer vehicles on the roads, however, there was an
increase in the severity of road accidents. The Council remains in the
top quartile compared to other English county councils. This data
should be treated with caution due to changes in reporting by Police.

This indicator improved in performance from 54% in 2019 to 59% in
2020 and remains in the top quartile when compared to other
English county councils. The council is the highest performing county
council on this.

STT




227

Appendix B — Highways & Transport Annual Report highlights
Economy — Transport

People and businesses need infrastructure that provides excellent connectivity that
meets their every-day needs. Transport infrastructure is a key enabler, providing
access to opportunity and opening up sites for growth. We aim to ensure good
connectivity within the county, the region and across the UK by working closely with
partners, such as Midlands Connect, National Highways and Network Rail, to deliver
improvements to rail services and the strategic road network. We also continue to
progress delivery of our local transport priorities to help business recovery and
growth, reduce congestion and emissions, allow safe travel and support more
sustainable travel options.

Midlands Connect — we have provided input into the refresh of the Midlands
Connect Strategy to ensure that it continues to provide a robust basis for securing
investment in the region’s transport system. We are currently involved in a number of
Midlands Connect projects that will greatly enhance people’s ability to travel
efficiently and safely around and through Leicestershire in the context of much
needed houses and jobs to meet the demands of the area’s growing population.
These projects include provision of direct Coventry to Leicester rail services;
improvements to the speed and frequency of rail services between Leicester and
Birmingham; and upgrades to the A5, A42, A46 and A50 corridors.

Transport for East Midlands (TfEM) — through our involvement in TfEM we have
set out our top priorities for transport improvements across the East Midlands
including making the most of any HS2 development, securing a Midland Mainline fit
for the 21st century, improving access to East Midlands Airport, the A5 Improvement
Corridor and transforming East-West connectivity.

Leicester and Leicestershire Strategic Transport Priorities (LLSTP) — jointly
developed with Leicester City Council the objective of the LLSTP is to ensure that
Leicester and Leicestershire’s transport system is capable of addressing the
significant challenges that we face over the coming years. In November 2020 we
approved a blueprint setting out the key, long-term approach to transport priorities for
the county and city for the next 30 years. The LLSTP sets out where the city and
county will work together, particularly around tackling poor air quality and the effects
of climate change, alongside continued support for the local economy and jobs and
the delivery of new houses. Improvements in rail (such as the Midlands Connect
projects) and public transport and better provision for walking and cycling schemes
are among the priorities set out. The LLSTP acknowledges a drive to attract greater
numbers of car users on to public transport and on to cycling and walking routes.
The ambition is to continue to encourage use of the commercial bus network of
electric vehicles and to increase the number of bus lanes and cycleways/pedestrian
routes developed.

Network Management Plan (NMP) - in December 2020 we approved a refreshed
NMP. The NMP describes the positive on-going work the County Council
undertakes, as the local highway authority, to keep all forms of transport moving



228

safely and efficiently on the county’s road network. This includes how we collect and
use data and intelligence, how we manage planned and unplanned events, how we
manage the impact of growth and how we manage network demand and encourage
sustainable travel.

Leicester and Leicestershire Rail Strategy — developed with the City Council and
LLEP it sets out rail priorities up to 2043. We have used it as a basis for working with
Midlands Connect on its projects and to inform our input into the HS2 project and the
wider considerations of the National Infrastructure Commission who have been
asked by Government to consider an integrated package of rail improvements that
would be associated with delivery of the HS2 Eastern leg. Potentially this package
could include completion of the Midland Main Line electrification, which we are
continuing to push for both the service improvements that it would deliver and also
the carbon reduction benefits.

Ivanhoe Line - we are providing our support, including financial, to the Campaign for
Reopening the Ivanhoe Line (CRIL) who are currently working with the Department
for Transport to develop a business case to reintroduce passenger services on the
line.

Major Road Schemes Supporting Growth

The Council has a strong record of securing funding to deliver transport
infrastructure to enable growth, supporting the delivery of outcomes to promote a
strong economy and ensure a supply of quality and affordable homes. We will
continue to work to secure vital funds to invest in homes, regeneration and
infrastructure across Leicestershire. A total of £21.7m has been spent on the
preparation and delivery of major projects in 2020/21, including:

Interim Coalville Transport Strategy (ICTS) - in September 2021 we approved the
ICTS. A key element of the ICTS is the Coalville A511 Growth Corridor scheme and
the importance of its delivery to the enabling of growth in the A511 corridor. It also
highlights complementary highway schemes and sets out how work will be taken
forward to develop proposals for improving passenger transport provision and active
travel provision in the area.

Coalville A511 Growth Corridor and A511 Major Road Network Scheme - in
March 2021 major plans to develop junction and road improvement schemes through
an estimated £49m programme of work between Ashby and Coalville were
considered. The Council’'s A511 Growth Corridor is one of seven schemes across
the region put forward to a national £3.5 billion Major Roads Network (MRN) fund by
Midlands Connect. The scheme proposes improvements to eight junctions along the
A511, including a new link road off Bardon Road and a dual carriageway between
Thornborough Road and Whitwick Road. Leicestershire is growing and needs the
right infrastructure in place to manage that growth. The A511 has suffered from
congestion for many years and tackling it with this scheme will also have benefits
environmentally in leading to a reduction in exhaust emissions. It will also provide the
opportunity, as part of a wider transport strategy for Coalville, to address public



229

transport improvements and promote walking and cycling initiatives. Prior to
submitting a Planning Application for the new link road off Bardon Road, further
informal consultation will take place in Autumn 2021 to give local residents and
stakeholders a further opportunity to provide comment and shape this element of the
project.

Interim Melton Mowbray Transport Strategy (IMMTS) - in July 2021 we approved
the IMMTS, which sets out a wide package of measures and further work required to
help address the town’s existing traffic problems, support the growth of the town and
to achieve wider objectives, including environmental and health factors, such as
encouraging more walking and cycling. Among the proposals outlined in the strategy
are further work to explore potential improvements to the walking and cycling
network and the possibility of a ‘bus hub’ to support passenger transport provision;
along with measures to re-classify and re-sign town roads as well as re-route lorries
to encourage as much traffic as possible to use the Melton Mowbray Distributor
Road.

Melton Mowbray North and East Distributor Road — the project to build the
distributor road to the north and east of Melton Mowbray to ease congestion in the
town centre and facilitate growth commenced in 2017/18. Further development of the
project post approval of the planning application in May 2019 has focussed on
detailed design and securing the necessary land to deliver the scheme through the
Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) process. The CPO and Side Roads Order
(SRO) notices were submitted to the Secretary of State for confirmation in October
2020. A number of objections to the CPO and SRO were received and the Secretary
of State gave notice in January 2021 of the intention to call a Public Inquiry to
consider the objections. The Public Inquiry took place at the end of September 2021.
Subject to the outcome of the Public Inquiry, it is anticipated on site advance works
will start in 2022.

Melton Mowbray Distributor Road South — positive progress is being made with
Homes England to secure funding via the Housing Infrastructure Fund towards the
cost of this project. Project activities also include starting to engage in house
design/technical services along with procuring external project planning and
environmental services.

Hinckley Junctions - a scheme to improve two key junctions on Rugby Road,
alongside a range of improvements to existing cycling and pedestrian routes in
Hinckley, will begin in early 2022. Work on the £56m scheme was due to start
summer 2020, however, was rescheduled due to the Covid-19 pandemic. Once work
commences, there will be improvements made to both the Rugby Road/Hawley
Road and Rugby Road/Brookside junctions. The scheme will also implement
pedestrian and cycling improvements at Granville Road, Spa Lane, London Road
and Coventry Road and also proposes introducing a ‘residents parking zone’ and
reviewing town centre parking facilities. Once delivered, the scheme will improve
sustainable transport options in and out of the town with quicker and more reliable
journeys and encourage more people to walk and cycle.



230

Hinckley Road Improvements - in June 2021 a project to improve road and
footway condition in the Hinckley area began with work on the A47 Dodwell’s
Road/Normandy Way, Hinckley Bypass. Work between the A5 roundabout near
McDonalds and the roundabout connecting with Roston Drive began in September
2021 and will last for around three months.

Ashby Road, Coalville - in January 2021 work began on a series of improvements
to Ashby Road in Coalville with a £250,000 scheme aimed at improving the highway
environment in the area. The works involved removing outdated traffic-calming
features, such as chicanes, providing more on-street parking and making the area
safer for pedestrians. The project also provides safer access to the main entrance to
the revamped Snibston Country Park and a petrol station as well as complementing
the recent regeneration of the former Snibston Colliery site.

M1 J23/A512—- the detailed design and construction of improvements to ease
congestion and provide access to the West of Loughborough housing development
commenced in 2017/18. Work on this major scheme has continued throughout the
pandemic and was completed in June 2021. In February 2021 the Council and
Morgan Sindall were highly commended for outstanding teamwork on the highways
improvement scheme on the M1 J23 and A512. Judges agreed that the partnership
work excelled in many areas, especially community engagement, which led to many
local people welcoming the project and understanding its value.

A46 Anstey Lane — the detailed design and construction of improvements to ease
congestion and mitigate the Aston Green housing development commenced in
2017/18 with the works being completed in 2020/21. The scheme has won a number
of awards including Construction News award for Health, Safety and Wellbeing
Excellence as well as Considerate Constructor Site award.

Lutterworth East - ongoing work has continued on the design of highway
infrastructure to provide access to the proposed new housing development in
Lutterworth.

Traffic Management and Safety

Average Speed Cameras — in October 2020 we agreed to introduce a further 7
average speed camera sites across the county. The proposals will see the average
speed cameras move locations yearly to change driver behaviour across our towns
and villages. This follows a successful scheme which saw cameras installed at
seven locations, Sharnford, Walcote, Oadby, Groby, Measham, Woodhouse Eaves
and Freeby. Sites where communities have previously raised concerns about
speeding. The scheme highlights our commitment to make our roads as safe as they
can be. The cameras have proven that they can make a difference in communities,
whose lives can be blighted by the effects of speeding motorists as well as make a
positive change to driver behaviour. We also continue to press the Government to
consider a new approach to funding the camera sites. At present, funds generated
through camera fines are retained by HM Treasury.



231

Reducing Rural Speeds — in March 2019 we announced that we were expanding
our speed reduction scheme to include a further 24 rural routes. The project sees
stretches of roads with a speed limit of 60mph reduced to 50mph. The move follows
a study in 2017 which found that around 60% of collisions which caused injury on
rural routes involved motorists exceeding the 60mph limit and the routes chosen all
had well evidenced collision reduction reasons to reduce the speed limit. The speed
limit reductions also incorporate reviews of the existing road markings and signs to
ensure that they provide adequate warnings of the road conditions.

Driver Education - in 2020 our popular pre-driver days designed to promote safety
to novice drivers and our older driver scheme, Safer Driving with Age (SAGE), had to
be paused. Both schemes have practical driving elements and as such it was
impossible to run these courses safely during the pandemic. SAGE opened again for
bookings in the autumn of 2021 and it is envisaged that a programme of pre-driver
course dates will be developed for 2022. Driver education remains an increasingly
important part of speed management and driver behaviour change. We were able to
continue to run national driver education workshops on behalf of Leicestershire
Police by switching from classroom presentations to presenting virtually via video
call. In 2020/21, 18,200 drivers opted to attend courses as an alternative to receiving
a fine and points on their driving licence. The courses help drivers understand the
adverse consequences of their driving behaviour and give tips and advice to improve
compliance and safety.

School Keep Clear Scheme — in September 2019 schools across Leicestershire
were encouraged to sign-up to a scheme to combat the problems of inconsiderate
parking. The School Keep Clear scheme aims to address concerns that parents,
residents, and teachers have about parking during the school run by using a camera
car to enforce mandatory zig-zag zones outside school entrances. A total of 68
schools became enforceable in September 2019, in time for the new school term.
Since it launched in September 2018, the scheme has seen 146 schools sign up,
with a further 11 schools set to join the scheme later this year, subject to
consultations. We know that inconsiderate and dangerous parking outside schools
can be a real problem, and the School Keep Clear scheme has gone some way to
alleviate concerns in communities. Since the beginning of the scheme, 22 warnings
have been issued and 241 penalties have been processed to motorists parking
illegally.

Parking Enforcement - with traffic levels rising, our parking enforcement teams
have been increasing patrols to keep vehicles moving and keep the roads safe.

Motorcyclist Safety - we remain supporters of The Shiny Side Up Partnership
(SSUP), an East Midlands motorcycle safety partnership. Originally set up to try and
drive down casualties relating to sports-bike riders, this has now broadened to
include lower capacity scooters and motorcycles. We use a variety of roadside
posters at sites that have a poor motorcycle casualty history. These messages
include Bike Crash Site Ahead and Think Bike. The roadside posters are bright
yellow and have become a regular seasonal way of reminding riders and other road



232

users to take extra care and look out for each other. The regional website has been
refreshed and updated with new training resources.

Community Speed Watch (CSW) — due to the pandemic, we were unable to run
community speed watch with volunteers in 2020 and 2021. We adapted the delivery
approach and ran a successful free volunteer scheme, where educational roadside
boards were placed at various key sites of community concern to remind drivers to
check their speed. The boards remained in situ for 8 weeks and have been located
in various communities across the county. Planning ahead for 2022 we are inviting
expressions of interest in running a fully supported volunteer run CSW scheme. The
aim is to support communities to use speed detection equipment under our
supervision. Volunteers will capture speeding vehicle details and, rather than
prosecution, drivers will receive an educational letter from the police helping to
underline the community’s commitment to reducing speed.

Sustainable Travel

Transforming Cities Fund and Air Quality — in October 2019 we supported
proposals by Leicester City Council for a bid to the Transforming Cities Fund in
response to the Government’s Air Quality Directive. The City Council has been
awarded over £32m, which will enable initiatives in Leicester to improve public
transport, cycling and walking provision to improve overall air quality. This will benefit
both city and county residents.

Personal Travel Planning (PTP) — in June 2021 we announced that personal travel
plans were being launched in the Glenfield, Anstey and Westcotes areas. Around
5,000 households in Glenfield and Anstey, and 5,000 households in the Westcotes
area of the city will be targeted to encourage residents to reduce their car journeys
and use more sustainable forms of transport, including walking, cycling and taking
the bus. Information includes advice on walking, cycling and public transport, maps
and guides, information on electric bikes and cars, along with several incentives.
These include activity trackers for up to 50 residents, 20 e-bikes and 10 pedal cycles
available for loan, along with cycling equipment. Reducing the number of car
journeys and travelling more sustainably has huge benefits to physical and mental
health, as well as helping the environment. 17% of participants from previous PTP
projects have sustained behaviour change, for example switching from car use to
cycling and walking.

Bus Service Partnership - in June 2021 we announced plans to create an
enhanced partnership with local bus operators as the pathway to improving public
transport in the county. The plans to work more closely with bus operators to develop
a Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) will help to unlock significant Government
funding through the National Bus Strategy. We aim to work closely and swiftly with
local bus operators to deliver benefits such as simpler fares, contactless payments,
more services at the right times and ticketing so people can easily inter-change
across public transport. The BSIP will also be a vital strand of our Environment
Strategy, to help reduce the environmental impacts of travel and transport. There’'s



233

also a need to reverse the recent shift in journeys away from public transport as a
result of the pandemic and encourage passengers back on to public transport.

Electric Buses — in June 2021 a new £5m fleet of near silent electric buses powered
entirely by renewable energy hit the streets of Leicester and Leicestershire. Eleven
of the new vehicles transport shoppers and commuters between the three park and
ride sites at Enderby, Birstall and Meynell’s Gorse and the city centre. The distinctive
green buses are equipped with on-board digital screens and USB charging points at
every seat and provide passengers with free Wi-Fi. People waiting for the bus will
benefit from real-time arrival information and smart new bus shelters. The project
has involved the County and City councils working closely together and is part of a
wider agenda around decarbonising transport and investing in electrified buses to
help reduce our carbon footprint and contribute to our aim to be carbon neutral by
2045.

On Demand Travel - a new demand led bus service was launched in April 2019 in
New Lubbesthorpe, funded by Section 106 monies. The Arriva Click service
operates every day (except key bank holidays) from 06:00 to 23:00 using high
specification Mercedes Sprinter minibuses. Passengers book journeys using an
app showing their preferred pickup point and destination and are matched with
others. We have also been successful in securing £1.3m of the Government’s Rural
Mobility Fund to introduce a new 3-year pilot of a modern demand responsive
transport (DRT) service which is anticipated to start early in 2022. The service will
operate within an 85km? area to the south west of Leicester and to the east of
Hinckley, covering 17 communities and providing a total resident population of
43,000 with the opportunity to be able to book a journey on a shared accessible
minibus, via an app or phone call. The new DRT will seek to fill the gaps in the
existing network and aims to improve access to employment, education, healthcare
and other services. This pilot provides an excellent opportunity to trial a modern rural
DRT service, as part of work to explore the evolution of our approach to supporting
passenger transport services, helping to meet the needs of local communities.

E-Bike Scheme - electric bikes for loan to workplaces across the county is another
initiative by the council to encourage active and sustainable travel to and from work.
The loan scheme proved to be a hit at fashion giants Next, with 10 bikes used by
staff at their Enderby base. The bikes were available for staff to use to commute to
work as well as for travelling to meetings or events during the working day and for
leisure purposes. This resulted in 20% of participants going on to purchase their own
e-bike. The council is encouraging businesses to take the opportunity to borrow the
electric bikes free of charge. In 2021 we also offered residents incentives on electric
bikes. A series of try-out events were held over the summer explaining the benefits
of e-bikes. The Council also provided the opportunity for people to attend a training
session and then apply for a voucher which gave them £300 off the cost of an
electric bike. Electric bikes are great for people making longer journeys who may not
be used to cycling or need more assistance when they cycle.

Cycling and Walking Strategy — in July 2021 we unveiled plans to boost cycling
and walking by creating more networks, revamping routes, and teaming up with



234

schools and workplaces. The Cycling and Walking Strategy sets out a vision to
upgrade and provide cycle routes, cycle parking, and pedestrian facilities to create
healthy streets and spaces. It will also include the provision of traffic education
measures and cycle training for schools and workplaces to increase the number of
cyclists and walkers. Initial priority areas will include Loughborough, Oadby, Wigston
and Blaby. The new strategy aims to help more people to make more sustainable
and healthy travel choices, by increasing the number of journeys by bike or on foot.

Highways Maintenance and Management

The Council faces significant challenges in looking after its highways’ assets.
Present levels of government funding are insufficient to maintain even
Leicestershire’s A roads in their current condition.

Highways Maintenance — in 2020/21 a total £21.6m was invested in Highways
Asset Maintenance including £17.3m on carriageways, £2.0m on footways and rights
of way, £1.0m on bridge maintenance and strengthening, £0.6m on street lighting
maintenance, £0.4m on flood alleviation, £0.1m on traffic signal renewal and £0.2m
on other activity including joint sealing.

Incentive Fund 2021/22 — we were successful at securing Incentive Funding by
demonstrating a band 3 (Highest) level of Asset Management which enabled us to
drawdown the maximum level of funding available to us under this mechanism.

Green Highway Improvements — in March 2021 we reported how we were working
to become cleaner and greener by using recycled and carbon friendly products in
highway improvements. Around 5000 recycled tyres were used in a special asphalt
mix on the A426 Blaby bypass, which is expected to save 10 tonnes of carbon. The
white lines were marked out using a cold plastic product which is environmentally
friendly and should last three times longer than the traditional thermoplastic products
used. It is not just the new products which help to cut emissions, all of the bituminous
material removed from the carriageway construction is also recycled elsewhere.

Road and Community Investments — in June 2021 we allocated an extra £5m
investment into Leicestershire’s roads and environment, supporting both safety and
environmental improvements in communities. The money is being spent on extra
maintenance including road repairs, looking after verges, cleaning signs, emptying
drains and gullies, and improving rights of way with more going to flashing signs,
supporting average speed cameras and other measures to deter speeding motorists.
The plan is also about improving green spaces in communities. Protecting verges
adds to an area’s visual appeal and helps efforts to tackle climate change as well as
protecting and enhancing biodiversity. The cash injection also includes a £25,000
fund for every county councillor — see below - enabling communities to get involved
in influencing the improvements they want to see where they live.

Members Highway Fund — the new Members Highway Fund will provide each
Council member with £25,000 to use on small scale highway and environmental
improvement works in their own divisions. We recognise how important small-scale



235

highway works can be to our communities and therefore this additional funding will
cover a range of highway improvement works. Examples will include the provision of
village gateway measures, flashing speed signs, vegetation clearing and minor
improvements to roads and footways. Officers will support members in developing
proposals for their areas so the measures can be delivered quickly.

Winter Gritting — during the 2020/21 winter our gritters and drivers were out treating
key routes to keep the county moving, spreading approximately 10,772 tonnes of
rock salt over 1,240 night-gritting runs to combat the drop-in temperature. Keeping
the county moving and motorists safe is our top priority each winter. Our gritting
crews are on standby 24 hours a day, seven days a week from October to March —
including Christmas and New Year — and ready to respond to the forecasts. We
monitor the weather constantly and if freezing temperatures are forecast, our fleet of
gritters go out at night to treat major roads and key routes which equates to almost
half of the county's road network. The Council has a fleet of 23 gritters available,
three of which were recently replaced with new state of the art vehicles. The other
twenty vehicles have also been fitted with the latest sat-nav technology, to ensure all
routes are gritted correctly. This year, the council’s salt barns were stocked with up
to 18,000 tonnes of rock salt.

Snow Wardens - in addition to winter gritting, there are also a number of snow
wardens based in communities across the county who grit paths, as well as farmers
who, during deep snow, fit ploughs to their tractors and assist the council in clearing
roads. The authority is working with parish and town councils to train and encourage
more people to sign-up to its Snow Warden Scheme to help keep the county moving
during the winter. We also have a team of carers and health visitors who can reach
their patients if there is prolonged heavy snowfall.

Gully Cleaning - to tackle blocked drains we apply a ‘risk-based’ approach to gully
cleaning that increased the number of roadside drains treated from 64,000 per year
to 92,000 without costs rising. The change followed a trial to find a more cost
effective and focused way of cleaning the county’s 130,000 gullies. The trial found
that it would be beneficial for more regular visits to roads at high risk of flooding due
to the drains filling faster with silt. Previously drains were cleaned on an 18 to 24-
month fixed programme, whether the road was at risk of flooding or not, the highest
priority drains are now cleaned every 10 months.

Flooding — during 2021 we responded to over 430 flooding related incidents. We
received 10 yellow weather warnings and one amber warning for potential disruption
caused due to flooding. There were also 69 road closures implemented in response
to flooding to protect the travelling public on the network. We constantly monitor the
weather situation based on alerts from the Met Office. Resources are available 24/7
and we are able to re-deploy additional highway maintenance teams to deal with
flooding emergencies.

Grass Cutting — in April 2021 our annual programme of grass cutting started across
Leicestershire. Teams mow the equivalent of 28 football pitches a day in towns and
villages across Leicestershire, cutting the equivalent of three million square metres
of grass. Our urban programme sees the grass cut six times throughout the season.



236

These routes are mainly on roads with a speed limit of 30mph or less and is cut
primarily for safety rather than aesthetic reasons. The rural programme focuses on
cutting back of the verges on roads between villages and is carried out three times a
year to help with visibility and safety.

Biodiversity - we've changed the way which we manage our rural verges after many
residents said that they would prefer less grass to be cut and wildflowers allowed to
thrive. We left a significant number of wildflower verges across Leicestershire uncut
as parish councils prepared them to bloom during the summer.



	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 2 September 2021.
	8 Engagement on the Council's Strategic Plan.
	Appendix A - LCC Strategic Plan 2022-26

	9 National Bus Strategy.
	APPENDIX A
	APPENDIX B
	0. Introduction
	1. Overview
	LTA Responsible for the BSIP
	Area Covered by the BSIP
	Enhanced Partnership
	Duration
	Alignment with Local Transport Plan
	Alignment with Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy
	Our Vision
	Our Aim and Objectives

	2. Current Bus Offer to Passengers
	Analysis of Existing Bus Services
	Bus Network
	Bus Fleet
	Traffic congestion and traffic levels
	Fares and Ticketing
	Timetables and Information
	Responsibility for bus services
	Local Operators and the County Council
	Public Engagement
	Other Factors that Affect Use of Local Bus Services

	3. Headline Targets
	Baseline Position
	Performance Indicators
	Targets for Passenger Growth and Customer Satisfaction
	Targets for Journey Times and Reliability
	Target for Bus Emissions Standards

	4. Delivery
	Single system
	Reliable
	Affordable
	Easy to use
	Greener

	5. Reporting
	6. Overview Table
	Annex 1: Bus delay hotspots
	Annex 2: General traffic delay maps for main Leicestershire towns
	Annex 3: Current real time information display locations in Leicestershire
	Annex 4: Town Centre Off-Road Parking Provision in Leicestershire

	APPENDIX C

	10 A511 Growth Corridor Proposals.
	APPENDIX A

	11 Highways and Transport Annual Performance Update.
	Appendix A
	Appendix B




